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OUR MANAGEMENT

These are the seasoned professionals and industry veterans that lead our oeganization. Systems Limited s driven by the
profound experience and business acumen that these gifted individuals share with us every day
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

Committed to
nurture creativity
and empower
talent

Dear Shareholders,

Based on a very successful previous year, your company had set very ambitious targets for 2020, and in the
first two months we were well on target. However, towards the end of the first quarter your company like the
rest of the world was faced with an unprecedented challenge presented by the Cowsd-19 pandemic. By late
March 2020, the pandemic had hit and all businesses, both in Pakistan and in our target markets, were shut
down. The impact of this was both external on our clients and internzal as our faclities were closed down

| am proud of the way the Management and the entire team reacted to this challenge, particularly the work
from home transition. Our customers were impressed that we did not miss any delivery or deadlne and
continued to provide quality work despite the challenge. As a result, our clients maved more work to our
offshore centers and despite the fear of losing business due to the economic downturn caused by the
pandemic, your company nat only met the very aggressive target for 2020 but exceeded it

The reverue of the company grew by 31% and its profit after tax by 38% This growth was led by our
traditional North American market and ocur new venture into the European market, and was supported by
equally strong growth in our Domestic and Middle East markets

We continue to invest in innovative solutions and services for our target markets. More impartantly we invest
In attracting, trainng, and retaining the most talented human resource in this field

| would also like to thank the members of our board for their valuable insight and guidance to the
management team In particular the two retirmg members Ayaz, Dawood and Tahir Masuad who served two
terms on the board, our continuing members Asif Jooma and Romana Abdutlah, and | also welcome two new
members Omar Saeed, who had served on the board earlier and Shabbar Zaidi. We look forward to continuing
suppert and guidance of these deectors to the management

| am proud of the great work done by all members of the Systems family, would congratulate them on the
excellent results and wish them and thesr families a safe and healthy 2021

As always, we thank all our customers worldwide who have given us the opportunity to service their IT needs
and continue to do so

Aezaz Bussain
Chairman




CEO’S REVIEW

An exceptional year of
transforr_nation, achlevemen‘ts
and exciting new opportunities

Dear Esteerned Shareholders. Imvestars. Partners, Chents
and ail Colleagues

Systems has wanessed a remarkable year with notawarthy

achlievements in terms of global recognition, business, market

positoning, growth, and techrology while creating new
values far as shareholders, nvestors, cients, the comemunity,
and the natien

As a lsading global Information Technology (IT) services firm, we

trarsforn, design, and build end-to-enc digital systems and

applxations that halp many of the largest and most advanced

companies in the warld to move faster, operate mare efficiently and

serve their customers in ways that are optimized for today's digital

economy Following the onset of an unprecedented global pandemic that

has accelerated the need for digital adoption, tha ralevance of our business

1S greater than ever. While neither we nor our CUStOmErs were mmune ta the

pandemic ard its consaquences; but it has motivated the industries to accelerate

digital transformation to maintan business activities and survve this challenging time

This apened tremendous oppartunities for us and we tock advantage of this opportumity ta expand owr capaoty n
digtal innocvation and engineerng

We .,‘-.i_gr-o:j our offerings around three ey pidlars Digtad, Data and Cloud. We ganed progress n each of thess areas,
a treng that we belwve wil continue aver the course of 2027 and beyond

Concurrently, we worked to ensure the health and safety of our assooates and focused on wark-from-home
measures, including remote workforce enablement. While owr business continuty protocols enabled nearly
urmiterrupted service to aur clients. Dur governments recogrition and declanng BPO/Contact center a5 essentiad
business has enabled us to open and operate our BFO/ ontact Center throughout the pandemic, this offered us the
unkjue cpportunity to scquire new clients and increasze volumes from existing customers

Our COVID-19 Task Force cantinues to monitar developments and respond in accordance with the gudancea provided
by governments and public health organizations around the warld As the warld faces this unprecedented challenge,
Systemns is committed to doing everythng possihle to help our team members, dients and stakeholders through
these twurbulent times. Bukding on the accomplishments of 2020, our executives, leadership, and team will contirue
to solve customer busness and technology problems by oreating Innovative sotutions, and offerings. We wilk
continue 1o expand /strengthen our markets, sllances and partnarships,

Our subsidiary, EP Systems is strengthening market position and expanding its network in the mejor aties, wth
Central Bank and Government focus on dgitzing the Econamy, we are well postioned to capitalize on the
digitatization of mass market shopkespers and retaders With the EMI Licerse, EP Systams has an apportunity to
brng mare innovatve use casss and bring banking access to its ratailers who hawe previously used the app for
mabile top-ups

System Ventures, our recently formed investment subsidiary, is Eearing up 1o take an advantage of emes ng startup
800 systems and aggressively lookng 10 invest and incubate innovative salutions. As | ook back at 2020, 7 can see
that It was the year t0 go bayond superficial transformations and truly reinvent oursetves. Let me do a boef recap of
what happenead last year

* Dur revenue grew by 37% from R< 7,5356 million to Rs 5,875 8 million Gross peofit and operating profit incressed
by 37% and S59% ruspactively

* More than 1000 now Systemers joined the company, growing our headoount more than 30% year-over-year

* Weinaugurated our centar in Islamabad and are in tha process of expanding our footprint ta other cities in 2021

We have launchad a multi-year strategy to drive shareholders' value focused on three fundamental pillars

* noeasng our profitable revenue growth by targetng the accelerated global demand for digtal and cloud
transformation engagements and offshore outsourdng created by the pandemic

* Achieving Igre-atw reverue dversification across geographies, Industry Verticals, Technology Horizontals [Digital,
Data, Coud|, both through new client acqustions and farmng existng cliens

* Increasing gross and operatng margires Our strong fotus an Export business growth s gaing to yeld better
margins, in addition our cverheads are not increasing as we are scalbing our capacty. This will help u= n improving
our margns

| would Uke to express my profound gratitude to our dients acrass the globe, since owr engagement with them
erhances our experience and capability. | Thank our valuable Shareholders, who hawve always supportaely put their
trust in us. And speciat thanks to all System's Executives and Colleagues around the world for their tireless efforts,
raatary, and wholehearted engagemeant to Serve our customers. It's time to go for more!

» o

G M
_/’ ‘i‘\le

A$ { Peer
Choef Executive Officer




DIRECTOR'S
REPORT

to the shareholders

On behalf of the Board of Directors we are pleased to present the 44th Annual Report to the
members together with Audited Group Financial Statements and Auditors Report for the year
ended December 31, 2020.

DIVIDEND & APPROPRIATIONS

Directors recommended a payment of final cash dividend @ Rs. 350 per share (2019: 2.25 per share)and 10% Bonus Issue [2619:
Nil)
The following appropriation on account of dividend was made during the year:

Unr-appropeiated profit (PKR]

Balance as at 31 Decemnber 2019 3,390,143582

Totel comprehensive income for the year 2193914842

Less:

Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2079 at the rate

of PKR 2.25 per share 277520824

Add:

Affect of share options 83

Balance as at 31 Decamber 2020 5307.971413
EARNING PER SHARE

Basic and dduted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 for the Company are PKR 1766 and PKR 17.31 {31
December 2019: PKR 1105 and PKR 10.35) per share. Similarly, the basic and diluted earnings per share for the Group are PKR
17.78 and PKR 17.43 (31 December 2019: PKR 1286 and PKR 1275] per share.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY AND THE GROUP DURING 2020
Activities:

The Company 1 & public imited company incorporated in Paksstan under the Companmes Act, 2017, and Listed on the Pakistan
Stock Exchange. The Compeny 15 principally engaged m the business of softwere development, trading of software ardd business
process GUISOUrCINg seqvices

The Group comprses of Systems Limited (Holding Company| and its subsidiaries - TechVista Systems FZ LLC E-Processing
Systems [Private) Limited, SUS {Private] Limited and Systems Venture [Private) Ld

TechVista Systems FZ LLC (TVS], & limited Labdity Company mcorparated in Dubail Technology and Media Free Zone Autharity, s

a 100% owned subsidiary of Systemns Limited TVS is engaged in the business of developing scftware and providing anciliary ‘
services. TVS has also invested in TechVista Systems LLC of wiwch currently owns 49%. This company s also registered as a
software house but does not have any independent cperations and was created to support the projects aof TechVista Systems FZ
LLC TVS hes also invested in Techvista Systems Pty Ltd, a company incorporated in Australia to manage projects




Y

E-Pracessing Systems (Private) Limited (EPS), 2 private Limited Company registered under Companies Act 2017, |5 a 4460%
awned subsisary of Systems Limited. EPS IS currently engaged in the business of purchase and sale of teleca’s alrtime and
related services, The product of the Company = called Dnel.oad

Systems Venture (Private] Limited, a private Umited company registered under Companies Act 2017, is a 99.98% owned
subsidiary of Systems Limited. Systems Ventures is established in Pakstan to invest in new ventures, start ups and incubate new
ideas.

SUS 1V (Private] Uimited, a private limited company regstered under the Campanies Act, 2077 is a 94.99% owned subsidary of
Systams Limited The Company is set up for the Balochistan Land Revenue Management Information Systems project. The
project i related to digitization of land recards and development of 2 web-based management infarmation system

The financal statemonts of the Company and the Group truly reflect the state of Company’s affairs and far roview of their
business

Performance:

Standalone:

The Campany's revenue comes pnmarily from Software Development, Managed Services, Consulting Services and Business
Pracess Outsourcing/Contact Center. Dorminant portion of the Companys revenue ie 80% s derived from exports of services to
various geographies such ag North America, Europe and Middie East and about 20% from dormestic market The Company s well
divericified into varous business verticals such as Teleo, Retall, CPG, Pharma and the financial sector Moreover, the service
offerings are also weoll divarsified in the form of Data integrations, Modern Dav App, Cloud and Digital Services, as well as
Business Pracess OQutsourcing {BPO) and Omai Channel Contact Center,

During the year ended 31 Decernber 2020, standalone revenues of the company grew by 40% over the corresponding period last
year, from Rs 53486 million to Rs. 7,5138 million  Gross profit and operating peofit increased by 58% and B8% respectively.
Profit for the year increasad by 61% from 1,364.1 million to Rs. 21939 million, which translated into an 85% growth in net profit
without accounting for exchange gain m both years. Basic and diluted earnings per share increasad by 60% and 58% respectvely
as 2 consequence of higher operating profit and profit for the period.

The increase i profits for the year Is primarily driven by toplne growth, led by the North American and Europe Segment which
can be seen in the segment performance as well This growth has been achived withaut significant addtion to headcount by
opUmization and eMcient utilization of exsting resource. Currency devaluaton mpact for the year & at Rs, 818 million which is
significantly lower than Last yaar

Moreaver, the Company was quick to adapt to the changmg world post-pandemic and as a consequence was able to minimize the
impact on the business by focusing on the CORE. Three technolog=es are in high demand; Digital. Data and Cloud The Company
got pasitive tracton from its averseas markets in these areas and signed up naw opgartunities whilst developing a healthy

pipeline for future growth



Standalone

Particulars FY 2019
Reverwe 5,348,5608,742
Gross profit ' : 1776,380,215

Operating Profit 2.044 597 986 1,088,180,75) B3%
Profit before taxaton 2,267.329045 1392672376 63%
Profit after taxation 213394942 1364131709 B1%
Earnings per share {basic) 1766 1nos 60%
Earnings par share {diluted) N 085 58%

Othet Income - Standalone

Particulars

Other income , N9 473774
Exchange Gain 318 223,172,268

272545254 342646042

Consolidated

During year ended 31 December 2020, consolidated revenue grew by 31% from Rs 7,535 6 miliion to Rs. 98768 million. Gross
profit and operating profit increased by 37% and 53% respectively. Exchange gain for the year amounted to Rs. 818 million as
compared to Rs. 223 1million for last year on consolidated basis. Net profit for the period increased by 38% from 1,567 S million to
Rs. 2.164.3 million. Basic and diluted earnings per share increasad by 38% and 37% respectively aver the same period ast year.

Growth in revenue 1s contnduted by both the Company and its subsidiaries and rigorous contrels an costs helped it flow through
to the bottam Une.

Consolidated

Particulars FY 2020 FY 2019 YiY
Revenue 9876827,70 7535648069 3%
Gross profnt 3.257.187507 2.369.346,463 37%
Operating profit 2.713,716,697 1.329,745,065 S9%
Profit before taxaton 2,282,258,059 1601214519 43%
Profit after taxation 264,297 683 1567,932,621 38%
Earnings por share {basic) 17.78 1286 38%
Earmings per share {diluted) 1743 75 37%

~ Particula

Other Income 95,319,307
Exchange Gain 223,772,268
318,491575

Performance by Segment - {Standalone)

The segment analysis shows a robust growth across all four segments, with the North American and European Regons leading
Export zales of the Company (excluding E-Processing Systems) are approximately B0% of total salas, in line with the Company's
target of further increasing the export component in its portfolio going forward. Diversification into new regions and new markets
will suppaort this objective as the company is actively looking to expand in newer areas
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Faor the year ended 31 December 2020, TVS registered a revenue of AED 57.8 million (2012 629 million) and earning a profit of
AED 18 mellion (2073 AED 4.8 million). Slight reduction in the revenue is the result of more offshoring in 2020 to improve margins
far the business. However, lower profits in TVS this year are due to an overlapping period durng this transition where there was
a bench of onsite resources. The offshoring has resulted in a higher contribution from the subsidiary to the company's standalone
revenue and profits.

The subsidiary EP Systems, being a retail centric business, despite the pandemic situation, has shown growth over the past year
and has mcreased its sales volurme, GP margin as compared with last year. Onel.oad business picked momentum this year with
total throughput of Rs 12.5 billion in transaction value for the year. The Company has achieved revenue growth of 13% from PKR
2161 million in 2018 to PKR 3575 million in 2020 This revenue growth and optimization of commessions and other costs has
enabled the Company to achieve a Gross Profitin 2020 of FKR 139.9 millon which is 50% higher as compared to PKR 93.2 million
n2019

FUTURE OUTLOOK AND PROSPELCTS OF PROFIT
2021Plans

The Company has seen a robust damand in the digital space globally which i aligned with the company’s strategy which includes
Digital and Business transformation (largely Digital Commerce, Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP), Customer Relationship
Management (CRM)) along with strategic alignment on Cloud and Data, The Company is actively pursuing these areas and working
to develop its core competence in these segments so as to meet global demand and growth opportunities in these sectors It is
wadely belived amangst the digatal ecosystem that capturing tomerrow’s market will require organizations to define it The era of
the fast follower is effectively now over!

Since the company is well diverisifed in terms of service offerings and locations, the company is seeing growth in all the three
international regions where it is present and similar trends are wisible in the domestic market. In the past-covid world, with the
acceptability of remote working, offshoring has become more acceptable and the customers are now open to consider Pakistan
as an outsourcing destination. This has increased an overall demand in the IT industry and IT exports from Pakistan have grown by
over 30% in last 7 months, The company's growth is algned with the industry growth and international demand for IT Services.

Addtionally, the company is well aligned with the Telco sector i the domestic market Reverwe per user (RPU) has been
challenged in the Telco space because of high competition so customers in this sector are looking for touch free operations and
hyper automation as they leok to optimize and reduce their Opex In response, the company 1s addressing this challenge through
offshoring and managed services contracts. With the 56 rollout, there are a lot of new business cases coming up and Latency and
speed will no longer be a challenge after 5G The company is expanding its team for tha research of 5G and in the |07 space so the
company can take advantage of this technology advancement.

During covid, the transformation and transition from onsite business concentration to offshore resources for the Middie East
Reglon is a strategi move for the company and creates stickiness with the customer, gives scale and results in robust cashflows
for the company as well as higher profitability for the group. TVS is expected to show sustainable growth with better margins.
Moreover, TVS Is entering Inte alliances with digital trarsformation consultng firms as they also need scale in the backend
execution space and TVS is poised to take advantage as the company has an offshore back office and onsite resources,

Oatar market was lagging for 2 to 3 years due to the embargos and travel restrictions between UAE and Qatar which restricted
business opportunities. Following the Lifting of embargoes and restrictions, the company sees possibilities of growth in that
market as well

Inthe North American market, the company’s investment in business solutions and products has resulted nincreased footprint in
the farm of new legos. With the company’s service offerings for defined Industry verticals, the company sees Ufetime value from
the customers and the new customer acquisitions are expacted to result in growth and expansion in this region. The company is
cantmuously investing to find growth avenues by swesting in R&D and setting up of research labs to work an new use

cases/technologies.

In the European market, the company’s mwestment 5 paying off, with the company expanding its customer base. As there is a
scarcity of skilled resaurces in this market , the company has possibilities of offering offshore work.

The company is also looking to invest in mature start-ups and new ideas through its subsidiary Systems Ventures. This will give
additional inorganic rewenue growth in the relevant business verticals and relevant techrology areas Focus is on organisations
with a unique skillset or a specialized product or service offering.

On the Call center/BPO front, the company & positive and optimistic that export BPO revenue will increase as the economy is in
the recovery phase The company ts focusing on growing the omes channel contact center business with swestments to acquire
business in this space.



During the year, the International Finance Corporation (IFC), & membar of the Werld Bank Group, has acquired a 20 percent equity
stake in EP Systems. This infusion of funds and axpertise will prove to be beneficial for EP Systems and Pakistan’s Fintech markat
as & whole EP Systems is striving to enable retallers, particularly smail retailers, to effectively serve mass market, low income
consumers and satisfy their demand for a number of services.

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING THE COMPANY

RISK FACTORS

Following are some of the risk factors that may Impact our business and Anancal results:

® Ecanomic Depression - Globailly, North American and European countries can go through real depression and stow recovery. If
Companees file for bankruptcy and seek Government support, recoveribility of current recesvables can be a challenge

e Income Inequality - Risk of severe mcome inequality in Pakistan which can cause social unrest and will affect interest of foreign
customers and investors

o Risk of Travel advisory - Investors and buyers will not be able to travel to the country in case of any travel advisory. Since the
Company s in services business and though a lot of work is happening offshore, however travel restrictions will impact
business since resources will not be able to visit foreign clients.

® Pricing Pressures - In case of demand compression, there will be a large supply of talent pool but less demand. This will result
ina price war and that, potentialty effects profit margins

® Currency risk - Currency is expecting to be stable this year and the company doesn't see a high currency risk in this region

o Country risk - The Company is well paised for digital Pakistan but with rocent forecast, the country is going into a negatve GDP
situation, there will be unemployment, and Lless demand in public sector spending.

e Other income — Other income is tied with interest rates. If interest rates fall further or in case of significant dollar devaluation, it
will adversety impact Company's returns on investments

CHANGES DURING FINANCIAL YEAR CONCERNING THE NATURE OF THE BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY OR OF ITS
SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT OPERATION

There hes been no change m the nature of business of the company or its subsidiaries. For the subsidiary EP System, the Company
has received an investment from IFC to secure 20% stake in the business.

MAIN TRENDS AND FACTORS LIKELY TO AFFECT THE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT, PERFORMANCE AND POSITION OF THE
COMPANY BUSINESS

Technology is rapidly changing and demands are on the higher side for the disruptive technologies. In order to grow at a faster
pace, the Company has to scale up and nurture talent Scaling into relevant technologies will have a significant impact on future
performance and position of the Company's business.

IMPACT OF COMPANY BUSINESS ON THE ENVIRONMENT

Since the Company is i the software business, the Company does not have any adverse impact on the environment.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Cormpany acknowledges its responsibility towards socety and performs its duty by providing financial assistance to projects
for society development by various charitable institutions on consistent basis.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The management of Systems Limited as a Group is responsible for the establishment and maintenance of the Company’s and the
Group's system of internal control in order to identify and manage risks faced by the Group. The system provides reasonable,
though not absolute, assurance that:

o Assets are safeguarded against unauthorized use or disposition;

o Proper and reliable accounting records are avadeble for use within the business;

o Adequate control mechanmsms have been established within the operational businesses, and

® Internal financial controls deptoyed within the Company have been satisfactory throughout the year




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK
As required by the Code of Corporate Governance, the directors are pleased to confirm that:

® The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company and the Group, present its state of affairs fairly, the
result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity

* Proper books of accounts of the Company and each of its subsidiaries have been maintained

® Appropriately accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements and accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment

e International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in the preparation of financial
statements and there have been no departures therefrom

® The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored

¢ There are no significant doubts about the Company’s ability along with the subsidiaries to continue as a going concern
® There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance as detailed in Listing regulations
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board comprises of seven (7) directors with one (1) female director. During the year, five {5) board meetings were held.

The names of directors and number of meetings attended by each director is as follows:

- F 5
Mr Asrf Peer Executive 5
Mr. Arshad Masood Non Executive 3
Ms. Romana Abdullah Independent 3
Mr. Ayaz Dawood Indepencdent 4
Mr. Asif Jooma Independent 4
Mr. Tahir Masaud Independent 4
Mr. Syed Mohammad Shabbar Zaik  Independent 1
Mr. Omar Saeed Independent 1

For TechVista Systems FZ LLC, Mr. Asif Peer is the Managing director of the company.

For E-Processing Systerns {Private] Limited, the directors of the company are - Mr. Aezaz Hussain, Chairman, Mr. Asif Peer and Mr.
Muhammad Yar Miraj

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors has constituted Audit Committee and Human Resource & Compensation Committee

The names of members of Board Committees and number of meetings attended by each member is as follows:

Audit Cormmittee:
Name of Member 2 Meetings Attended
Mr. Ayaz Dawood
Ms Romana Abdullah 4
Mr. Tahir Masaud 5

Human Resource & Compensation Committee:
Existing Committee

Name of Member Meetings Attended
Mr. Asif Jooma 1
Mr. Tahir Masaud 1
Ms. Romana Abdullah 1




CHANGES TO THE BOARD

The current terms of the directors was completed on December 1 2020 and fresh elactions were conducted for the appaintment
of directors through extra ordinary general meeting held on 3rd December 2020. The Board would like to record its appreciation
for the invaluable contributions rendered by the outgoing directors Mr. Ayaz Dawood and Mr. Tahir Masaud.

The Board also extends warm welcome to Mr. Syed Mohammad Shabbar Zaidi and Mr. Omar Saaed as new fellow membears The
Board is confident that the team would operate cohesively for the benefit of the Company and that the new members shall tend a
fresh perspective and spirit towards the progress of the Company.

The term of the new board will stand completed on 3rd December 2023,

COMPOSITION OF THE NEW BOARD & COMMITTEES AFTER ELECTIONS

BOQ\'T’ of Dd’ecml’t. Humean R_EM_E &
Category Audit Committee Compensation Committee
Mr. Asif Peer Executive Re-elected X X
Mr. Arshad Masood Non Executive  Re-elected X v
Ms. Romana Abdullah independent  Re-elected v/ v
Mr. Asif Jooma independent  Re-elected X v
Mr. Syed Mohammad Shabbar Zaidi Independent  Newdyelected v/ X
Mr. Omar Saeed independent  Newly elected +/ v

FORMAL ORIENTATION AT INDUCTION

Detailed orientation is conducted upon induction of each new Board member, apprising them on business operations, environment
and long term strategy of the Company. Extensive training programs are offered to the directors for enhancement of managerial
and governance skills,

POLICY ON NON EXECUTIVE AND INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

All non-gecutive and independent directors of the Company are entitled to remuneration for attending Board and Committes
meetings along with reimbursement of expenses incurred in connaction with these mestings

A director may be paid such extra remuneration as the Board may determine, for serving on any Committees or devoting special
attenton 1o the business of the Company or performance of sarvices which, in the opinion of the Board, are outside the stope of
statutory duties of a drector

Detail of the remuneration paid to exacutive and non-executive directors dunng the year is given in Note 34 of the attached
Nnancial staterments

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA
Key operating and financial data for the last six years & annexed with the Annual Report
INVESTMENTS OF PROVIDENT FUND

The value of provident fund cperated by the Company, based on the un-audted accounts of the fund as an 37 December 2020
amounts to PKR 6936 million (31 December 2019; PKR 446 8 million)

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

The Pattern of Shareholding as at 31 Decemnber 2020 i annaxed with the annual report The sharsholding pattern of TechVista
Systems FZ LLC and E-Processing Systems {Private) Lamited as at 31 December 2020 is enclosed.

TRADING BY DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVES AND THEIR SPOUSES AND MINOR CHILDREN

The Company’'s Directors, executives and their spouses and minor children did not trade in the Company's shares during the year
ended 31 December 2020 other than those disclosed on Pakistan Stock Exchange

REVIEW OF RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
In complance with the Code of Corporate Gavernance and applicable laws and regulations, details of all related party transactions

are placed before the Audit Cornmittee and upon recommendation of the Audit Cammittee, the same are placed befare the Board
for review and approval




QUARTERLY AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The finencial staternents were duly endorsed by CED and CFO before approval of the Board, Guarterly financal statements of the
Company, 2long with consolidated financial statements of the Group, were approved. published and ciculated to shareholders
within one month of the closing date, while Hall yearly financial statements of the Company and consolidated financlal
statements of the Group were reviewed by the external auditors, approved by the Board, published and circutated to shareholders
wathin two months of the closing date,

AUDITORS

EY Ford Rhodes has comploted its tenure for the year 2020 and retirg at the conclusion of the 44th Annual General Meoting Baeing
eligible, they have offered themselves for re-appointment

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated financial statements of the Company together with its subsidiary companies E-Processing Systems [Private)
Limited and TechVista Systems FZ-LLC are also included

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company and the Group have occurrsd between the
end of the financial year and the date of this report except as disclosed in this report, if any.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
The Board takes this opportunity to thank the Company's and its subsidiaries’ valued customers, bankers and other stakeholdars

for their cooperation and support. Tha Board greatly apprecistes hard work and dedication of the managemant and all employess
of the Group.

On behalf of the Board

s

Asif Peer
Chief Executive Officer

Chairman

Date: 3rd March 2021
Lahore



A’n'ﬂ,}ku‘.ﬁ&{Ug”
R st B TN g 5

Sebd Bl
2P 448.8. 20192531 M 4 107683 8L 202099 AUV L 1 TEE S s A St rg ol bl 4 AL
” . A
T S5y 4
- LA 7020938 s AN LI ZL BN e 1) En i S WS e AL 2 g A T020530 Hhg 2 S
L322 AE EE S L L sl B
VYA EN S Ll naS B M 2B E ol e nPh2020 401w Epra b L AL i K Kl G

P wil o s
e P L Pt 5 R g M S L s T gl L L T Rt L A 320 2 A L A\ e K T8

a =
2y d‘)l-' (L[ P 2
FL St B SEE I EERE L P W INIAL S PPl T NI e FSERS I I r I P e
AL ol g B P A 5 B e K BB Sy Fps ansal FL 3 e

AT

S VBE G A lb L UGS r M I AT G N L ST g e 1852020 - st Rt
.,_',;,,rs o J}‘f

AN )9 g Lo i s FLL PR F L FAGAL G

= ‘!U‘.‘?

= SAL A2 eu Nt v 2t i B a b A IAI L SIS S ER L Bl N U
o

e SRS e S 8 0OL o St S A TPY st L P Kt TP L BISL ptreF L i FBrpsk

SN2 AT S
s




5 e Nty
5 2 St
3 Ehe N
3 A7 RO
4 A7 5 173/ N 3
q Wit LTt
4 AJF Wbt
1 a7 Seidheot:
S il ol e ol

St
e T Fad it T 2553
B T oy B P S

S )ilﬂy.rk
4 s
b 1’"‘,7‘.(&

J’",}vb'.vlv;.a.ju'

1 ARty
1 L”,’,“y‘f
1 Ry

[P Pv P b
-Gl 4l
i St b r i W b A i i bt S ) RIS A o IS 2020 25300 Y 202050 s ansrr 1K 08

oY bf.}_'\;t"s Ve ain

Lt o D8 SA TR S S b P L E R e B S e A tema iR i e
S 2028 A% Jhel

: LN
Ui UMl

L x o
x x A =5 ST
v x ,jcu, “ £ e WAL
v ._;u\n A7 A»,'.‘r"u}'
v x .ﬁ‘mn Wit ARl b
x v .;"I' WF Ja ._2!(‘.&:
v v -.5;1‘ i >l

S IR SPR V-

c -— F.'Uh' -—r

Sl Bl B s e S P g K A bl e Yo P AS IS i f S b ke fn e adv A ¢

oL arbn i s T g

AL el 8P LA F 1 Dl a5 Skl B g 300 U E AL

e BB Pt SR e (& ot AL PN RIIRE AN LS 0 S i RV Al F L PPt L ST

e T2 30 AL AT el i L i nl S50 E X E



Fare L PRGN EF L g St 2ol i S S A S F AL i S P dF 2503

Ete drgrBorsdf Fe sl aTliptd JALurt L Bvbmmm £ B fx 3 e St 3 p RN E M Dbt b R o e b s B
S e san Py

G gL B BB S 8 S KRR T Rl L i 23 R B BA RIS o ey a3 SN

bt in B S LI PSP VB e LS e €120 Lt NI K B o B Bl A
e YOI L a ML L S i A e bsn S oo S aal 3T LG 2 e I | L Ay P s B

,,'u’.f&.‘?,»jm.:,-,hﬂ;’:g,‘,'i..db"‘
ML ¥
-, ?q@HﬁW&nbguL.MuV&Mﬁa
A S SRR NERNER SSRGS P07 . 0 A PR - (VY PRIttt [ P
-kf}hguwugl/uﬁ/?,&f.@éﬂfdf"{_&hﬂ&%‘q)& Jgtpc_fg -k d 5aT
I S SIS R it Tk ot S M\ b T L F KBS SN A S5 7030005 -f:;@:’m&:ﬁ:‘
i _ Ll Satre SF
PP L Loe b Sl A B SR L E L Snf LTSIV oSS A - A
+wﬁm:r.fwmnq.wu&.fxmyrxx
el AL TSNS 28 i it e A ISP E S AL Vel B0 LISt IEF - W E
PPl v o s AF L SRR SN ity ol M e B RL g DY - aTh

PP MK L o etz gt 3 F ot Jodh

e A e s I | 20% T E PRt e SURE RS2 e AL AL i

Ma bl a1 3 P G o A Skl F

FENRGIAL e 23252 o030 S S S Soxac sl SF R L T e S8 PRI PSS I 0 Wt S G238
AR WA 1

SN F
P AP A DL R S A N Y

6/'&563‘-‘(1{ s
N VTR VY ST VPO LTI I IO s e SRYTORY 103, i

2 JJ ’f’.' rdk'&d snt

SV TS N N gV oY VO SO ek el A Y AN 5 TRV RV SRS A A Y V¢
PR RO GO T YN P

L Pl S Nn il v

Rt S R T Y

if e P Fal b RAPFIHL Ml FE

{V“’-‘f/{ ;Jb/!b';f/i:“ “{‘/‘

o Wh e ST A S S P s AS A e g NS

LA s K i L AN NS e P B L A F
uﬁfgf:!/'n.éﬁf weal SN angifia L Jl-"e?r

S EEBNPEL LA 2SI u_riy-éﬂvwwa’ww gt

VYR IAN = e I L SR 2wp/] T e T PO R 2 S St B
e gl Wi g a3 pure. 88 R s 864 S

BB ST NAI f A E a8 JE SN AAI IR N ALF
a2 o B e FAN VRN HE it ¥

. -
by 3L N e

LS B Lt e T E AT s ST L1k
el i S A B Mt 450

§ &€& C-§°S




L

119,473,774 100,603,204 RIR7 4
2231472268 81,841,950 I s
342 848 042 272,845 254

-5
NP A S S0 K BT S AL G bs T e 100 BTB 8/ g #7535 8L S B 1 53T Lol M 742020731
Lo P E N f 12,964 3w 20 0L o1 567 AL 2P0l L GoRso N G w323 0 punia Pty fepa w818
AN 3P I8P b i £ 2k

Jorba i F T LNl S b I pem AL oA S 2 3a7

3% 7.535,648,069 9,876,827,710 &7
ar 2,359,346 463 3.257,187,507 Ptk
% 1,3520,745,065 2,113,716,097 ondiy!
43% 1,/601,214519 2,282,258,059 Srke
B% 1,567,632 821 2,164,297 683 Poml &
3% 1275 17,43

&% 12,68 17.78 (ﬁ;);r.‘j&w
(ZAA£560

95 318 307 153,369,078 Jalts

22372268 61,841,960 e i
318491 575 235,201 038
CaniT)e Sl

(5 TN élx..gq.w'.'u‘-{fx-_eeoﬁ,,fw-}ﬂ P Em L M}J&JJ{.?L I R R gt S R S r I .,"‘f.u@, Fiod
e G AR LN F I oo AP L WA LKA R L e Sy L bt r

LEL LS S r L0008 0 ,%;7’-,u,:.g..o’.((wh.uon)yéaﬁ.\;é13,'(,@.-,:‘52.9201wh»;}ﬁd}tfg?_m.g.'bv'i\}dg"dvu ‘/zm,{m
.yw;;,..x,u\.;crﬂu.ﬁ';':f.fdf.télé.f/}.;‘tmgty'huv.-;f.,wem.fb:.fgm\-,w&.f'w:v‘.,C.dr.s,djvm. AT ¥R
12.wm;{;q,,{@wu.;.méw.;gﬂ.s@.{-, L eIl N2h 0L Soldrde Sebr ol Sl £ Nir Sp e n S rni Kt o 7 i 5
Kl AL oSt o i on AL i don I AL T e o 387 82202024 5L 408 318.0 L2010 S UL LN AL 3N L g st
IS0 L L L1293 2L 2019 e e K 2L S Bendi 1 139022020

St Bk 2
) L2021

LA E AP UG TS ity S K8 L e MR I P B0l J e P §re ;.,aw..,e,—:‘}%s‘fj.;g
.g‘.Jﬂ J{i’d'.‘fﬂfnﬂ

EOHMI Uty R ESE L E i dund erSFJuw’au’rf-oJ}f:k-’;—nt-.ﬁlaérdrﬁiuu‘ﬁu Gl bsduront e
le rFe B v UK N R Sran Al el ainme U

RS L A g SRR S A Bt LS Ut - S SRS WS VEAF L g LP UL sl S Bai 35
SOVl a T8 e i A LSAA M S e L R L A ol W | U e S A 00 d P I e G I SN i
AL TN Sk 3 eSS e o 30% ST
q-'u."{\.sJJtr\.(;’-‘/"i&d)*éJ)&v‘-hcéf"u"'#q-v";’?ﬁ"(:.j:f)J.b)bhm&%&M%ﬁW-g&&AﬁMﬁ%ﬁwﬁ;w
e i ol L S0 e b b e AL 4TS so.,;bc,/L';.,ua.wci_xfﬁdé.sffé‘;\ﬂ,e,w&.;,U,:ng.u. z@’;&j
L RSN e s hes A& Pt IS s
q;Eo«p,;/.,u').fMp\k‘méw.*ivﬁywﬁ{q.o’-&f‘i-)‘&/’f&ﬂer’J.{nagfﬁ:ﬁwmgMJkaw'&-’—f?&)ﬂwé_‘:xf
ELon bbb enASIER I A i S B SN AL i B PSP AN e S SRS AL F A Fo e i
-.ﬂgaerwwmfmﬁ.@)JﬂéJ{ﬁ[g.;;

+§4’ucb¢5&@;&uu‘f;&ii‘:uh’mw 4-5,)'»44&-54..(2._,)07%“\43;.2&9;5_;&&;5,}«..\,:;%ﬂéﬁ.«y‘.«,hi‘.‘_{m{)’

2 st bifrdlie 1P WRL IS Sorie SNFE Eniy hEn.e SIAMS o T GG LSANF Larn S5\ R ol L S0
’ S F SRR R LS ) e b 3 A L TP f SR SRS FF e LR TN 2L e P L




£ ook . 7R~ o ;f ’oh
.7,-/»"\55 - &2020//,0)?/{’;‘4&/;/4 w13
e Il S e A IABLNE SN P K2020 231 Pl s LA L L 00 T
'..‘3? i "
v A0

A7 (225201 De S L SN 0% 7 B 03 S B ATL 1A A

LAV Lo Potanl i
3,390,143 582 5.!.201 9.3

2,160,914.842 ARAZS TA
277,920,624 2226 A LuSTE Mot nFh2019,520
1,833,712 SrahSATRE

SLT#6
s NI ol B S LA 3 1098 1110822019, 2£531 e o1 1T 31l s 180 AL i & I L2020 A&
4 12 5t 112,884 20197531 e 41417 43

;‘/,b/dbu.r r.):!'q"eg“.’.'é:' 2020

u'z""."'

= N L A L A i dn g i b e B AT e I A\ F oAl 201725156

e PN e £V P B e O L B e AP E gl S I A - ok e S F N,

B1-a DAV 0 i b b 2 i ot 371 000D 2 AL 20 P A 2 G (AU it~ 20

BAAL S G2 Tt 2R T N 10l AL TR iy e b 40%0 Mot it 02 kf-{.:f'f“h@f—v"
e d i A DS T 2 T L A S e

I bzt he A 30 P AL BN GRS e A B 24 B0 e F ¥ e 1350020 2017087 ARSI e 81 7 gl
e 08 (OneLosd e S e

-.LJ:’?Fﬁ_révtayJ_.ff’WLNLJJJ‘: .f.;.,gi"_‘;.'wu.}'“’..g&‘;ikﬁu'uWyﬂ*MQ-QMNﬂJ'K"MIM‘{Zf’)'
St P e S O PP i - F et 3504 00 ) B 81y 00 50s B 20170 K B Mg Pg
-q—ya-.‘—"'}(l._{kuw;}qc M\thm

i L AL S 6 Bl b L Fa N FAL S

SL¥

b}"’-

LA ldat bt Fon £ 2O SRS ST B0 &«'?%Jmef?muusm{.ﬁx.r/ﬂ oIS
VAL L S B al P S ik dghe s RO E LA e A P i3 g B Rt o KL LS e e i Sua0%
3N S 7 .%{,WM(,Q‘}LL»—.;;’.,Q

BN AL Yol I S R T 5138 ke a2 5,348 B HAON L L oL e p 2 F 20T IS i N 20204531
£&r¢',\~w&=«£g;b‘,&..;u&' 2B T P AL L Myt ora e S v »oéz.lss&_géi.m.u’hci._um_ B i n%
S IISER B0 Nr P2 B T R i 2

< I A fomir KL S Kin 3 PSR LRSS b p IS pd e S S EiR pSgh IS Bl i
PR B LI g B 0 BRI L NI

W FE e K i e SN TIRR G VAL S Hlet NE A R S 2 COREAS gy s S S MLy il e
LS Tt il LS fiig P L P il lokede Sadiad \untodi 1

a0 5,342,568, 742 7.513, 768,848

se, 1,776,380.215 2,797,960 818 el
88% 1,059,150, 751 2,044,557 986 Cenit gl
63% 1,392, 672,376 2,267,326 045 ket
61% 1,354,131,709 2.193,914 042 Sl ‘
60% 11.08 17.86 (A3

58% 10,85 17.91 A ARTS







ABOUT SYSTEMS LIMITED

Systems Limited (SYS) is a full-service technology consulting and digital business process management company
that delivers best-in-class technology-ied solutions to help our regional and international clients increase operational
agility, drive down costs, and reduce business risks We have established strong ties to the Financial Services,
Telecom, Public Sector, Retail, and Consumer Goods industries

Our global teamn has a track record of over 43 years of successfully delivering large-scale projects for major global
organizations, including several Fortune 500 and Forbes Global 2000 companies. By delivering on hurxdreds of
projects, we have developed industry-specific and cross-industry services, products, and accelerators that enable our
clents to realize business benefits faster with increased efficiency and lower averall IT costs Through a commitment
to innovation and technical excellence, Systemns Limited has become a globally recognized leader in next-generation
IT and BPO services

“OVER FOUR SUCCESSFUL
DECADES OF ENABLING A
DIGITAL TOMORROW”

From the beginning. Systems Limited has exhibited the character to defy the odds and emerge stronger from crises
Despite the global pandemic, we stayed strong and ahead of our digital game. Our teams of business and technology
experts [everaged the latest digital technologies to help our clients adapt to the new normal and achieve their
strategic business objectives. Our clients rely on us for business-critical work, and by leveraging our technical
capabilities, we help strengthen their digital core and transform their business operations

Our expertise in Digital, Data, Cloud, and contact center services are scurces of consistent RO| for our esteemed
clents. Our strong global footprint s a testament to the strength and resilience of our team, and the agility and
cost-effectiveness of our technology-led solutions.

We are immensely proud that even in the challenging times we continued to satisfy our commitments ta our

stakehalders by bringing strong financial results, and our commitments to create value for our clients, partners, and
commeinity

WFORBES ASIA'S

BEST

UNDER A

PAKISTAN'S
BILLION [EYEA
EXPORTER




OUR VALUES

A

INTEGRITY INNOVATION DEDICATION

COMPANY VISION

Systeme Limited aspires to enhance the productivity and growth of cfganizations around the world with a
comprehensive range of digital solutions and services

COMPANY MISSION

As a top-tier employer, Systems Limited promotes employee ownership, leadership, professional fulfilment, and job
satisfaction We deliver profitability and business success to our global clients through precise execution and
technical excellence

4
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SYSTEMS LIMITED’S
JOURNEY THROUGH TIME

1977 till Present

Celebrating 44 years of global digital excellence

¢2007

Diversified in Business
Process Outsourcing

¢ 2003

Diversified in Mortgage,
Apparel & Soft Goods

Industries and expanded
customer base in the US

¢1977

Founded as the first
software house of Pakistan

2005

Status changed to Public
Limited from Private
Limited

1997

Launched operations in the
US and worked with high
profile Fortune 500 clients



2020

» PSEB Top IT Exporter

* Forbes Asia Best Under A Billion

* Among Top 3 best performing
companies on the Pakistan Stock
Exchange (PSX)

2018

* Microsoft Partner of the Year
2013 * 1billion in profitability

Launched operations In
the UAE

¢ 2019

+ IFC Investment
« EP EMI License
« Systems Ventures

¢ 2015

* IPO

* One Load

+ Diversified in digital
services for financial
nclusion

29



Consulting

We help you create a clear digital
strategy that optimizes your path
to comprehensive, technology-led
business success

Implementation
\ Our expertise spans all majar
technologes and busingss
functions, empowernng us o
— delwer comprehenswe

business solutions.

CORE
CAPABILITIES

Systems Limited's skill set s
not restricted to asingle area
of expertise. Regardless of the

Managed Services

Our global Managed Seruces
teams secure your digital
investment with 2457

industry vertical, we exhibit maonitoring, maintenance, and
well-honed technical skitls and end-lo-end support
consistently deliver business
value ina few key aspects:

BPO & Contact Center
Our trained and expenenced teams
of BPO professicnals deliver an
Instant boost to your workforce with
on-time, high-quality results




OUR OPERATING
MODEL &
ACHIEVEMENTS



OUR APPROACH TOWARDS
PRODUCT DELIVERY

Accelerate Time ta Market
Generate New Revenue Steams
Design Build

Design New
Application Landscapa
Business Consultation

End to End Implementation
Technical Consultation

Operate
Support & Operate
»
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ALLIANCE AND AWARDS

Systems Limited’s dedication to innovation and disruptive ideas has helped us secure esteemed, top-tier partnerships
with Microsoft and IBM, as well as a strong allance with Oracle, Cisco, SAP, VMware, Huawel, Kaspersky, Informatica,
and MicroStrategy.

In 2077, Systems Limited collaborated with Red Hat, the world's leading provider of open-source solutions, and OXC
Technology, a US-based firm offering end-to-end technology services for the financial services industry. These
alliances show Systems Limited’s dedication to introduce best-in-tlass technologies and solutions to the private and
public sector organzations in Pakistan,

In 2018, Systems Limited won the Microsoft Country Partner of the Year Award for Pakistan We were honored amang
the global held of top Microsoft partners for demonstrating excellence in innovation and implementation of customer
solutions based on Microsoft technologies.

Systems Limited was recognized as Pakistan's Top IT Services Exporter at the 2078 PSEB IT Exports Awards and
secured multiple Top IT Exporter honors at the 2079 edition cof the prestigious awards ceremony. The company also
received federal recognition from the IT Ministry when it made history in 2020 by becoming the first and anly
Pakistani IT company to be inducted in Forbes Asia's coveted Ust of Best Under A Bilbon companies

Over the years, Systems Limited has won 16 P@SHA ICT awards across several categories, including supply chain
logistics, BPO, HR, project management, managed services, export growth, financisl industry applications, and brand
management. These awards are 3 testament to our team's dedication and hard work, which have made Systems
Limited the most prestigious technology firm in the country

OUR TECHNOLOGY PARTNERS

Gold i
Microsoﬁ Cricghe m ':: (nn-“‘hng o I | Y ' l | )
- n CISCO
Partner Partner Partner C15¢o _
. Moowlt
@ i EE
i % ) ATSMATON
& RedHat PP lpath [ \swiis




OUR EXPERTISE

Systems Limited's highly skilled team provides its clients an ever-expanding range of digitally driven services, We
believe in a customer-centric and technology-agnostic approach in delivering robust technology solutions Our
seasoned experts are an extension of our clients’ team as a ene-stop-shop for all their digital needs.

Cloud & Technology
Services

Retail & Digital
Commerce

b L - MU

Intalligent

m g‘jn—Aud.
L

OUR OFFERINGS

G HauteLogic @ é

oot Do divered Right! "m Connector Partmr mmnhuon
Highly scalable, reliable, and Achieve omnichannel, unified commerce A powerful Bl platform for the retad
configurable B2B data between your existing eCommernce industry that offers over 2,500
intercharge with EDland non-EDl  implementation and Microsoft Dynamics built-n metncs and hundreds of KPls,
trading partners. 365 for Finance and Operaticns, reports, and dashbeards.

@ ll'T
TrIPS SYSECI Retail Analytics

Your go-to solution for Manage, share, and steer the vast A state-of-the-art suite of modular
acturate, efficent travel capabilities of your staff, focus on your tools for inteiligent fashion supply
insurance policy management. critical talent, and support stratege HR chan and direct-to-consumer
processes. operations
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ORGANIZATIONAL STRENGTHS

PROVEN TRACK RECORD
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CLIENT TESTIMONIALS
e

5é

“This is avery proud moment for Pakistan and the
Pakistan tech industry. Congratulatons to the whole
Systems tearn and its leadership on thes aspirationat
moment There is more to come, but there will always

be the first one”

Kashif UL Haq
Managng Director, Cisco Pakistan

o

"The road to success s ltered with obstactes. While
others gave up ard turned around, Systems Limited
push ther way through | know that this achievernent
i5 only one of many that the future will bring,
Congratulations!"

General Manager IT. Engro Corporation

K-ELECTRIC

Fooegy THe Waves L10s

"Systems is our very own Pakistani tech gant. It isno

surpnse that it has made it to this Forbes lst Thiss a

proud mement for each and every Pakistani and also

reflective of the great tech services provider's

positioning which all the Pakistani tech companies

# can bensfit from on a global scale. Systems has been

the first and I'm sure they, along with more

companes to follow, will contirue making Pakistan

proud Congrats to all those who made thes happen'”

Faizan Mahmood
Chief nformation Dfficer, Karachi Electric

2>

Xoswowipe

*This i big news and a proud moment for each and
every compaty and individual in Pakistan
Congratulations to everyone who contributed Wish
we could have more representation from our country
to this prestigious list. Speaks volumes of our caliber ”

Kashif Gaya
Chief Executive Officer, Euronet Pakistan

l“o“.
Khaadi

*Systems Limited's ability to delwer on large-scale
projects is second to none. We are extremely
impressed with ther industry-savvy business
consultants and technical team whose open,
respensive and highly professional approach to the
project helped us go live in under six months”
Rehan Qadri
Director Digital Busmess Transformation, Khaadi

qudn

“We had engaged Systems Limited at a very crucial
time in our business tife cycle, and ronically, just
before a global crisis undike any other in modaerm

vmes Systems Limited had a well-desigred strategy
that was Nawlessly executed, helping us transform
our crucial business processes to meet present day
challenges In our dictionary, if you look up the
meaning of "rusted technology partner’, you will find
wo words: Systemns Limitad "

Mani Masood
Director IT Systems & Applications, ONBN

)




KEY FINANCIAL &
BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS




SYSTEMS LIMITED 2020
YEAR IN REVIEW

KEY INDICATORS

Sustainable growth in
profits and revenue

!

! : .

Revenue PBT

exr 9,876 Million rkr 2,282 Million PKR '|7 78

Increase

Increase in Shareholder’s Value & ROCE = 28%

Intrease

Increase

Increase in Breakup Value @————654.01

Revenue from Software Services e—e 80%

Technology Employeese ® 3500+




BUSINESS ANALYSIS

The Business has achieved a tremendous growth in revenue from the Last year The main growth engines were following
key verticals across the globe

CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED
REVENUE BREAKUP REVENUE -
BY VERTICALS TOP 10 CUSTOMERS

® Teloo

@ BFSservices

@® Retal 8CPG

® BPO

® Technology

Government Sectar
Cthers

@

Furthermare, to sustain the growth, the company follows a diversification strategy that aims to strengthen its portfolio
acrass the globe.

CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED
REVENUE BREAKUP REVENUE BREAKUP
BY REGION BY OFFERINGS

Region wise
® North America @ Europs @ MiddleEast @ Pakistan @ Digital Transformation @ Managed Services & BRPO




KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
PROFIT AND LOSS SUMMARY FOR THE LAST SIX YEARS (AMOUNT IN PKR)

Standalone

<06

Revanue FEIITBEA45 5340560742  3TELESTSE  29MBN0003 2680323531 226328035
Cost of sakes 4TBTE6027 357278527 2582618930 2048651835 1884619823 1535746756
Gross profit 2.797.980,818 1776380215  1,178,536,829 862,106,068 795,703,708 721,543,595

Distrution expenses 9959355 46585535 13712935 37287199 659,625,714
Administratve experses 448471086 3773684516 266947 433 2514483903 262,301,728
Other operating expences 139025203 118 366,992 87722400 30,975860 13348597
Fnance cost 904,477 ¥a34 e W.709,005 3.213,088 2721044

Other income 342 546,042 437742627
Profit before taxation 13926723786 L055.107,775
Taxation 28540667 45624604
Profit after taxation 21930914942 1364,131.709 100948317

184%6.151
487,432,442

33,145,436

505,519,594

91363242
485 505,754
12591024
452,514,730

473,376,038 515,079,946

Consolidated

TEISBAR06E S5323822442 3832429037
5766301806 3795122571 2683690636

3112,02,038
222253390

2470725663
1653.126.206

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit 37,1 v 2,369 346,463 1528.799.871 14673440 689568137 771599, 457
Distrinution expenses HOEAFES 178002387 5053939 56038644 47,756,830 72778.4%2
Adminitrative expenses 72230556 gog n6E, 295 572629509 484005420 354,208,651 3422955685
Dthser operating expenses 220139525 15353200 138,347,792 135834095 38329,724 23725609
Finance cost 65659676 47,022,127 27073044 15,786,491 5497632 3,065.365
Dther incorme » IWA9ISTS  40B.4605S] 114,980,508 2833957 36505926

Profit before taxation 2 5 16012351 108,670,860 5649154 255 a72. 48 4182394831

Taxation : 33.28\658 47387580 B4357% (8,459 658) 12,991,024
Profit after taxation 264,287,683 1567.932,821 1.061263,280 560,718,543 481214 469 405,248 807

DUPONT ANALYSIS

Profit 29350942 Roverse 71513 768,845 Total accots 43453018 ROE

Revenue 1513766845 Total assets 4434539090 Equny 1.2535680051 30“

Profit margin 3 Assels turnover Eguity mulUplies !
208

Profit 1.364,137,709 Reveroe 5346566742 Toral assets 657117 215682 :

Revanue S346568,742 Total assets 6, 717,215,682 Equity 5216,466310 26“

Profit margin ® Assets turnover ! Equity multiplier

SHARIAH RELATED KEY INFORMATION

Particular As at 31-Dec-2020 Threshold
nierest beanng debis Lo total assets 16% < 37%
' ompliant mvestments to total assets 02% <33%
0.0% < 5%
28% >25%

381 < MV of share




STANDALONE

Profitability Ratios 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Gross Profit ratio (%) 37% 33% 31% 30% 30% 33%
Net Profit ratio (%) 29% 26% 27% 16% 19% 20%
EBITDA Margin (%) 34% 31% 32% 20% 22% 24%
Return on Equity (%) 30% 26% 25% 15% 18% 22%
Return on Capital Employed (%) 30% 27% 26% 15% 7% 19%
Capital Structure
Debt to equity ratio 020 013 omn 0086 - -
Interest Coverage {times) 4086 2781 3378 3490 W84 77N
Liquidity Ratios ,
Current ratio {times) 349 354 421 459 1004 6.80
Quick ratio (times) 198 154 097 127 20 213
Cash to Current Liabilities (times) on 081 044 073 074 041
Investment
EPS Basic (PKR) '17;5:8 1nos 81s 424 464 414
EPS Diluted (PXR) 1731 1095 816 423 461 409
Price to earning ratio 2374 n2s 1342 1743 1823 1981
Dividend Payout ratio (%) 20% 20% 24% 41% 40% 30%
Break-up value per share {PKR) 5821 4223 36.35 2872 26.26 2255

CONSOLIDATED
Profitability Ratios 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Gross Profit ratio {5) 33% 31% 29% 30% 29% 32%
Net Profit ratio (%) 22% 21% 20% 5% 15% 16%
EBITDA Margin (%) m 25% 27% 21% 22% 23%
Return on Equity {3 28% 28% 25% 7% 17% 17%
Return on Capital Employed (%) - 26% 27% 25% 17% 17% 7%
Capital Structure
Debt to equity (times| o021 0.12 omn 0.07 - -
Interest Coverage (times) an 2828 2686 2977 B172 10855
Liquidity Ratios -
Current ratio {times) 306 329 348 391 86 6.20
Quick ratio (bmes) 196 162 118 144 204 229
Cash to Current Liabilities (times) 096 090 065 094 034 051
Investment
EPS Basic (PXR) 17.78 1286 B72 5N 438 375
EPS Diluted (PXR) 1743 1275 868 510 436 in

Break-up value per share {PKR) B401 4476 3715 2884 2521 2181




FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Standalone Revenue
P indllion) CAGS - 27 7501
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Standalone - Net Profit 2.
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Standalane - Liquidity Ratios Consolidated - Breakup Value
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HUMAN CAPITAL
DIVISION




HUMAN CAPITAL DIVISION

CHRO’'S MESSAGE

l\’n".-' : )
everyone at Systems Limited bas maintaine
unoredictable times of this Global Pandemit

Ouwr commitmen
way Systems ha ained steady during
indeed nptan ious notable advancements

company as a whole, V
f looking for new and innovative /S 10 1Mpro
[ onal make the overall job exp

r

™~ ™

3500+

Employees

Q ..I_.
Q) ° ) da =
10+ 1000+ 270+

Global New Hires Training
Faotprints 2020 Sessions




HCD - BUILDING BLOCKS

Systems is a dynamic and employee-driven company. Our workforce, their expertise and talent s our strength, that =
what we define as the heart of our business. We groom and nurture our talent and believe in a long-term association
with them. The HCD-HR team at Systems is tirelessly ensuring at all times that "our people” are provided with the
most comfortable environment to work in. The HR team functions as an incubator of Talent - always on the lookout
for briliant minds around the globe. Not just attracting the best talent into the company but also supporting them in
becoming a part of the company and delivering results. This potent team of young, transformative individuals works
diligently to provide sophisticated and timely responses to employee ssues and resolves them effectively.

TALENT ACQUISITION LEARNING & CAPABILITY

(always on the hunt for extraordinary DEVELOPMENT

intetlectuals) (providing limitiess opportunities to

Recruitment Drives develop employees)

Career Fairs & Networking Nights Leadership Development University

Fresh Grads Hiring & Onboarding Training & Development

lnternshlpg Personzal Development

Lateral Hiring Capacity Building

Employee Referrals International Transfers

Talent Pipeline Management Grand Performance Review and
Project Performance Review

“WE ARE THE PEOPLE
FOR OUR PEOPLE"

EMPLOYEE EMPOWERMENT

PEOPLE & CULTURE

(giving employees confidence to {aiming to make our people content)
exel) Employee Engagement Activities
Open Communication Celebrations and Recreational
Development Programs for High Activities

Potentials Employee Friendly Meets &
Continuous Engagement Competitions

Succession Planning Framework Diversity and Inclusion Programs
Performance Evaluation, Monitoring Volunteer Opportunities

and Motivation

Rewards & Benefits




SUNNER U 74 1MAS SARID
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CULTURAL DRIVES - WE VALUE OUR PEOPLE
CANDID WITH CEO

Asif Peer’s had an interactive session with Fresh Grads 2020, where he shared his success story, learnings and
industry challenges Future expectations and L&D opportunities were also discussed from both sides

WHISTLE BLOWING POLICY ROADSHOWS
In continuation to Systems' commitment to create and maintain a culture of openness and transparancy, this policy
was articulated which encourages employees 1o raise their voice regarding any inappropriate/unethical behavior

LOCKDOWN EID SELFIE COMPETITION

The idea behind this competition was to engage our employees on this festive occasion during lockdown to bring a
little positivity and a much needed reason to celebrate. Thes initiative helped us to establish a connect with employess
who were working from home,

CELEBRATED 73 YEARS OF PAKISTAN

Systems Limited celebrated Independence Day with full fervor and enthusiasm yet again this year. Flag hoisting
ceremony and sweet favors; among other activities were held in our Lahore and Karachi offices

WOMEN'S DAY CELEBRATIONS
Systems Limited celebrated Women's Day with a small token of appreciation for all our female coworkers at
Systems. Flowers, greeting cards and chocolates were distrnibuted

SYSVISTECH GOT TALENT

On the occasion of Exd UL Azha, Systems initiated a ureque platform for its employees to showcase thair talent and
connect in a fun and retaxed envrronment. Winner & runner-up recerved cash prizes

PINKTOBER 2020

Pink ribbons were distributed as a part of Pinktober Systems Breast Cancer Awareness Campaign




SYSTEMS
RECREATIONAL CLUB

The Systems Recreatsonal Club [SRC) despite the
Pandemic engaged with the employees and ensured
that there were continuous positive actinties in order
to uplft the spirits. The club operates to provide
entertainment throughout the year Last vyear's
activities include a Musical Night, Systems Olympics,
Exdi  Distnbution, Winter Hoodies and various
Facebook Competitions




LUMS - SYSVISTECH LEADERSHIP UNIVERSITY

SYED BABAR ALl ooounsesy

ESTLAE G a

TOPIC SESSION 4

TEAM

LEADERSHIP
LEARNING

FROM
OTHERS

Systemns Group has partnered wath REDC LUMS
to establish the SysVislech Leadership
University. This customized intervention s
designed for fast track executives that have the
capacity ta contribute strategically and l=2ad the
organization in the future. The st Module
(Leadership for Performance Excelience) has
been attended by 37 particpants from the group
companies (Pakistan, UAE, Germany & USA)

CAMPUS DRIVES
AND ONBOARDING

® Campus job fairs & graduate online directones were processed from top tier universities as part of employer
branding strategy

® 124 fresh graduates were onboarded throughout the year in different batches A comprehensive Onboarding plan
was |nitiated In which fresh grads were gngaged In multiple interventions which were helpful in smooth
onboarding and career development




y

FACILITY AND ENVIRONMENT

Our campuses are built on the idea of being a "home away from
home" for our peaple. We prowvide a2 comfortable erwironment where
resources can think, design & deliver world class solutions.

GEO EXPANSION

ISLAMABAD OFFICE
With the rse in demand for digital transformation serwvices,
continuous growth and business expansion; Systems Limited open
doors to its new office in Islamabad Office is furnished with all the
latest facilities & equipment

MULTAN OFFICE - COMING SOON
2021, another location becoming operational scon with a capacity of
200 Tearn members in Multan



SAFETY AND HEALTH FIRST

® During the unprecedented time of Covid-13, We remained connected to our employees through multiple platforms
during lockdown

® Provided masks and gloves to resources and placed disinfection tunnels on entrances and exits. Qur campus is fully
equipped with sanitizers on all floors

® Delivered more than 400 machines to our BPC employees at their residence

® Provided signed SLD forms to resources so that they don't face any mconvensences on their way the to work.
® Covd-19 awareness sessions were held across the organizaton

® Work from Home effectiveness sessions were conducted with all competencies

¢ Recapturing the Perspective sessions - covid-19 repercussions and future outlook




CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

9 Systems has undertaken the
responsibility to construct and

——c——— maintain a Secondary School n
o . collaboration with TCF

Contributed in fundrassing of #l
Aman Foundation to support
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the treatment of Cownd18
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CODE OF CONDUCT

FOR SUPER SYSTEMS FAMILY

Systems Limited is truly committed to the highest standards of ethics
and integrity when working with different stakeholders every day. We
rely onour “Employee Code of Conduct” in order to guide and align our
behaviors while we make business decisions. The principles stated in
our "Employee Code of Conduct" apply to all aspects of our business
It outlines our values and supports our commitment to ethical and
honest conduct and compliance with all laws, rules and regulations,
and our company policies, procedures and standards

Systems Limited holds all employees responsible for carrying out and
monitoring compliance with this commitment. If any employee be-
comes aware of any violation of a legal or ethical obligation, or any
unfair or improper treatment of personnel related to the company,
they must immediately report the matter to the Human Resources De-
partment so that it can be investigated right away. In this manner, we
can take all necessary steps to investigate any petential violations of
our policy and can take appropriate action to correct any violations or
incarrect perceptions that are found to exist.

CONFLICT OF
INTEREST POLICY

Our employees are expected to devote their best efforts and
attention to the performance of their jobs. They are expected
to use good judgment and adhere to high ethical standards
and avoid situations that create potential conflict between the
employee’s personal interests and the interests of the
Company. The conflict of interest exists when the employee’s
loyalties or actions are divided between the Company's
interests and to those of another, such as, competitors,
suppliers or customers

Dedication to the company and ensuring that all possible
issues that may be considered conflicts of interest are avoided
at all costs by employees and they make sure that they refrain
from engaging with people who may be a red flag in that
aspect as well

As we treat our employees as our ultimate assets , we at
Systems Limited require the utmost commitment of all our
employees




SUSTAINABILITY
FRAMEWORK




SUSTAINABILITY/ESG/RISK
MANAGEMENT POLICY

A

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORT

AS an impartamt part of the 2020 Amnual report, a sustainable development report has been Lullt in order to help investors,
shareholders and stakeholders access the mformation on the development strategy and business operations in terms of sustanable
development of Systems Limated

In this report, signficant areas are identihed based on a combination of stakehaolders' interests and their impacts on Systems Limited

This report was developad for the period of January 01 2020 - December 31 2020 within the scope of Systems Limited and based on
the Global Reparting | RI|

THE SUSTAINABILITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN OF SYSTEMS LIMITED

Based on bushess orientaton, Systems Limited has developed a sustainable development plan to ensure the batance of three factors
Economic development, Community support and Erwironmental protection Further, the action planis aso aligned in accordance with
the UN's sustainable development goals and the GRI Standards

FIELD | ACTION 2020 RESULTS REFERENCE TO CRITERIA
' PLANNING
[ UN'S SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT GRI
GOALS STANDARDS |
Ecoromy | * Ensunng good growth * Revenue and profit exceeded the g ! GRI 2N
of fimancial indicators sat plan, growing respectively ! GRi203
3% and 38%. GR1 204

* Promaoting research ard
development platforms « Establishing a diverse ecosysten

and sotutions based an of integrated platfoems developed
rew technology trends domestically that help
organizatons and busnesses
= Enhancing technology enable digital transformaton as
access to the people veell as improving competitiveness

Controlled e-waste through
devesing a polcy whereby old
computers and laptops were
distrivuted among the low income
employees as well as low income |
individuals outside of the Company

?x‘%
A% Y susTamasLe
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viater taps are located) that the employees
should refran from wastage of water and
that taps should be opened for smaller
durations

* Reducing waste further, tha Company has
also implemented cloud sensers thereby,
reducing the nead to purchase o touse
heavy duty storage machines and servers

FIELD | ACTION 2020 RESULTS REFERENCE TO CRITERIA
PLANNING UN'S
SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT CRI
COALS STANDARDS
Society * Creating decent work + Creating decent work and stable income GRI 407
and stable income for for 3500 people. GRI403
tens of thousands of « Established Sys\Visfech University in GRI 404
people. collaboration with LUMS to ensure GRI 405
+ Making Systems development of leadership skills in the GRI 406
Lirnited & learning young professaonals GRI 407
orgarszation with * Spending PKR 13.2 Million on traning GRI413
constantly updating activities wath 158 training sessions
pobicies and training benefiting 3500 employees.
programs for all * Imglermented a code of conduct and a
employees soual harassment policy to guarantee and
* Praviding a gender ensure protection and safeguarding of its
equsl place towork ta employses — strict action is taken aganst
prevent nequakities and any person remotely breaching any
promoting inclusion of provision of the code of cordduct and /or the
warnen in all departments | sexual harassment palicy. The Company
followvs stringent rules and code of conduct.
|Endronment | « incressing theusage of | + Generally, by virtue of the business of the GRI302
renewable energy. Company, ks operations does not cause any — GRI 303
recyclable resourcesand | direct negative impact on the environment GRI 307
enzrgy-saving materials | {in terms of emission of todc gases, noise
in Systems Limited pollution, carbon emissions, etc). However,
5 the Company still takes active steps to
+ Pericdicaily evaluating | reduce any negative impact that it may
the discharges for bmely | vicariously cause to the ervironment.
handiing and minimsing | + Resultant of the pandemic, the company 5{5 a—
amironmental pollutan has implemented an crganization wke work
* Applying advanced from hame policy which lead to reduced
management standards electricity and other overheads,
and pracedures inthe * Digitization of all systemns in order to
Corporation's operations || promote papertess functions inaddition,
and sarvice provision for - | the Cempany has designated spots for
customers printers rather than mstalling a printer with
* Rasing employee each work station Moreover, the Compary
awarenzss of energy has also mpesed a liret on the number of
sawng and emvironmental | pages that may be printed by the employee
protection against climate | ina specfiad span of time. Further, the
change Company promates duplex prnting and
activety trains its employees to recycle
paper when need be.
« With respect to water consumption, the
Company also promates water saving by
putting a notice on all locations {where

&) wenwesGoALS |

UMTID RATVONG




SHAREHOLDER'S
KEY INFORMATION




EQUITY & SHAREHOLDING INFORMATION

EQUITY & STOCK INFORMATION _
_AUTHORIZED CAPITAL X
“NUMBER OF SHARES
_PAR VALUE

" TYPE OF SHARES

SHAREHOLDING BREAKUP

® Directors and Executives
@ Ex-Employees
@ Foreign Companies
@ Associated Companies, undertakings & related parties
@ Banks, DFIs, Insurance, Pension funds, NBFls
@ Mutual Funds
@ Public Sector Companies & Corporations
General Public / Others

DIVIDEND PAYMENT HISTORY

Dividend
(PKR Millions)
450 438
400 il
350

300
250

277
207 195 224
- 200
150
100
50

20716 2017 2018 2019 2020




PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING - SYSTEMS LIMITED

Tha Shareholding in the Company as at 31 December 2020 is as follows:

Number of Number of Percentage of

Sherehokder Cetegory Shareholders shares held holding

Directors and their spouses and chidren n 416038 333%%
Ex-Employees 22 213495667 17.13%
Executives 25 1172024 0.94%
Foreign Companes 21 235640 1923%
Associated Companes, undertakings & related parties 2 6825020 556%
Banks, DFls, nsurance, Persion funds, NBFis 74 6,161,200 494%
Mutual Funds 72 NB02,760 247%
Public Sector Companves & Corporations 26 787,498 063%
General Public / Others 2393 10833388 2 889%
Total 2646 124606015 100%

Pattern of Shareholding for the year 31 December 2020

Number of Shareholding Total Shares held
Shareholders From To
803 1 100 34,589
388 101 500 .08
763 501 1000 499,297
359 1001 5,000 832376
00 5.001 10,000 729,118
37 10,001 15,000 450,930
29 15.001 20,000 509,405
14 20,001 25,000 323458
8 25,001 30,000 211503
1 30,001 35,000 360536
7 35,001 40,000 255,494
] 40,001 45000 41300
3 45,001 50,000 287,860
5 50,001 55,000 270939
3 55.00 60,000 175,50
4 60,001 65,000 245,700
- 65,001 70,000 274,000
3 70,001 75,000 218778
6 75,001 80,000 483017
4 80,001 85,000 330,300
3 85,001 90,000 262,250
2 90,001 95,000 181,700
2 100,001 05,000 208,276
3 105,001 110,000 321900
3 110,001 115.000 343,050
2 120,001 125,000 241450
2 125,001 130,000 257.306
1 135,001 140,000 137,200
2 145,001 150,000 296,773
1 150,001 55,000 154,650
P 55,001 0,000 394,712
2 165,001 170,000 336,859
1 170,001 175,000 712%
1 175,001 180,000 177,540
1 80,001 185,000 184413
1 85,001 190,000 189,700
1 205,001 210,000 207 800
1 210,001 215,000 212,770
3 215,001 220,000 655,302
1 250,001 255,000 252,300
1 265,001 270,000 265,956
1 270,001 275,000 2725596
1 280,001 285,000 2B0.350
2 285,001 290,000 579079




Number of Shareholding

Total Shares held

Shareholders From To

1 320,001 325,000 324,663
1 325,001 330,000 325,750
1 330,001 335000 332,800
1 340,001 345000 342,630
2 345,001 350,000 657,569
1 380,001 3850 381550
1 390,001 395,000 394,035
3 355,001 400,000 398,599
i 45,00 420,000 43,300
1 465,001 470,000 465,800
2 550,001 555,000 1105,050
i 580,00 585,000 591600
7 520,000 625,000 623,900
1 655,001 660,000 657,756
3 670,00 675,000 673332
] 725,000 730,000 729,600
1 745,001 750,000 745,890
1 785,001 790,000 783,306
] 795,001 800.000 800,000
1 805,001 810,000 807,997
] 1050,001 1055,000 1051789
i 1070,000 1075000 1070.260
1 1075.001 1,080,000 1078,300
1 1175,001 1120,000 117,238
1 1255001 1.260.000 1258,800
2 1260,001 1,265,000 2,524,505
1 1330,001 1335000 1332201
7 1505,001 150,000 15%,000
1 1635,001 1640,000 1636210
1 1700,001 1705000 1703,275
1 1720,000 1725000 1722,200
1 1725001 1.730,000 1726136
i 1730,000 1735000 1731594
1 1940,001 1345000 1940,295
1 2,435,001 2450000 2488438
i 250,001 251,000 2510600
1 3,455,001 3.460,000 3458934
3 3,435,000 3500,000 3439900
1 4,190,001 4,715,000 4T14B80
1 4,505,001 4,610,000 4606836
7 5,495,001 5,500,000 5500000
1 5,300,001 5,105,000 5100160
1 7,435,001 7,440,000 7439900
] 7,535,001 7540000 7537100
1 7.810,001 7815000 7812190
i 7,895,001 7,900,000 7898267 _
1 15,175,001 15,180,000 B178781_

2646 114021692 114 466600 124 506,015

Information of shareholding as at 31 December 2020 as required under Code of Corporate Governance is as follows

Category Shareholder's category

1 Asseciated Companies, undertakings and related partes
IGHINVESTMENT { PVT)LTD
M/S B.R.R. GUARDIAN MODARBA

2 Mutual Funds
CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN ISLAMIC FUND
CDC - TRUSTEE NBP STOCK FUND
COC- TRUSTEE ATLAS STOCK MARKET FUND
CDC - TRUSTEE AL-AMEEN SHARIAH STOCK FUND
CDC - TRUSTEE FAYSAL SLAMIC DEDICATED EQUITY FUND
COC- TRUSTEE NBP ISLAMIC STOCK FUND

370%

13,934 1B63%
6,925,020 5.56%
25%,600 207%
1636270 1316
B0O,000 0.64%
745,830 0.60%
726,600 0.59%
554,650 0.45%



Category Shareholder’s category Number of shares held Percantage %

COC - TRUSTEE UBL STOCK ADVANTAGE FUND 554,400 044%
COC - TRUSTEE NBP ISLAMIC SARMAYA [ZAFA FUND 465,300 037%
COC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN TAHAFFUZ PENSIDN FUND - EQUITY SUB Fur 381550 03v%
COC - TRUSTEE AL MEEZAN MUTUAL FUND 325,750 026%
CDC - TRUSTEE ABL STOCK FUND 283,150 023%
CDC - TRUSTEE ATLAS ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 252300 0.20%
CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 218470 0.8%
COC - TRUSTEE FAYSAL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 207800 0%
COC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP STOCK FUND ®ES520 0%
COC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN BALANCED FUND 154650 or%
MCBFSL - TRUSTEE ABL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 147,500 02%
COC- TRUSTEE NAFA SLAMIC PENSION FUND EQUATY ACCOUNT 27850 0.0%
COC-TRUSTEE AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC RET. SAV. FUND-EQUITY SUB FUND n&s50 009%
CDC - TRUSTEE UBL RETIREMENT SAVINGS FUND - EQUNTY SUB FUND 13500 009%
AZIMUT PAKISTAN EQUITY FUND [0€1C) PLC 07,000 009%
CDC - TRUSTEE FAYSAL STOCK FUND 03655 008%
COC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 91500 007%
CDC - TRUSTEE NBP BALANCED FUND 75550 006%
CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP ALPHA FUND 73500 006%
COC - TRUSTEE AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 66,400 005%
CDC - TRUSTEE APIF - EQUITY SUB FUND 66,500 005%
CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP VALUE FUND 62,750 0.05%
CDC - TRUSTEE NBP SARMAYA IZAFA FUND 61750 005%
CDC TRUSTEE - MEEZAN DEDICATED EQUITY FUND 60,700 0.05%
CDC - TRUSTEE APF-£QUATY SUB FUND 59,700 0.05%
CDC - TRUSTEE NB® ISLAMIC ACTIVE ALLOCATION EQUITY FUND 59,650 0.05%
COC-TRUSTEE ALHAMRA ISLAMIC PENSION FUND - EQUITY SUB FUND 49,500 004%
CDC - TRUSTEE ATLAS ISLAMIC DEDICATED STOCK FUND 36,500 003%
COC - TRUSTEE ALF ALAH GHP ISLAMIC DEDICATED EQUITY FUND 34,240 003%
WELLCOME PAKISTAN UMITED PROVIDENT FUND 31650 003%
COC-TRUSTEE HBL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 26,500 0.02%
COC - TRUSTEE UBL ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 25,900 0.02%
CDC - TRUSTEE FAYSAL ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 25,800 002%
TRUSTEE-THE KOT ADDU POWER CO. LTD. EMPLOYEES PENSION FUNI 20,000 0.02%
TRUSTEES OF PAXISTAN MOSILE COMMUNICATION LTO-PROVIDENT f 8,250 007
COC - TRUSTEE AXD INDEX TRACKER FUND 17,550 00m%
EFG HERMES PAXISTAN LIMITED - MF 2,500 007%
PAKISTAN HUMAN DEVELOPMENT FUND 1230 007
ENGRO FERTIUZERS UMITED NON-MPT EMPLOYEES GRATUITY FUNC 0,050 007%
CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST HABIB STOCK FUND 8,600 007%
BYCO PETROLEUM PAKISTAN LIMITED EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUNC BSW 007s
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL ISLAMIC EQUITY FUND 7,965 007%
THAL UMITED EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND 7.00

CDC - TRUSTEE AGIPF EGUITY SUB-FUND 6,900

COC - TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC PRINCIPAL PROTECTED FUND -1 5,900

CDC-TRUSTEE FIRST HABIE ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 5,800

TRUSTEE-THE KOT ADDU POWER CD LTD EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT #1 5,500

CDC - TRUSTEE HBL IPF EQUITY SUB FUND 500

CDC - TRUSTEE AGPF EQUITY SUB-FUND 4570

BIPL SECURITIES LIMITED - M7 4500

N U A SECURITIES (PRIVATE| LIMITED - MF 2,900

BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB PAK (PVT) LTD EMP PROV FUND 2,350

THAL UMITED EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND 2,320
THE CRESCENT TEXTILE MILLS LTD EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND 200
COC - TRUSTEE UBL DEDKCATED EQUITY FUND 2,050
ARIF HABIB LIMITED - MF 2,000
TRUSTEE-ANPL MANAGEMENT STAFF PROVIDENT FUND 1700
TRUSTEE-ANPL MANAGEMENT STAFF GRATUITY FUND 165¢
THAL LIMITED EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFIT FUND 1150
BAWA SECURITIES {PVT) LTD. - MF B0O
NOVO NORDISK PRARMA (PVT) LTD, STAFF PROV. FUND 800
TRUSTEES UBL FUND MANAGERS LTD. EMPLOYEES GRATUITY FUND 650
GATRON {INDUSTRIES) LIMITED STAFF PROVIDENT FUND 550
ADAM SECURITIES LTD. - MF 500
TRUSTEES UBL FUND MANAGERS LTD. EMPLOYEE PROVIDENT FUND 400
BVA [PRIVATE) LIMITED EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND 250

11,802,760




3 Directoes and their spouses and children

Arshad Masood 17667219 1418%
Aerar Hussain 7,864,440 631%
Aazaz Hussain IRRY Grantor TR 7888267 6.34%
Asil Peer B8.040,455 5.45%
Nealam Hussain Wae21 0.08%
Romana Abdullah 550 0.00%
Asif Jooma 603 0.00%
Ayaz Dawood 32500 0.03%
Syed Muhammad Shabbar Zaidi 553 0.00%
Omar Sazed 1000 0.00%
Tahir Masaud 110 0.00%
41610318 33.39%
4 Ex-Employees 21349667 17.13%
5 Executives 1172024 094%
6 Public Sector Companies and Corporations 787,498 063%
7 Banks DFls and NBFls, Insurance Companiis, Medarabas end Pension Funds 5,%1200 494%
8 Foreign Companies
TUNDRASUSTANABLE FRONTIER FUND 7537, 00 605%
GREYHOUND ASIA FUND UMITED 4,114,880 330%
EVLI EMERGING FRONTIER FUND 3499500 281%
DUET EM FRONTIER FUND LIMMITED 1722200 136%
CONSILIUM EXTENDED OPPORTUNITIES FUND LP 1262380 1056
EAST CAPITAL 1258800 101%
EFG HERMES OMAN LLC 1079300 087%
JOM SILKKITIE ASIA EQUITY INVESTMENT FUND 623200 050%
PEDDER STREET ASIA ABSOLUTE RETURN MASTER FUND UMITED 591600 047%
T. ROWE PRICE FUNDS SICAV - FRONTIER MKTS EQ F1000912600018]) 419,300 034%
AL MEHWAR COMMERCIAL INVESTMENTS LLC 348570 0.28%
COELI SICAV | - FRONTIER MARKETS FUND 342630 027%
MCKINLEY CAPITAL MEASA FUND CEXC LIMITED 3322800 027%
RWC FRONTIER MARKETS EQUITY MASTER FUND LIMITED 218,90 018%
ARISTEA SICAV NEW FRONTIERS EQUITY FUND 188,700 0.15%
SILKINVEST NEW HORIZONS FRONTIER FUND 137.200 0
ACADIAN FRONTIER MARKETS EQUITY FUND 90,%0 007%
SILK-AFRICAN AND FRONTIER MARKETS FUND 77,000 0.08%
THE FAR EAST VALUE MASTER FUND LIMITED 74000 006%
KYKLDS CAPITAL PARTNERS LP 28,000 0.02%
RWC FUNDS-RWC NEXT GENERATION EMERGING MARKETS EQUITY FUND 15600 00%6
23964140 V23%
9 Others/Public ¥,633388 859%
124,606,015 100.00%
Shareholders holding five percent or more vating rights
Arshad Masood 17667219 14.18%
Aezaz Hussen 7564440 B3ITH
Aezaz Hussam IRRV Grantor TR 7.898.267 634%
Asif Peer 8,040,455 645%
Tundra Sustainable Frontier Fund 753790 6.05%

Salma Humayun Msan 7:45%0 $98%




E-Processing Systems (Pvt) Limited
information of shareholding as at 31 December 2020 as required under Code of Corporate Gavernance 15 as follows

Category Shareholder's category feumber of shares held Percentage %
1 Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties -
M/S Systems Limited 179507 44.60%
179,507 44 60%
2 Mutual Funds - -
3 Dwrectors and their spouses and children
Aezaz Hussain 1 0.00%
Asf Peer 13948 347%
Mubammad Yar Hraj 100,612 2500%
Neelam Hussain 13947 347%
128,508 3193%
4 Executives - -
S Foreign Investment (IFC| 80,491 20.00%
6 Banks DFls and NBFs, Insurance Companies, Medarabas and Pension
Funds
7 Others 13847 347%
402,453 100%
Shareholders hotdng five percent or more voting rnghts
Muhammad Yar Hraj 100,612 25.00%
Systems Limited 179507 4460%
International Finance Corparation 80,491 20.00%
360,610 8960%




PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING - GROUP COMPANIES

The Shareholding in the Company as at 31 December 2020 is as follows:

TechVista Systems FZ-LLC
The Shareholding In the Company as at 31 December 2020 Is as follows:

Number of Percentage of
Shareholders Number ofshares held holding

Drectors and their spouses and minar childeren - - -
Associated Compames, undertakings and related partwes 1 50 100%
Banks, DFls and NBFs - . .
Irsurance Companies - - -
Meodarbas and Mutual Funds - - -
General Public . . .
Joint Steck Companies - - -
Others . . .

1 50 100%
Sytams Ventures [Pvt] Limited
The Shareholding in the Company as at 31 December 2020 is as follows:

Number of Percentage of
Shareholdors Number ofshares held holding

Dwrectors and their spouses and minor childeren - - -
Associated Compares, undertakings and related partes 9998 89.958%
Banks, DFls ard NBFis - . .
Ireurance Companies - - -
Meodarbes and Mutual Funds - . .
General Public - - -
Joint Stock Compeanies - - -
Others 2 2 0.02%

2 10,000 100%
SUS (Pt} Limited

The Shareholding in the Company as at 31 December 2020 is as follows:

Number of Porcontage of
Shareholders Number ofshares held holding
Drectors and their spouses and minor childeren - - -
Associated Companies, undertakings and related perties 1 9499 2499%
Banks, DFls and NBF s - - -
Irsurance Companies - - -
Modarbas and Mutual Funds - - -
General Public - x .
Joint Stock Companies . . .
Others 1 501 507%

2 10,000 100%




NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given to all the members of Systems Limited {the “Company*) that 44 Annual General Meeting
of the Company is scheduled to be held on 31 March 2027 at 11:00 AM. through video-link (provided below| to
transact the business mentioned hereinafter.

Please note that due to the surge in Covid-19 cases and in order to control the spread of the virus, the Company
shall hold its meeting only through video-link by registrations on the details provided at the end of this Naotice.

Please note that registration for the meeting shall close at 10.50am on 31 March 2021 after which participants /
shareholders shall be unable to register for the meeting. Any and all participants / shareholders who would have
registered within the prescribed timeline shall receive a meeting link and shall be able to access the meeting
therefore, the Company emphasizes on timely regrstrations in a manner provided below.

Ordinary Business;

1

2.

To confirm the mirutes of the last Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 03 December 2020 (provided in
the Annual Report).

To, receive, consider and adopt the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2020 together with the Board of Directors’ and Auditors’ report thereon.

To approve and declare cash dividend @ 35 % ie. PKR 3.5/ per share, for the year ended 31 December
2020 and issuance of bonus shares at 0% ie 1share for every 10 shares, as recommended by the Board
of Directors.

To appoint Auditors and fix thesr remuneration for the year ending 31 December 2021 The Board of
Drrectors upon recommendation of audit committee has recommended M/s EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered
Accountants, being eligible for re-appointment as auditors of the company for the year ending 31
December 2021

Special Business

5.

To consider and, if thought fit, pass, with or without modification, the following special resolution in terms
of Section 199 of Companies Act, 2017, for renewal of {a) investment in the form of loan to SUS Jaint
Venture (Private) Limited, a subsidiary company of the Company, of Rs. 50 million; (b) investment in the
form of loan and guarantee in UUS Joint Venture (Private) Limited, an associated company of the
Company, of Rs. 200 million; and (c) investment in the form of loan in E-Processing Systems (Private)
Limited, a subsidiary company of the Company, of Rs. 340 million;

“Resolved that the Company shall renew investment in the above mentiocned companies in the given
amounts on the terms and conditions to be contaned In the agreement to be executed between the
Company and the subsidiary in terms of Section 199 of Companies Act, 2017

*Resolved further that Mr. Muhammad Asif Peer, the Chief Executive of the Company (the “Authorized
Officer”) and / or Ms, Reohi Khan, Chiel Financial Officer, be and is hereby empowered and authorized to

undertake, execute and implement all the decisions in respect of the Investment and to take and do and/or
cause to be taken or done any/all necessary acts, deeds and things, and to take any or all necessary
actions which are or may be necessary, incidental and/or consequential to give effect to the aforesaid
resolution, including signing and execution of documents and agreements and to complete all necessary
legal formalities and to file all necessary documents as may be necessary or incidental for the purposes
of implementing the aforesaid resolution”.

To consider and, If thought fit, pass, with or without modification, the following special resolution in
accordance with Section 83 (1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2017 for issuance of shares other than right to an
individual as required by SECP, in line with the shareholders’ approval already obtained in the Annual
General Meeting dated 26 April 2019 to issue shares other than rights to employees of Visionet Systems.

"Resolved that the issuance of 400,000 shares through other than rights issue for cash consideration to
Mr. Jawad Khan at the price already approved by shareholders, as token of appreciation for his dedicated
contributions towards North American and European offshore businesses, be and is hereby approved.”




“Resolved further that Mr. Muhammad Asif Peer, the Chief Executive of the Company (the "Authorized
Officer”) or such other person delegated by him and / or Ms. Roohi Khan, Chief Financial Officer, be and is
hereby empowered and authorized to undertake, execute and implement all the decisiors in respect of the
said issuance and to take and do and/or cause to be taken or done any/all necessary acts, deeds and
things, and to take any or all necessary actions which are or may be necessary, incidental and/or
consequential to give effect to the aforesaid reselution, including signing and execution of documents and
agreements and to complete all necessary legal formalities and to file all necessary documents as may be
necessary or incidental for the purposes of implementing the aforesaid resolution.”

To approve material changes to the Company's Employee Stack Option Scheme, 2008, which inter alia
include the following:

a. Te amend clause 3.2 to remove the names of the members and to include the phrase “members
of the Human Resource and Compensation Committee of the Company *;

b To delete the defirition of "Lock-in Peniod” and insert a Special Lock-in Period for the CED/ Senior
Executives of the Company for sale of shares.

c To nsert definition of "vesting penod”® whach shall mean a pericd of two (2) years from the Date
of Grant

d  Toamend and approve minor linguistic changes in clauses 37,61, 77and 122

e. To amend clause 117 to state: "In case of a rights or bonus issue by the Company, the
Compensation Committee shall make fair/reasonable adjustments to the number of Options
granted or to the Exerdise Price in respect thereof for unvested Options.”

“Resolved that the changes to the Company’s Employee Stock Option Scheme be and is hereby
approved *

“Resolved further that Mr. Muhammad Asif Peer, the Chief Executive of the Company (the "Authorized
Officer*) or such other person delegated by him and / or Ms. Roohi Khan, Chief Financial Officer, be and is
hereby empowered and authorized to undertake, execute and implement all the decisiors in respect of the
said issuance and to take and do and/or cause to be taken or done any/all necessary acts, deeds and
things, and to take any or all necessary actions which are or may be necessary, incidental and/or
consequential to give effect to the aforesaid resolution, including signing and execution of documents and
agreements and to complete all necessary legal formalities and to file all necessary documents as may be
necessary or incidental for the purposes of implementing the aforesaid resolution.”

Other Business:

8. Any other Business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board

Saad Hasan Aslam 10 March, 2021
Company Secretary Lahore

NOTES:

1

The Share Transfer books of the Company will be closed from 25 March 2021 to 31 March 2021 (both
days inclusive). Transfer received at the address of M/s THK Associates (Pvt) Limited, Plot No. 32-C. Jami
Commercial Street 20 HA, Phase VI, Karach-75500. Pakistan at the close of business on 24 March 2021
will be treated in time for the purpose of above entitlement to the transferees.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another member as his/her proxy to
attend and vote in his/her place. Proxies completed in all respect, in order to be effective, must be received
at the Registered Office of the Company not less than forty eight (48) hours before the time of meeting.



3. Pursuant to the directive of the Securibes & Exchange Commission of Pakstan, CNIC numbers of
shareholders are mandatorily required to be mentioned on Dmndend Warrants. Shareholders are,
therefore, requested to submit a copy of their CNIC (if not already provided) to the Company Share
Registrar, M/s THK Associates (Pvt) Limited, Plot No. 32-C, Jami Commercial Street 2.DHA, Phase VI,
Karach-75500, Pakistan.

4. The Government of Pakistan through Finance Act, 2019 has made certain amendments in Section 150 of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby different rates are prescribed for deduction of withholding Tax
on the amount of dividend paid by the companies/banks. These tax rates are as follows:

(a) For filers of income tax returns 15%
{b) For non-fiters of income tax returns 30%

To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @15% instead of 30% all
shareholders whose names are not entered into the Active Tax- payers list {ATL} provided on the website
of FBR, despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to make sure that their names are entered into
ATL before the date of payment of the cash dividend, otherwise tax on their cash dividend will be
deducted @30% instead of 15%.

The joint shareholders are requested to provide shareholding proportions of principal shareholders &
joint shareholders as withholding tax will be determined separately on Filer/Non-filer status based on
their shareholding proportions otherwise it will be assumed that shares are equally held.

The Corporate shareholders having CDC account are required to have their National Tax Number (NTN)
updated with their respective participants, whereas physical shareholders should send a copy of their
NTN Certificate to the Company or Company’s Share Registrar, M/s. THK Associates (Put) Limited. The
chareholders while cending NTN or NTN Certificate, as the case may be, must quote Company name and
their respective folio numbers,

5. SECP through its notification SRO 787(1) /2014 dated September 8, 2014 has allowed the circulations of
Audited Financial Statement along with Notice of Annual General Meeting to the Members through e-mail
Therefore, all members of the Company who wish to receive soft copy of Annual Report are requested to
send their e-mail addresses. The consent form for electronic trarsmission could be downlcaded from the
Company Website: www.systemsitdcom. Audited financial statements & reports are being placed on the
aforesaid website

B All the account holders whose registration details are uploaded as per CDC Regulations shall authenticate
their identity by showing original CNIC at the time of attending the meeting, In case of corporate entity, a
certified copy of resolution of the Board of Directors / valid Power of Attorney having the name and
specimen signature of the nominee should be produced at the time of meeting.

7. In order to make process of payment of cash dividend more efficient, e-dividend mechanism has been
envisaged where shareholders can get amount of dividend credited into their respective bank accounts
electronically without any delay. In this way, dividends may be instantly credited to respective bank
accounts and there are no chances of dividend warrants getting lost in the post, undelivered or delivered
to the wrong address, etc. The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP] through Notice
No, 8(4) SM/CDC 2008 dated 5 April 2013 has advised all Listed Companies to adopt e-dividend
mechanism due to the benefits it entails for shareholders. In view of the above, you are hereby
encouraged to provide a dividend mandate in favour of e-dividend by providing dividend mandate form
duly filled in and signed

8 In order to faclitate voting and passing of resolution dunng the online webinar (accessible through the
Lnk provided below), the participants shall be given the option to "raise hand” in the webinar — which
shall be considered the participant's approval of the resolution Once the resolution is passed, particpants
shall be required to “lower hand® in order for the next resolution to be processed. The same process shall
be repeated for each resolution.

Statement under Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2017

This statement set out the material facts concemning the special business to be transacted at the annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 31 March 2021.

Agenda Item No. 5 '

Nature of information required to be disclosed pursuant to The Companies (Investment in Associated Companies
or Undertakings) Regulations, 2017, for renewal of investment in:




SUS Joint Venture (Put) Limited :
Ref.

Requirement
No q

lal Disclosures for all types of investments-
(A} Regarding associated company or associated undertaking. -

Relevant Information

| name of the associated company SUS Joint Ventuwre {Private] Limited
il bask of relatiorship 94 93% shareholding / Common dwectorship
" earmings per share for the last three years /A
. break-up value per share, based on latest audited
= financial statements, RaSnSa
Statement of Financial Position - 31 Decernber 2020
Non-current assets -
Current assets 2B8/5649,004
Shareholders’ equity 505,763
financial position, including main tems of statement Non-current Liabilities -
Vv of financial position and profit and loss account on | | Current Liabilities 28,143,245
the basts of its latest financial statements; and Profit & Loss A/C —31December 2020
Revenue 30,849,865
Cost of revems 41378175
Gross profit (10,528,370
Loss for the year (17,982,599
in case of investment = relation to a project of
associated company or associated undertaking that
has not commenced operations, following further
information, namely, -
' description of the project and its history since
vl 0 conceptualization;
starting date and expected date of completion
(] of work: N/A
(| time by which such project shall become
) commercially operational;
(IV | expected time by which the project shall start
} paying return on iwestment, and
funds wwested or to be irvested by the
(V) | promoters, sporsors, associated company or
associated  undertaking  distinguishing
between cash and non-cash amounts;
(B) General Disclosures
(1) maxamum amount of imestment to be made; Iowestment in the form of loan of Rs, 50 millicn
Purpose: To meet working capital requirements of SUS Joint
Venture (Private] Lirmited
purpose, benefits Likely to accrue to the inwesting | Benefit: The completion of project will results in distribution
(iil company and its members from such irvestment and | of profits by SJS Joint Venture |Pvt) Limited to Systems
period of investment; Limited.
Period of Investment: The period of | vestment shall be cne
{1 year.
sources of funds to be utilized for investment and
where the investment is intended to be made using | Loan shall be granted by Systems Limited
borrowed funds, -
T . SUS Joint Venture {Private) Umited is only a special purpose
@ |0 ';:‘r'oﬁ::'n: for  Wwestmert  through | Lehicle for executing LRMIS project awarded to SUS Joint
> Venture (Private] Limited
a detail of collateral, guarantees provided and N/A
assets pledged for obtaining such funds; and
;lll cost benefit analysis; N/A




Ref

No Requirement Relevant Information
salient features of the agreement(s], i any, with | None Agreement shall be executed in line with section 139 of
() assaciated company or associated undertaking with | Comparses Act, 2017 and resolution of shareholders to be
regards to the proposed investment; passed in annual general meeting. |
direct or indrect interest of directors, sponsars, |
(v} majority shareholders and their relatives, if any, in | Mr. Asif Peer, CED of Systems Limited s also member and ‘

the associated company or associated undertaking or
the transaction under consideration;

director in SUS Joint Venture {Pyt) Limited

in case any Fwestment in associated company or
associated undertaking has already been made, the
performance review of such imvestment including
complete Information/justification  for  any
impairment or write offs, and

(vi)

Trere is no impairment or write -off ‘

ary other important details necessary for the

(vil) members to understand the transaction,

N/A

In case of iewestments in the farm of loans, advances and guarantees, fdlovmg—d_lsdmuu in addition to those provided und er

clause (al of sub-regulation (1) of regitation 3 shall be made, -

[il categary-wise amount of investment,

N/A

average borrowing cost of the mwesting company,
the Karachi Inter Bank Offered Rate (XIBOR) for the
relevant period, rate of retum for Shariahcomplant
products and rate of return for unfurded facilities, as
the case may be, for the relevant period

(vl

ERF loarr Average barrowing cost of investing company &
SBP rate plus 0.78%

rate of interest, mark-up, profit, fees or commission

Gl etc to be charged by investing company

Higher of KIBOR or borrowing cost of investing company in
line with section 199 of Companies Act 2017

particulars of collateral or security to be obtained in

(i relation to the proposed investment;

N/A i

If the investment carnes conversion feature e 2 is
convertible into securities, this fact along with terms |
ard conditions including conversion formula.
crcumstances in which the corverson may take
ptace and the time when the conversion may be
exercsable; and

[

N/A

repayment schedule and terms and conditions of
toans or advances to be given to the asscciated
company or associated undertaking;

(i)

Principal One (1) year from disbursement.
Mark-up: Quarterly basis.

UUS Joint Venture (Private) Limited:
Ref.

Requirement
Disclosures for all types of ivestments:

No.
(b

Relevant Information

(B] rding associated company or associated undertaking -
| name of the associated company UUS Joint Venture (Private) Limited
ii basis of relationship 4999 % shareholding / Common directorship
it earnings per share for the last three years NIA
. break-up value per share, based on Latest audited
" financial statements, R=(B3766)
Statement of Financial Position - 31December 2020
Non-current assets -
Current assets 484 301365
Shareholders’ equty (397,676,358)
financial position, including main items of statement Non-current labilites .
v of financial position and profit and loss account on Current liabdities 881977723
the basis of its latest financial statements; and Profit & Loss A/XC - 31 December 2020
Revenue 60,204,22
Cost of reverue 121,365,486
Gross profit (61961262}
Loss for the year (117.471459)




Ref :

Na Requirement
in case of wwestment in relation to & progect of
assocated company or associated undertaking that

has not commenced operations, followng further

Relevant Information

N/A

information namely, -
0l description of the project and its history since
vi conceptualization;

al starting date and expected date of cormpletion
of work;

(I | tme by which such project shall become

)| commerciallycperational,

(IV | expected time by which the project shall start

) paying return on investment; and

(V) | funds imvested or to be invested by the
prometers, Spansors, associated company or
assocoted  undertaking  distmgushing
between cash and non-cash amounts;

(8] General Disclosures

{1 maxaimun amount of investment to be made;

Rs. 200 milion

purpose, benefits likely to accrue to the imvesting

Purpose: To meet working capital requirements of UUS Joint
Venture [Private) Limited and to give guarantee to Pakistan
Covd Aviatio n Autharity.

Benefit- The complation of project will results in distribution

(| company and its members from suchinvestment and | e 6 by UUS Joint Venture (Put) Limited to Systems
period of investment,; Limited
1
Peried of Investment The period of investment shall be one
{1 yeor
sources of funds to be wilized for investment and :
where the investment is intended to be made using :ﬁ:ggm uw;l:ndl_ sihhilel ELATAN0N Sl De entiec]
barrowed furds, - y -
UUS Joint Venture (Private] Lirnited is only a special purpose
e, A vehicle for executing Pakistan Civil Aviation Authority
(i) n jus uﬁ:mon for  Gwestment.  through {PCAA) project awarded to corsortium of Systems Limited
B anrd Beijing UniStrong Science & Technology Co, It is Systems
Limited Liability to issue guarantee to (PCAA).
i detail of collateral, guarantees pravided and Buldi
assets pledged for cbtaining such funds; and 8
:Ill cost benefit analysis; N/A
saliont features of the agreementis), if any, with| Nene Agreemant shall be execited in Line with section 199 of
(iv) assooated company or associated undertaking with | Companies Act, 2017 and resolution of shareholders to be
regards to the proposed investment; passed in annual general meeting
direct of Indrect Interest of directors, sponsars,
) majority shareholders and their relatives, # any, in | Mr. Asif Peer, CED o fSystems Limited i5 also member and
the associated company or associated undertaking or | director in UUS Joint Venture (Pvt) Lemited
the trarsaction under conssderaton:
in case any investment In associated company or
assocated undertaking has already been made, the
(] performance review of such investment including | There is no impairment or write -aff
complete  information/justification  for  any
impairment or write offs; and
(i) any other mportant detalls necessary for the N/A

members to understand the transaction;

Incase of imvestments in the form of loans, advances and guarantees, following declosures m addition to those provided under

clause (a) of sub-regulation (1) of reguiation 3 shall be made. -

0] category wise amount of imvestment:

N/A

average borrowing cost of the wmvesting company,
the Karachi Inter Bank Offered Rate {KIBOR) for the
relevant period, rate of return for Shariahcompliant
products and rate of return for unfunded facilities, as

()

ERF loan Average borrowing cost of iwvesting company is
S8P rate plus 078,




Relevant Information

Requirement

the case may be, for the relevart period

rate of interest, mark-up, profie, fees or commission

Gl etc to be charged by investing company

Higher of KIEOR or barrowing cost of irvesting campany in
Lline with section 199 of companies act 2017

particulars of collateral or security to be obtained in

o) relation to the proposed investment;

Unsecured

If the investrment carries converson feature e it =
convertible into securities, this fact along with terms
and conditiors  incluging conversion  formula,
circumstances in which the corwersion may take
place and the time when the conversion may be
exerceable; and

(v)

N/A

repayment schedule and terms and conditions of
loans or advances to be given to the assoclated
company or associated undertaking:

(wi)

Principal: One ()} year from disbursement.
Mark-up: Quarterly basis.

E-Processing Systems (Pvt)Limited :

lal Disclosures for all types of imvestments:
(A} Regarding associated company or assaciated undertaking -

1 name of the associated company E-Processing Systems (Private) Limited
[ bass of relatiorship 4460 shareholdi diary/ Common directorship
til earnings per share for the last three years 3 DE;JZOZO 310ec0wRa) 3 [::‘JZOIB
(170.34] (82838) (108.48)
break-up value per share, based on latest audited
Iv i il : Rs. 120368
Statementof Financial Position = 31 December 2020
Non-current assets 189,400,450
Current assets 633,464,501
Shareholders’ equity 484,426,
finrancial position, including main items of statement Non-current Liabilties -
v of financial position and profit and loss account on | | Current lisbilities 338,438,871
the basis of its latest financial statements; and Profit & Loss A/C ~31December 2020
Reverue 357570526
Cost of revenue 21764345
Gross profit (139,927 381|
Loss for the year (85070,123)
in case of irmestment i relation to a project of
associated company of assocated undertaking that
has not commenced cperations, following further
Vi information, namely, - NIA
I descnption of the project and its history since
conceptualizaton:
i starting date and expected date of completion
of wark;
{I | time by which such project shall become
commercially operational.
{IV) | expected time by which the projact shall start
paying return on investmant; and
funds Imvested or to be nvested by the
W™ promoters, sponsors, assocated company or
assochated undertaking distinguishing
between cashand non-cash amounts:;




Ref
No.

Requirement

(B] General Disclosures

Relevant Information

il

maximum amount of investment to be made;

Rs 340 millon

(i)

purpase, benefits Likely to accrue to the imvesting
company and its members from such investment and
period of investrment;

Purpase: To meet increased working capital requrement of £ -
Processing Systerrs (Private) Limited arsing due to expansion
of operatiors and expected launch of new feature its product
Oneload

Benefit- The investrment would support E -Processing Systerrs
[Private) Limited in smoothly meeting growing working
capital reguirements due to exparsion of operatiors and
launching of new features in its product Oneload. Expansion
n operations and new features would generate profit for
shareholders Including investing company.

Period of Irwestment: The period of investment shall be one
{1} year and corwertible into equity at the discretion of the
wwestor

(i}

sources of funds to be utilized for mvestment and
where the investment s interded to be made using
borrowed funds, -

Own Funds

" justification  for  iwestment  through

borrowings;
" assets pledged for obtainng such funds; and

detail of collateral. guarantees provided and
{1

) cost benefit analysis;

N/A

(iv)

salient features of the agreement(s), f any, with
assocated company or associated undertaking with
regards to the proposed irvestment;

Agreement s executed in Une with section 199 of Companies
Act, 2077

v)

direct or indirect interest of directors, sporsors,
majority shareholders and their relatwves, If any, in
the associated company or associated undertaking or
the transaction under consideration;

Mr. Aezaz Hussan, Chairman and Mr. Asif Peer, CED of
Systems Limited are also directors of E-Processing [Private)
Limited

Mr. Agzaz Hussain, Chairman, Mr. Arshad Masood, Director
and Mr. Asif Peer, CED of Systems Limited are also member
n E-Processing Systems (Private) Limited either dwectly or
through direct relatives

in case any investment in assocated company or
assocated undertaking has already been made, the

With this investment, E-Processing Systems (Private) Limited
was able to develop its product Oneload, laurch its

performance review of such investment including
complete  informabion/justifhication for  any
impairment or write offs; and

commercial operations in 2016 and met ts working capital
requrements. Sece launch of commercial operation E -
Processing Systems (Private] Limited is able to mudtiply its
revenues, number of transections and number of retailers each
month. Currently, Oneload product is executing 3.6 million
trarsactions per month while number of retailers wsing
Oneload product are around 10,000

There is no impairment or write -off.

(il

any other mportant dotails necassary for the
members to understand the transaction;

N/A

In case of ivestments in the form of loans, advances and guarantees, following disclosures in additon to those provided und  er
clause (a) of sud-regulation (1} of regulation 3 shall be made, -

0 categorywise amount of investment, N/A - Single category
average borrowing cost of the irvesting company,
the Karachi Inter Bank Offered Rate (KIBOR) for the :
(i) relevant period, rate:of.return for Sharishcompt ERF loan: Average borrowing cost of iInvesting company s

praducts and rate of return for unfunded facilities, as
the case may be, for the relevant period

SBP rate plus 0.78%.




Ref
[

(i)

Requirement Relevant Information

rate of interest, mark-up, profit, fees or commession

| , .
etc to be charged by investing ny KIBOR or borrowing cost of cormpany whichever is higher

particulars of collateral or security to be obtared n

(v relation to the proposed investment;

[ Unsecured

if the imvestment carres conversion feoture e, it s |

convertible into securities, this fact along with terms |

" and conditions including conversion formula. |, .
crcumstances in which the corversion may take |

place and the time when the conversion may be |

exercsable; and

repayment schedule and terms and conditions of
(W) loan or advances to be given to the assodiated
company or associated undertaking

Principal: One (1) year from disbursement.
| Mark-up: Quarterly basis.

A

Agenda Item No. 6

The Board of the Company hereby proposes to issue 400,000 shares of Systems Limited to Mr. Jawad Khan in line
with approval of shareholders already obtained on 26™ April 2019 to issue shares to employees of Visionet
Systems, as per the details provided hereunder:

Name and Profile of the Allottee: Mr. Jawad Khan

Share Value: Rs 7534/-

Purpose of Issuance: The Company wishes to issue 400,000 (four hundred thousand) shares against cash
consideration to Mr. lawad Khan as a token of appreciation for his dedicated contribution, in accordance with

section 83(1)(b] of the Companies Act, 2017 (the "2017 Act”) read along with the applicable Companies (Further
Issue of Shares) Regulations, 2020 {the "2018 Regulations™) thereof.

Justification: As per the new Companies (Further Issue of Shares) Regulations, 2020, employee stock options can
only be issued 1o the employees of the Company and / or its subsidiary. Therefore, the Company already obtained
approval of shareholders in the Annual General Meeting held on 26™ April 2079 to issue 400,000 shares to
employees of Visionet Systems/Visionet Deutschland. As per the requirement of SECP, the company is seeking
specific approval to issue these shares to Mr, Jawad Khan for his dedicated performance

Details of the average market price of the Company shares during last three months: Rs. 437.84/-

Details of the average market price of the Company during six months: Rs 39658/-

Latest Available Market Price: Rs. 480.99/-

Shareholding after proposed issue 400,000 shares ie. 0.32% of the paid up capital of the Company

The shares so offered shall rank parni passu in all respects with the existing shareholding of the Company. The
said ssuance shall be subject to the approval of the Commission.

Video-link Detalls

Please note that registration for the meeting shall close at 1050am on 31 March 2021 after which
participants / shareholders shall be unable to register for the meeting. Any and all participants /
shareholders who would have registered within the prescribed timeline shall receive the link to join the

meeting and shall be able to access the meeting through the link, therefore, the Company emphasizes
on timely registrations following the link below:

https://systemsltd zoomus/webinar/register/WN__TRISNS2SwOLcBnF Tsdspg
In case of any queries, please feel free to email at: corporate@systemsitd.com




MINUTES OF THE EXTRAORDINARY
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
of Systemns Limited held through wvideo link on December 3, 2020 at 02.00 pm

Present:
® Mr Aezaz Hussain Chairman
® Mr. Muhammad Asif Peer Chief Executive Officer
® Ms Roohi Khan Chief Financial Officer
Attendance:

e 76 Shareholders representing a total of 58,78% shareholding were present in the meeting in person
and through proxy.

M;G‘:.te Description
1 To confirm the minutes of last Annual General Meeting held on 29 May 2020

The members confirmed the minutes of last Annual General Meeting held on 29 May 2020
and be taken as approved.

Accordingly the following resolut:on was passed:

RESOLVED that the minutes of last Annual General Meeting held on 29 May, 2020 be
and hereby approved.

2 To elect seven (7) Directors as fixed by the Board of Directors in accordance with the
provisions of section 159 of the Companies Act, 2017 for the period of three (3) years.

Chairman informed the members that the number of Directors as fixed by the Board of
Directors in accordance with section 159 of the Companies Act, 2017 are seven (7).

Chairman further informed that the company invited nominations for election of Directors

from the members of the Company and received following eight (8) nominations aganst
seven positions of the directorship:

1 Mr. Aezaz Hussain




Minute S
No. Description

Mr. Arshad Masood

Mr. Muhammad Asif Peer
Mr. Asif Jooma

Mr.Omar Saeed
Mr.Shabbar Zaidi

Ms. Romana Abdullah
Mr. Zubair Anjum

@ N AWwN

Based on the votes received from the shareholders of the meeting, seven (7) directors
were elected on the Board of the Company.

Resolved that the following seven (7) Directors who have offered themselves and
consented to act as Directors shall be elected Directors of the Company for the period of
next three year commencing from December 3, 2020.

Mr. Aezaz Hussain

Mr. Arshad Masood

Mr. Muhammad Asif Peer
Mr. Asif Jooma

Mr.Omar Saeed

Mr. Shabbar Zaidi

Ms. Romana Abdullah

N oW s WwN

3 As there was no further business to be transacted, the Chair thanked all the members for

attending and declared that meeting is closed.

Chairman of the Meeting
December 3, 2020




SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION

REGISTERED OFFICE

E-1 Sehjpal Near DHA Phase -
VIl (Ex-Air Avenue), Lahore
Cantt

T:+92 42 M-797-836

F.+G2 42 3 636 8857

SHARE REGISTRAR

THK Associates (Private)
Limited Plot no 32-C, Jami
Commercial, Street 2 DHA Phase
VI, Karachi

T:+#82{27 M000 332

F:+982 (21) 35310187

LISTING ON STOCK
EXCHANGES

Ordinary shares of Systems
Limited are listed on Pakistan
Stock Exchange Limited

STOCK CODE / SYMBOL

The stock code / symbol for
trading in ordinary shares of
Systems Limited at Pakstan
Stock Exchange in SYS.

STATUTORY COMPLIANCE

During the year, the Company
has complied with all
applicable provisions, filed all
returns/forms and furnished
all the relevant particulars as
required under the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984
(Now, Companies Act, 2017)
and allied rules, the Securities
and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan Regulations and the
listing requirements,

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directers in
ther meeting held on 3rd
March 2027 has proposed a
dividend on ordinary shares
at Rs. 350 per ordmary share
and 0% bonus ssue

BOOK CLOSURE DATES

Share Transfer Books of the
Company will remain closed
from 25 March 2021 to 31
March 2021 (both days
inclusive),

DIVIDEND REMITTANCE

Ordinary dividend declared and
approved at the Annual General
Meeting will be paid within the
statutory time limit of 30 days
() For shares held in physical
formc to shareholders whose
names appear in the Register of
Members of the Company after
entertaining all requests for
transfer of shares lodged with
the Company on or before the
book closure date,

(i) Forshares held in electronic
from: to shareholders whose
names appear in the statement
of  beneficial  ownership
furneshed by CDC as at end of
business on book closure date

WITHHOLDING OF TAX
& ZAKAT ON ORDINARY
DIVIDEND

As per the provisions of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,
income tax i deductible at
source by the Company at the
rate of 15% in case of fler and
30% In case on non-filer
wherever applicable Zakat is
also deductible at source form
the ordinary dividend at the rate
of 25% of the face value of the
share, other than corporate
holders or individuals who have
provided an undertaking for
non-deduction.

DIVIDEND PAYMENTS

Cash dividends are pad
through  electronsc mode
directly into the bank account
designated by the entitled
shareholders

GENERAL MEETINCS &
VOTING RIGHTS

Pursuant to section 158 of
repealed Companies Ordinance
1884 ([now, section 132 of
Companies Act, 2017) Systems
Limted holds a General
Meeting of shareholders at
least orxe a year. Every
shareholder has a nght to
attend the General Meeting.
The notice of such meeting is
sent to all the shareholders at
least 21 days before the
meeting and also advertised in
at least one Englsh and one
Urdu  newspaper  having
circulation in Karachi, Lahore
and IslamabadShareholders
having holding of at least 10%
of voting rights may also apply
to the Board of Drectors to call
for meeting of shareholders,
and if the Board does not take
action on such applcation
within 21  days, the
shareholders may themselves
call the meeting

All ordinary shares issued by
the Company carry equal voting
rights, Generally, matters at the
general meetings are decided
by a show of hands in the first
instance. \oting by show of
hands operates on the princple
of “One Member-One Vore® If
majority of shareholders raise
their hands in favor of a
particular resolution, it = taken
as passed, unless a poll is
demanded.

Snce the fundamental voting
principle in the Company is
“One Share-One Vote", voting
takes place by a pol, if
demanded. On a poll being
taken, the decision arrived by
poll is fnal overruling any
decsion taken on a show of
hands

INVESTOR'S GRIEVANCES

To date none of the mwestors ar
shareholders has filed any
significant complaint against any
service provided by the Company
to its shareholders.



PROXIES

Pursuant to section 151 of repeated Comparies Oranance, 1384 {now, secton 137 of Companles Act, 2077 and according 1o
the Memaranaum and Articies of Assodaton of the Comparty, every shareholder of the Comparty who is entitied to attend
and vote at a general meeting of the Company can appoint anather member as his/her praxy to attend and vote instead of
him/ner. Every notice calling a general. meeting of the Comparty contars a statement that a sharehelder i entitled to
LEONT 3 provy.

The instrument appeinting a prosy (duly signed by the shareholder appointing that proxy) sheutd be deposited at the office
of the Company not Less than forty-eight hours before the meeting

SERVICE STANDARDS

Systems Uimited has always endeavored to provide investors with prompt services. Listed below are various investor
services and the mawmum time Lmits set for their execution

For requests recelved For requests received

through post over the counter
Transfer of shares Ndaysaﬁwltnbt Bomwm
5502 of duplicate share certificates 30 days after recoipt BOdaﬁaﬁrmnbt
Change of address 2days after receipt 1cay after receipt

Well gualified personnal af the Shares Registrar have been entrusted with the responsibility of ensuring that services are
rendered within the set time limits.

WEB PRESENCE

Updated Information regarding the Company can be accessed at its website, wwwisystemsltdcom The website contains the
latest financlal resuits of the Company tegecher with the Company’s profile
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS &
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

SHAREHOLDERS

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS
AUDIT HUMAN RESOURCE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
COMMITTEE & COMPENSATION OFFICER

COMMITTEE ®

HEAD OF INT E RN A L P S —
AUDIT

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE BOARD &
COMMITTEES

Board self-evaluation mechanisms facilitate the Board of Directors in evaluating and assessing its performance and
shility to provide strategic leadership and oversight to the servar management of the Company. Accordingly,
Questicnnaires have been developed based on relevant criteria such as effectiveness, accountadility, planning,
leadership and strategy formulation by the Board and also its committees, Directors are asksd to fill out these
celf-pyaluation questionnare which focuses on thesr participation and satisfactson with the different proceedings of
the Board and their individual role as a member

EQUAL TREATMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS

Systerns Umited provides every shareholder the nght to attend or authonze to attend the AGM of the company

Management response

Shares and voting rights Each shareholder or his/her authornized representative are authorized
to attend AGMs and vote independently Praxy foerms are available on
company's website as well as distributed with notice of AGM

Notices of AGM All notices of AGM are published in Urdu & English in newspaper and
simultaneously uploaded on company's website 21 days prior to the
AGM

Commitment to minority shareholders The company Is committed to craating value for minority shareholders
and acting in their best interests through consistent dividend payments,
transparent reporting and strong corporate governance

nvestor relations The company has maintained a dedicated mvestor relations email as per
applcable laws and regulations and all investor matters are directly &
promptly addressed via this email




BOD'S RESPONSIBILITIES

In 2020, Systems Limited BOD has actwvely complied with all the applicable laws and regulations to ensure value
addition of the shareheiders, Some key responsibilities of the Board are as follow:

@ Monitoring the effectiveness of the company’s governance practices and averall corporate strategy for the
company is prepared, adopted and reviewed as and when deemed appropriate by the Board;

@ Adequate systems and controls are in place for identification and redressal of grevances arising from unethical
practices;

® Asystem of sound internal control is established. which is effectively implamented and maintained at all levels
within the company, and

® A formal and effective mechanism is put in place for an annual evaluation of the Board's own performance,
members of the Board and of its committees.

@ Ensuning that significant polioes along with their dates of approval or updating = maintained by the company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES

In 2020, Systems Limwted Audit Committee has actively supported the Board in all matenal aspects and has fulfilled
its responsibilities as per the applicable laws and regulations Some key responsibilities of the Audit Committee are
as follows:

@ Review of internal controls of the company to ensure safeguard the company's assets;

® Review of annual and intenm financial statements of the company, prior Lo their approval by the Board

@ Facilitating the external audit and discussion with external audtors of major observations arsing from interim
and final audits and any matter that the auditors may wish to hightight in the absence of management, where
necessary)

® Review of management letter issued by external auditors and management’s response thereto;

@ Ensuring coordination between the internal and external auditors of the company;

® Review of the scope and extent of internal audit, audit plan, reporting framework and procedures and ensuring
that the internal audit function has adequate resources and is appropriately placed within the company;

e Consideration of major findings of internal nvestigations of activities characterized by fraud, corruption and
abuse of power and management’s response therelo,

& Monitoring compliance with these Regulations and identification of significant violations thereof,
@ Recommend to the Board the appointment of external auditors, their removal, audit fees, the provision of any

service permissible to be rendered to the company by the external auditors in addition to audit of its financial
statements, measures for redressal and rectification of non-compliances with the Regulations.

HUMAN RESOURCE AND COMPENSATION
COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES

® Recommendation to the Board for consideration and approval a policy framework for determining remuneration
of directors {bath executive and non-executive directors and members of senior management)

® Recommending human resource management policies to the Board,

@ Recommending to the Board the selection, evaluation. development, compensation (including retirement
benefits) of senior management

e Consideration and approval on recommendations of chief executive officer on such matters for key management
positions who report directly to chief executive officer or chief operating officer

4
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

on the Statement of Compliance with best Practices of the Code of Corporate Governance

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companees (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
207 {the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Systems Limited (the Company| for the year ended 31 December
2020 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The respensibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibdity is to
review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance wvath the provisions of the
Regulations and report if it does not and to highbght any noncompliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review s
limited primarily to inquines of the Compasty’s personnel and review of vanous documents prepared by the Company to comply
with the Regulations.

As a part of cur audit of the fimancial statements we are required to obtan an understanding of the accounting and nternal control
systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of
Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal

controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and rsks.

The Regulations requare the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee,
place before the Board of Directors for ther review and approval, its related party transactions We are only required and have
ensured compliance of ths requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We hawve not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company's
process for identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length prce
or not.

Based on our reveew, nothing has corme to our attention which causes us to believe that the Staterment of Compliance does not
appropristely reflect the Company's compliance, o all matenial respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as
applicable to the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020,

By —tew

Chartered Accountants
Lahore
10 March 2021




STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

with the Code of Corporate Governance
The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:-
1. The total number of directors are seven (7] as per the following:

a Male six (6)
b. Female: one (1)

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

i Independent Directors: four (4)
ii Other Non-executive Director: two (2)
i, Executive Directors: one (1)
. Female directors: one (1)

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this company,

4. The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and
procedures;

S. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the company. The Board has ersured that complete record of particulars of the
significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the company:

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by the Board/ shareholders as empawered by the relevant provisions of the Act and
these Regulations,

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and
the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the
Board;

8 The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

9. The Board has arranged Directors’ Training program for the following:

Mr. Ayaz Dawood (Retired)

Mr. Tahir Masaud (Retired)

Mr. Asif Jooma

Mr, Arshad Masood

Mr. Muhammad Asif Peer

Mr. Aezaz Hussamn

.. Ms Romana Abdullah

vili.  Mr. Omar Saeed (New Appointment)
ix  Mr. Shabbar Zaidi {(New Appointment)

10. The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, company secretary and head of
internal audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and
complied with relevant requirements of the Regulatiors;

ss<zz=-

1. Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board;




12 The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below.-
a.  Audit Committee;

i Mr. Shabbar Zaidi Chairman
il Mr, Omar Saeed Member
fil. Ms Romana Abdullah Member

b.  HRand Remuneration Committes:

i Mr, Asif Jooma Chairman
ii. Mr. Arshad Masood Member
hi. Mr. Omar Sased Member
v. Ms Romana Abdullah Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and adwised
to the committee for compliance;

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per
following

a Audit Committee: Quarterly Meetings
b, HRand Remuneration Committee: Half Yearly Meetings

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function/ or has outsourced the internal audit
function to who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are
conversant with the policies and procedures of the company;

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and regstered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partrers
are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics
as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners
of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-
dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit,
company secretary or director of the company:

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this
regard,

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations
have been complied with; and

19. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3,6, 7,8 27, 32, 33 and
36 are below (if applicable):

-

MR. AEZAZ HUSSAIN
Chairman
March 3, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Systems Limited

Report on the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Systems Limited (the Comgany), which comprise
the unconsolidated statement of financial positon as at 31 December 2020, and the unconsolidated statement of profit or
loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes n equity, the
unconsolidated statement of cash Mlows for the year then ended, and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting polices and other explanatory information, and we state that we have
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the unconsolidated
statement of financal position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsclidated statement of cash
flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan and give the information required by the Cormnpanies Act, 2077 {XIX of 2077], in the marner so required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of the profit, the
comprehensive incoms, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basls for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan Our
responsibilities under those standards are further descnbed n the Auditors' Respormsibilities for the Audit of the
unconsolidated Fmancial Statements section of cur repart. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibiities in
accordance with the Code We belbisve that the audit evidence we have obtained s sufficent and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, i our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
unconsolidated financial statements of the current period These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thareon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Following are the key audit matters:

Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
1 Revenue recognition

The Company's revermee is derived from a number of
revenue streams, as referred to in Note 24 to the
accompanying uncorsolidated financial  statements,
including outscurcing services and software sale in the
form of short term and long term projects, sometimes

Qur audit procedures, amongst others, included:

® Obtaining an understanding and  evaluating the
appropriateness of the Company's revenue recognetion
polices including those relating to assessment of
performance oblgations and compliance of those

leadng to revenue being recognized over multiple
accountng periods These often include sale of software
bundled with related customization / development and
support services leading to multiple performance
obligatons in individual transactions.

Further, as referred to in Note 33 to the accompanying
unconsolidated financial statements, a significant partion
of the Company’s revenue transactions is with related
parties,

Revenue is recognized based on performance obligations

policies with applicable accounting standards;

® Selecting a sample of revenue transactions recognized
during the year and recalculating the revenue
recognized along with evaluation of the management
basis used in determiming the performance obligations
in accordance with accounting policy;

® Performing substantive procedures on related party

revenue transactions including review of contractual
terms, underlying invoices, and analytical procedures,




Key Audit Matters

as mentioned in Note 37 to the accompanying
unconsoldated fimancial statements, which requires
significant management judgement and estimates n
relation to  assessment of distnct  performance
obligations along with respectve standalone selling
prices and budgeting the cost to be incurrad.

Due to complexity of accounting for multiple revenue
streams, significant judgement and estimation involved
in the revenue recognition process and the significance

How the matter was addressed inour audit

® Performing substantive  analytical procedures
including monthly trend analysis of revenue by
comparing the trends with our understanding of the
business and external economic enviranment;

® Comparng, on a sample basis, specific revenue
transactions recorded before and after the reporting
date waith underlying documentation to assess
whether revenue has been recognzed in the
appropriate accounting perad; and

of related party transactions to the Company's revenue,
we have identified revenue recogrnition as a key audt
mattar

® Assessing the adequacy of disclosures made in respect
of accounting policy, revenue recagnized, and related
party revenue transactions entered into during the
year.

Information Other than the unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditors® Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, but does not include the unconsolidated financial statements and our auditar's repart thereon Our apinion
on the unconsolidated financial staterments does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion therson.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our respansibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the unconsoldated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there 15 a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to repart
that fact. We have nothing to report in thes regard

Respons bilities of Management and Board of Directors for the unconsolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the uncensolidated financial statements in
occordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies
Act, 2017 (XX of 2077} and for such internal control as management determines is necessary o enable the preparation
of unconsoldated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is respensible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the geing concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends o liquidate the Company or 1o cease operations, or has no
realistic atternative but to do so

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole wre
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report that includes our opinion,
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs
as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exsts. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
errer and are considered material if, indwidually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to mfluence the
econamic decisens of users taken on the basis of these unconsolidated financal statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintan

professional skepticsm throughout the audit. We also

® Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
approprate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from



fraud s higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of intamal control

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management

® Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a matenal uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern If we conclude that a material
uncertanty exsts, we are required to draw attention in owr auditors' report to the related disclosures in the
unconsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concermn.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the unconsclbidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that acheeves fair presentation

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timng of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have compliad with relevant ethical requirements regardng
independence, and to communicate with them all relatonships and other matters that may reesonably be thought to bear en our
indepandence, and whare applicable, related safoguards

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the unconsolidated finanoal statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare crcumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our repart because the
adverse consoquences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
commumcation

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

Based on ouwr audit, we further report that s our opinion.
al proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companses Act, 2077 D0X of 2017);

b) the uncorsolidated staterment of financlal positon, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the uncorsolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsoldated
statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act,
2077 (X1X of 2017)and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended durning the year were for the purpose of the
Company’s business; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 {XVIIl of 1980), was deducted by the
Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance

The engagement partnar on the audit resulting in this indepandent auditor's repart is Sajjad Hussain Gill

By —te—

Chartered Accountants
Lahore
10 March 2020
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31DECEMBER 2020
Note 2020

ASSETS Rupees
Non-current assets
Property and equipment 4 1507,959,243
intangibles 5 21,345,888
Long term investments 6 272,073,147
Advance against purchase of land -
Right-of-use assets 7 204,396,352
Long term depasits 36,127,162

2,041901,792
Current assets
Contract assets 8 533,940,810
Trade debts 9 2,438,437,498
Loarns, advances and other receivable 10 205,366,771
Trade deposits and short term prapaymants n 187,928,945
Interest accrued 38,450,000
Short term investments 12 2544,845558
Tax refunds due from the Government 13 166,007,954
Cash and bank balances 14 1.577.799.592

2019
Rupees

141664507
38657318
2715873,%7
26,750,000
15,860,345
51938797
1953,825,643

434270823
1799458312
328,160,020
13064402
2,491852
780,000,000
18279356
1095.555.314

TOTAL ASSETS 9834639, 018 b J 1215582
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Authorzed share capital
200,000,000 {2019: 200,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. ¥/- each w 5000,900,000
tesued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 5 1246,060,740 1235202,530
Capital reserves 16 699,654,498 S9119,759
Revenue reserve Un-appropriated profit %1}!7%3 3390143582
5.216,456,331
Non-current liabilitles
Long term advances 7 53,857,626 26,868,774
Long term Loan 18 98,013,227 -
Deferred grant 8,338,896 -
Lease Labilities 19 189,409,537 128,186,921
349,619,286 156,057,895
Current Liabilities
Trade and ather payables 20 722653295 534812425
Unclaimed dividend 7617635 8345525
Contract Liabilities 21 BB669.3S5 104154579
Short term barrowings 22 1250.000,000 650,000,000
Accrued mark-up on borrowings 9,804,346 4873569
Current portion of lang term loan 8 100,754,677 .
Current portion of deferred grant 308595 -
Current portion of laase liabilities 19 37,88373) 25284595
Current portion of lang term advances 0,754, 7(5 13,220,%63

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 983463908

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 23

The annexed notes, from 1to 43, form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements

6,717,215, "82
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[CHAIRMAN) [CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER]
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{CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER)



UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31DECEMBER 2020

Note 2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
Revenue from contracts with custormars - nat 24 7.513,766,845 5,348568,742
Cost of revenue 25 (4,715,786,027) {3572,1BE527)
Gross profit 2,797,980,818 177638021
Selling and dstribution expenses 26 (118,794,068) (99,593,155)
Administrative expenses 27 (499,846,346) [448,471106)
Other operating expenzes 28 (134,740,418} 1139,025,203)
(753,382,832) ({B87,183,464)

Operating profit T 2044597986 1089190751
Other incorme 29 272645254 342,646,042
Fnance costs 30 (49,914,195) [39,164.417)
Profit before taxation 2267329045 1392672316
Taxation N {73,414,%03) (28.540,667)
Profit for the year 2193914 942 1364131708
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 35 17,66 nes
Diluted earnings per share 35 1731 1095

The annexed notes, from 1to 43, form an integral part of these unconsolidated finarcial stataments

N S il

([CHAIRMAN]| [CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER) [CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER]
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31DECEMBER 2020

2020 20m
Rupees Rupeas
Profit for the year 2,993,914 942 1364,131709

Other comprehensive income -

Total comprehensive income for the year 2,193,914 942 1364,131709

The annexad notes, from 1to 43 form an integral part of these urcorsolidated financial statements.

- S ot

[CHAIRMAN]| ICHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER) [CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER|



UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31DECEMBER 2020

Batance as on 01 Jansery 2019
Profit for the patisd

Ochar comprenens e income

Irvpact of adopton of IFRS-6

Trarsactions with onners
Lavromn of share optons

Share based payrrents

Forfwsed share cptions

W% Eorws shares issucd

Final cvicend Tor the year ended 31 December 2013
o4 the rate of Rs. 2 per share

Belance a3 on 31 December 2013
Pro#t for the paried
Dehet comprahent e income

Farrenm of share nptors
Share bhased paymmonts
Foefuted share optiom

F el drvicend for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2013
ot the rote of Ry, 225 per shore

Badarce s ot 31 Deconrier 2020

The arnesad notes, Froms 110 43 form an integead paet of These uscorsol dated fnancul sLatsrenis

{CHAIRMAN|

P Chebu revenae resnrur
and E Total equs
capizal premurns “'n’%”’m' profis
1122135480 S055T843 27EBE374 242565384 4078369538
- - - 1BATIR LIba T IR
- - - 163.066.92% 163066929
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31DECEMBER 2020

Note
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated lrom cperations (36)
Finance costs paid
Taxes paid

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
1936,417,462 1894745855
(24,732,884) || (37.975453)
(38,336,368) [52030,550)
(63,069.252) (80,010,003)

1873348210

1804,736,852

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and aguipment
Development expendtures

Sale proceeds from disposal of property and equpment
Short term inwvestments - net

Increase in iong term iwestment

Profit received on deposit accounts

Profit received on short term investments
Decrease / |increase) in long term deposits

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase Inshort term borrowings

Increase in long term loan

Proceeds from exarcise of share options

Payment of principal partion of lease Labilities

Dividend paid

Increase in long term advances

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Net foreign exchange difference

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

[552.780,904)
(5940.743)
47652582
(485,000,000)
[220,895,188)
18,464,427
81863151

(33903,044)

(150539279

600,000,000 || 200,000,000
210,000,000 -
75,284,456 5.069153
(50,135594) || (23.851975)
(278,648,714) || (218,057,397
24,523,395 11,863,138
581023543  (24377,0%)
455497041 529220558
26707337 6557426
1095555314 400,760,630

V577,755.692

1095555314

The annexed notes, from 1to 43, form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31DECEMBER 2020

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Systems Limited (“the Company”| & & publc lenited company incarporated in Pakistan under the Companies
Act, 2017 and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Company s principallyengaged in the business of
saftwaredevelopment, trading of softwareand business process cutsourcng services, The registered office of
the Company is stuated at £-1 Sehjpal Road, Near DHA Phase-VIII (Ex-Air Avenue), Lahore Cantt.

These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company, In which nvestments in the
subsidiary companies namely E-Processing Systems (Private] Limited TechVista Systems FZ- LLC, SUS JV
{Private} Limited and Systems Ventures {Private) Limeted have baen accounted for at cost less accumulated

1 Geographical location and addresses of major business units of the Company are as under:

Iiumudu Geographical Address
Location
Head Office Lahore E-1, Sehjpal Near DHA PhaseVIll {Ex-Air Avenue), Lahore
Cantt.
Regwonal Office Karachi E-5, Central Commaercial Area, Shaheed-e-Millat Road, Karachi
Regional Office Islamabad Plot No. 21, Ist Floor Fazeelat Arcade, Sector G-11 Markaz,
Istamabad
2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

21 Statement of compliance

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applcable m Pakestan, The accounting and reparting standards comprise of:

International Financial Reparting Standard (IFRS] lssued by the International Accounting Standard Boacrd
(LASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 {the Act) ; and
- Provisions and directives issued under the Act.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act, differ from the IFRS, the provisions of and directives
issued under the Act, have been followed.

22 Basis of preparation

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except, as
otherwise stated in these unconsolidated Minancial statements.

23 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the unconsolidated  financal staterments are measurad using the cwrency of the primary
economic ervironment in which the Company operates. These unconsoldated financial statements are
presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

24 Use of estimates and judgments

The Company’s significant accounting policies are stated in Note 3. Not all of these significant policies require
the management to make difficult, subjective or complex judgments or estimates, The followingis ntended to
provide an understanding of the polcies the management considers critical because of their complexity,
Judgment of estemation involwed in thewr applcation and their impact on these unconsoldated Anancial
statements. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on histoncal experience,
including expectation of future avents that are believed to be reasonable under the crcumstances. These
judgments involve assumpuions or estimates in respect of future events and the actual results may differ from
these estimates The arsas ivolving higher degree of judgments or complaxity or areas whare assumptions
and estimates are significant to the unconsolidated financial statements are as follows:
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Provision for taxation (Note 3.3)

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and the decisions taken by appellate authorities.
Instances where the Company's view aéffers from the view taken by the income tax department at the
assessment stage and where the Company considers that its views on items of materal nature are in
accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent babilities.

Useful lives and residual values of property and equipment and intangibles (Note 3.4)

The Company reviaws the useful lives of propertyand equipment and intangibles at each reporting date. Any
change n estimates in future yoars might affact the carrying amounts of respective items af proparty and
equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation / amortization charge and impairment.

Expected credit losses (Note 3.10.7)

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate Expectod Crodit Losses ([ECLs) for trade debts and contract
assets. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have
sirndlar loss patterns (ie, by geography, product type, and customer typa).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s histoncal observed default rates. The Company
calibrates the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experence with forward-looking information which
includes forecast econormie conditions. At every reportingdate, the histaricalobserved defaultrates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed

The assessment of the correlation between histarical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a signficant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast
ecanomic condtions. The Company's historicalcredit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future,

Revenue recognition (Note 3.75)
Identification of distinct performance obligations

For contracts with multple components to be delivered, the Company applies judgement to determine
performance obligatians whach are distinct; or not distnct, which are aggregated with other performance
obligations until a bundle is identified that is distinct.

Estimating stand-alone selling prices of performance obligations

The Company determines stand-alone selling prces of all performance obligations in a bundled contract, which
include sale of license, implamentation, support, warrantyand training. The totaltransaction price is allocated to
all astinct performance oblgations based on estimated cost of campletion, plus target margin on each of the
performance abligations.

Stage of completion

The Company determines stage of complietion on the basis of cost incurred to date as a percentage of total
estimated cost to deliver the performance obligations.

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options (Note 3.19)

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together withany periods
covered by an option toextend the lease if it s reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an
option to terminate the lease, f t s reasonably certain not to be exercsed

The Company has the option, under some of its leases to lease the assets foran additional term. The Company
spplies udgerment in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercese the option to renew ie. it considers
all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for & to exercse the renewal After the commencement
date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in crcumstances thatis
within s cantrol and affects its ability to exerose {or not to exercse) the option to renew (eg, a change in
business strategy)
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Provisions (Note 3.13)

A provision 1S recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligationas a resultof a past avent, and it is probable thatan outflowof economic bensfits willbe required to
settlethe obligatonand a reliable estimate can be made of the amaunt of abligation. The amaunt recognized as
a provision reflects the best estimate of the expenditure required to settie the present obligation at the end of

the reporting perod
SIGNIFRCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting polcies which have been adapted in the preparation of uncansoldated financial
statements of the Company are consistent with previous year except as described in Note 3.1 below:

New standards, amendments, interpretations and improvements which became effective

The Company has adopted the followingaccounting standards, amendments and interpretationsof IFRS which
became effective for the current year but ¢id not have any materal effect en the accounting policies and
unconsolidated financial statements:

IAS 1 and IAS B Presentation of Financial Statements & Accounting Policies, Changes i Accounting Estimates
and Errors: Definition of Material, to clacify the definition of matenal and its alignment withthe definition used n
the Conceptual Framework Jamendments)

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Definition of busness (amendments)

IFRS 9,1AS 39 & IFRS 7 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform [amendments)

Amandmants to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

IFRS 16 - Covid-12- Related Rent Concessions (amendments|

Interests In joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement Joint control is the
contractuailyagreed sharing of contralef an arrangement, wivich exists only when decsicns about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control

When the Company undertakes its activities under jointoperations, the Company as a jontoperator recognizes
inrelation to its interest in a joint cperaton:

Its assets, ncluding its share of any assets held jointly,

Its liabilities, including its share of any Labilities incurred jointly;

Its revenue from the sale of its share of the autput anising from the joint operation;
Its share of the revenue from the sale of the cutput by the wint operation; and

Its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jontly

The Company accounts for the assets, Uabilities, revenues and expenses relating to its Interest in a joint
operation n accordance withthe IFRSs applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

When Company transacts with a jont operation in which a Company s a joint operater, the Company |5
considered to be conducting the transaction with the other parties to the jointoperation, and gans and losses
resulting from the transactans are recognized in the Company’s standalone financial statements only to the
extent of other parties’ interestsin the joint operation. When Company transacts witha joint operation in which
Company is a jont operator, the Company does not recogrze its share of the gains and losses until it resells
those assets to a third party.

The Company has interestin jomtoperation UUS Joint Venture [Private) Limited, a Company set up specifically
for executing mult-year contract "Package 04A ~ Airport information Menagement Systern (AIMS), a turnkey
project for New Islamabad International Airpart by Pakistan Civil Aviation Authority.
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Taxation
Current

Provision for current tax s based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance wath the
prevailng law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax s caloulated using prevailing tax rates or tax
rates expected to apply to the profit for the year, if enacted. The charge for current tax also includes
adjustrments, where considered necessary, to provsion for taxation mede n previous years arsing from
assessments framed during the y=ar for such years.

Deferred

Deferred tax s accounted for using the statement of financial position method in respect of all temparary
differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and Labilities in the financial
statementsand the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit Deferred tax Labdities
are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the
extent thatit 5 probable that taxable profitswillbe available against which the deductible temporarydifferences,
unused tax losses and tax credits can be utdized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates thatare expected to apply to the year when the differences reverse based
on tax rates thathave been enacted or substantivelyenacted by the reparting date. Deferred tax s charged or
credited n the unconsolidated statement of profitor loss, except in the case of items credited or charged to
other comprehensive mcome o which case it is included in other comprehensve income,

Property and equipment
Operating fixed assets

Propertyand equipment are stated ot cost less accumulated depreciation and any dentified impairment loss
except for freehold land which is stated at historic cost. Cost of operating fixed assets consst of purchase cost,
barrowing cost pertaining to construction pericd and directly attributablecost of bringing the asset to working
condition. Subsequent costs are included n the assets carrying amount or recognized as separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economk benefits associated with the item will flow 1o the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are
charged to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred

Depreciation on propertyand equspment is charged to income by applying straightline method on pro rata bases
50 as to writeoff the historicalcost of the assets over their estimated useful lives at the rates given in Note 41
Depreciation charge cormmances from the month in which the asset is available foruse and continues until the
maonth of disposal.

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted If impact an
depreciation is significant

An itern of property and equipment s derecognized upon deposal or when no future economec benefits are

expected from its use or disposal Profit or loss on disposal of operating fixed assets represented by the
difference between the sale preceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is included in ncome.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work in progress represents expenditure on property and equipment which are in the course of
construction and mstallation Transfers are made to relevant property and equipment category as and when
assets are avadable for use

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less identified imparment loss, if any.

Intangibles

Intangible assets acquired from the market are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any
impairment losses.
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Expenditure on research (or the research phase of an Intemnal peoject) s recognized as an expense Iin the
perod in which it is incurred,

Development costs incurred on specilic projects are capitatized when all the following conditions are satisfied

- Completion of the intangible asset is tachnically feasible so that it will be available for use or sale.
- The Company intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it

- The Company has the ability to use or sell the intangible asset.

- Intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits.

- The availability of adequate technical, financial and other resowrces to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset.

- The Company's ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributableto the intangible asset during its
developrment.

The cost of an internallygenerated intangible asset comprises all directlyattributablecosts necessary to create,
produce and prepare the asset to ba capable of operating n the manner intended by the management
Development costs not meeting the criteria for capitalization are expensed as incurred

After inetial recognition, internallygenerated intangible assets are carred at cost less accumulated amortzation
and impermaent losses, if any These are amortized using straightine method at the rate given in Note S Full
month amartization on additions is charged in the month of acquisition and no amortzationis charged m month
of desposal

The Company assasses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that intangible assets may ba
impaired If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are
recorded in excess of their recoverable amount Where carrying amounts exceed the respective recoverable
amaount, assets are writtendown to their recaverable amounts and the resultng impairment loss is recognized in
unconsolidated statement of profitor loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. Where an impaiement loss is recognized, the amortization charge is adjusted in
the future penods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets ather than inventories and deferred tax asset, are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit
is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell in assessing value in use, the estimated
futurecash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment
testing assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use thatare largelyindependent of the cash mflows of other assets or
groups of assets (the “cash genarating unit, or CGU")

The Company's carporate assets do not genarate separate cash Inflows I thera is an indication that a
corporate asset may be impared, then the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the
corporate assel belongs An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount Impairment losses are recognized in unconsolidated statement of
profit o loss,

Impairment loss recogrezed in pror perieds s assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss
has decreased or no longer exists An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's
carryng amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciaton or
amortization, if no impairment less had been recognazed

Staff benefits
The Company has the following plans for its employees:
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Provident fund

The Company operates a funded recognized provsdent fund contribution plan which covers all permanent
employees Egual contributionsare made on monthlybasis both by the Company and the employees at 0% of
basic pay.

Employees’ share option scheme

The Company operates an equity settled share based Employees Stock Option Scheme. The compensation
committee of the Board of Directors of the Company evaluates the performance and other critenia of employees
and approves the grant of options. These options vest with ermployees over a specified period subject to
fulfitlment of certain conditions. Upon wvesting, employees are eligible to apply and secure allotment of
Company's shares at a price determined on the date of grant of options.

At the grant date of share options to the employees, the Company initiallyrecognizes employee compensation
axponso withcorresponding credit ta aquity as employoe compensation reserve at the fair value of cption at the
grantdate The fair value of options determined at the grant date is recognized as an employee compensation
expense on a straightline basis over the vesting period. Fair value of options is arrived at using Black Scholes
pricing madel

When share options are exercised, the proceeds received net of any transaction costs, are credited to share
capital [nominal value| and share pramium

Investments

The management determines the classificaton of its investments at the time of purchase depending on the
Company’'s business model for managing the financial assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics
Investments intended to be held for less than twelve months from the statement of financial position date or to
be sold to raise operating capital are included = current assets, all other nvestments are classified as non-
current assets. {Refer to Note 3.16 for detailed policy of classificaton, initial and subsequent measurement.

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries and associates

Investments in subsidianes and associates where the Company has significant mfluence are measured at cost
in the Company’s separate financial statementsin accordance withlAS-27 Consoldated and separate fmancaal
statements’

The Company is required to publish corsolidated financial statements along with its separate financial
statoments, in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 3 Corsolidated Financial Statements and IAS 27
‘Consolidated and separate financal statements’. Investments in associates, in the consolidated financeal
statements, are being accounted for using the equity methed,

Foreign currency transactions

Assets and Uabilities In foreign currencles are translated into Pak Rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the reportingdate. Tramsactions during the year are converted into Pak Rupees at the exchange rate pravailing
at the date of such transaction All exchange differences are charged to unconsolidated statement of profitor
loss.

Trade debts

Trade debts from local customers are stated at amortized cost less expected credit losses while foreign debtors
are stated at translated amount by applying exchange rate applicable on the reporting date.

Expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are calculated as a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the present value of all cash shortfalisiie the difference between cash flows due to the Company
in accordance with the contract and cash flows that the Company expects to recewe). (Refer tonote 3%.4 for
detailed policy for impairment of financial assets|
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Advances and deposits
These are recognized at nominal amount which is fair value of consigerations ta be recened in future.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payable are carried at cost which s the fair value of the consideration to be paid
future for goods and services.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized in the unconsolidated staterment of financial position when the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that outflow of resources embodying
ecoromic benefits willbe required to settie the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

However, provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and adjusted to reflect current
best estimate. Where outflowof resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. a contingent Liabilityis
declosed, untess the possibility of outflow & remote

Government grants

Gavernment grants are recognized where there = reasonable assurance that the grant willbe recerved and all
attached conditions willbe complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected
useful life of the related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at nominal
amaunts and released to unconsolidated statement of profitar loss aver the expected useful Lfe of the asset,
based on the pattern of consumption of the benefits of the underlying asset by equal annual instalments

Revenue recognition

Revenue recognzed In any period & based on the delivery of parformance obligations and an assessment of
when control is transferred to the customer. For contracts with multiple components to be delivered,
management applies judgement to consider whether those promised goods and services are: (i) distinct— to be
accounted foras separate performance obligations, fiil not distinct - to be combined withother promised goods
or services untila bundle is identified that s distinet; or (i) part of a series of distinct goads and services that
are substantially the same and have the same pattern of transfer to the customer.

At cantract inceptian the total transaction price = estimated, which = allacated to the identified performance
obligations in proportionto thewr relative standalone selling prices and revenue is recognzed when (or as) those
performance obligations are satisfied

For each performance obligation, the Company determines if revenue willbe recognized aver time or at & paint
in time. Where the Company recognizes revenue over time this 5 due to any of the foliowengreasons. (i) the
Corrpany parformingand the customer simultangously receiving and corguming the banefits provided over the
life of the contract, (i} the Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced, or {il] the Company's perfarmance creates an asset withno alternative use,
and the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For each performance obligation to be recognized owver time, the Company applies # revenue recogmation
methad that faithfullydepicts the Company’s perfarmance in transferringcontrol of the geods or senvices to the
customer. The Company applies the relevant input method consistently to similar performance obligations in
other contracts. If performance obligations in a contract do not meet the over time critena, the Company
recognizes revenue at a point in time.

Changes in estimates of measures of progress of performance obligations satisfied over time are recognized on
4 cumulative catch-up besis, which recognizes in the current pericd the cumulative effect of any changes on
current and prior periods based on a performance obligation's percentage of completion.
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The Company dsaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by contract type, geographical markets
and timing of revenue recognition, as management belleves this best depicts how the nature, amount, tming
and uncertainty of the Company’s revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors. The revenue
recognition policy relevant to each contract type & as below:

Professional services

The nature of contracts or performance obligations categonzed withinthis reverue typeis diverse and includes
(i) software ticense from third party, (i} software implementation; and (il software mantenance / support
contracts.

The Company makes judgments in determining whether the softwareimplementation and software license are
distinct and thus separate performance obligations aor part of the bundle and thus a single perfoermance
obligation depending upon the level of custom@ation involved and other key factors surrounding each contract
Revenue is recognizad at a point i time or over ime as appropriate.

The Company has assessed that maintenance and supportis a performance obligation that can be corsidered
capable of being distinctand separately identifiable n a contract These recurring services are substantiallythe
“ame as the nature of the promise is for the Company 1o 'stand ready’ to perform maintenance and support
when required by the customer. Time-based measure of progress is used for such services since it best
reflects the Company's effortsin satisfying the performance obligation Time-based measure of progress is
ascertained using the Percentage of Completion [PoC) method To measure the PoC, input method is used by
the management PoC = measured by taking into account the cost incurred to date as a percentage of total
budgetad cost.

Outsourcing services

The Company considers that the business processing outsourcing and other services provided meet the
definition of a seres of distinct goads and services as they are: (i} substantiallythe same; and (5] have the
same pattern of transfer (as the series constitutes services provided in distinct time increments feg  daily,
menthly, quarterly or annual services]) and therefore treats the seres as one performance obligaton For the
majprityof outsourcing services, the Company recognizes revenue based on provision of services over time as
it best reflects the nature in which the Company is transferring control of the geods or services to the customer.

Revenue from business process outsourcing services is recognized on completon of processing Revenue
ather outsourcing services is recogned as services are provided.

Sale of third party software

Revenue is recognized at the point in time when obligations under the terms of the contract with the customer
are satisfied, generally this occurs when control of the software has transferred and there s no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the software ususlly on delivery of the software,

Licenses and license support services

Software licenses delivered by the Company can either be right to access’ or rightto use’ licenses. Software
licenses meeting the criteria for right to access are recagnized ovar the period of teme. Software licerses not
meeting the criteria of ‘nghtto access’ are accounted foras rightto use and the revenue is recognized at a point
in time

The Company considers for each contract that ncludes a separate license performance obligationall the facts
and arcurstances n determining whether the License revenue s recognzed over time or at a pointin time from
the go live date of the licensa

Contract Assets
A contract asset is intallyrecognized forrevenue earned because tha receipt of consideration is conditional on

successful completon of the milestones as per contract. Upon completon of the milestone and acceptance by
the customer, the amount recognized as contract assets s reclassified to trade debts
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Contract Liabilities

A contract Uabilityss recognized f 3 payment is recened or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a
customer before the related goods or services are transferred. Contract liabilitiesare recognized as revenue as
and when performance obligations are delivered under the contract.

Other income

Profiton depesit account and gain on short tarm investrmants and other income is recognized using effectve
interest rate.

Unrealized gains / {losses) arising on revaluation of securities classified as " fair value through profit or loss” are
included in unconsoldated statement of profit or loss in the penod in which they arse.

Financial instruments - Initial recognition and subseguent measurement

Initial Recognition

Allfinancial assets and liabdities are initiallymeasured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given
or received, These are subsequently measured at far value, amortized cost or cost as the case may be

Classification

Classification of financial assets

The Company classifies s financial nstruments in the following categanes:
- at fair value through profit or loss (*FVTPL),

- &t fair value through other comprebensive income ["FVTOCI"), or
- al amortized cosl

The Company determings the classification of financial assets at initial recognition. The classificaton of
instruments fother than equity Instruments) is driven by the Company’s business model for managing the
financial assets and ther contractual cash flow characteristics

Financioal assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortized cost

- the fmancial asset is held withina busness model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual teems of the financal asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCH
- the financal asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and
- tha contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principat amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL

317.2.2 Classification of financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories.

- at fair value through profit and loss ["FVTPL"), or
- atamornzed cost.

Financial lisbilities are measured at amartized cost, untess theyare required to be messured at FVTPL [such as
instruments held for trading or dervatives) or the Company has opted to measure them at FVTPL
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Subseguent measurement

Financial assets at FVT0CI

Elected mvestments in equity mstrumentsat FVTOO are intiallyrecognized at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value, woth gains or losses arising from changes in fair
value recognized in other comprehensive incorme/(loss)

i) Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost

Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost are initallyrecognized at fair value plus transaction costs,
and subsequently carried at amortized cost, and in the case of financial assets, Less any impairment.

i) Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL

Financial assets and labilitiescarried at FVTPL are initiallyrecorded at far value and transaction costs are
expensad in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss Realized and unrealized gains and losses
arsing fromchanges in the farr value of the financlal assets and labditiesheld at FVTPL are included in the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arse.

Where management has opted to recognize a financial labilityat FVYTPL, any changes assocated with the
Company’s own credt risk will be recognized in ather comprehensive ncome/(loss). Currently, there are no
financial liabilities designated at FVTPL.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on financial assets measured at
amortized cost at an amount egual to life time ECLs except for the followang, which are measured at 12 month
ECLs:

- bank balances for which credit risk {the risk of default accurring over the expected life of the financial
instrument) has not increased since inception.

- other short term loans and receivables that have not demonstrated any increase in cradit risk since
Inception

Loss allowance for trade debts are always measured at an amount egual 1o Life time ECLs. Life time ECLs are
the ECLS that result from all passible defaults avents over the expectud Ufe of a financisl instrument. 12 month
ECLs are portionof ECLs that result from default events thatare possible within 12 months after the reporting
date

ECLs are a probabilityweighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of
all cash shortfalls(ie. the difference between cash flowsdue to the Company in accordance with the contract
and cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is wnittenoff when the Company has no reasonpable expectabon
of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof

Derecognition
il Financial assets

The Company derecognizes financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the
financial assats expire or when it transfersthe financal assets and substantiallyall the assocated risks and
rewards of ownershig to another entity. On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortized cost,
the difference between the asset's carrying value and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
is recognized in unconsolidated statement of profitor loss. In addition, en derecognition of an investment in
a debt instrument classified as FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
Investments revaluation reserve 15 reclassified to unconsolidated statementof profitar loss In contrast, on
derecognition of an mvestmant in equity instrumentwhach the Company has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOC, the curmulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the nvestments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to equity



) Financial Uabllities

The Company derecognizes financial Liabilives only when its abligations under the financial labilities are
dscharged, cancelled or expired The difference between the carrying amount of the financial Lability
derecognized and the consideration paid and payable, including any nen-cash assets transferred or
liabdlitiesassumed, is recognized i the unconsolidated statement of profitor loss and othercomprehensive
income

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities only when ts obligations under the financial Labilities are

discharged, cancelled ar expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or
Labiliesassumed, is recognized in the unconsolidated statementof profitar loss and other comprehenswve

income.

317.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial Labilities

Financial assets and liatditiesare offsetand the net amount i reported in the statement of financial pasition if
the Company has legallyenforceable nightto offsetthe recognized amounts and the Company ntends to settle
either on & net basis or reelize the asset and settle the Labilty simultaneously

318 Finance costs
Finance cost is charged to unconsolidated statement of prafit or loss in the year in which it is incurred.
319 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated in the statementof financal position at amortized cost For the purposs
of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hend, cheques /demand draftn
hand and deposits in the bank.

320 Leases
3207 Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-ofwse assets at the commencement date of the lease (e the date the
underlying asset & available for use) Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted forany remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-
use assets includes the amount of lease Liabilies recognized, initial drect costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Company is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognazed right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term Right-of-use assets are subect o impairment.

3202 Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease labilities measured at the present
vaiue of lease payments to be made over the lease term, The lease payments include fixed payments {including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments thatdepand on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be pard under residual value guarantees,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implict in the lease is not readily determinable After the
commencerment date, the amount of lease liabilitiesis increased to reflect the acoretion of mterestand reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities Is remeasured if there s a
medification, a change in the leasa term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the
assessment to purchase the underlying asset

321 Dividends and appropriation reserves

Dwvigends and other appropeiation 1o reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the pered in which
these are approved However, if they are approved after the reporting period but before the unconsolidated
financial statements are authorized for lssue, they are disciosed In the notes to the unconsalidated financial
statements.
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Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and dituted eamings par share (EPS]. Basic EPS Is calculated by dividing the
profitafter tax attributableto ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ardinary
shares outstanding during the pericd. Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributableto ordinary
equity halders of the parent (after adjustment) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of ardinary shares that would be issuad on conversion of atl
the dilutive potentiad ordinary shares into ordinary shares

Segment reporting

Segment reporting 5 based on the operating (business) segments of the Company. An operating segment s a
companent of the Company that engages n business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
experses, ncluding revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other
companents. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by the Chief Executive Officer
(the CED)} to assess segment’s performance, and for which discrete financial mformationis avadable, Segment
resultsthatare reparted to the CEQ include items deectlyattributableto a segment as wellas those thatcan be
allocated on a reasonable basis Unallocated items comprise mainly other operating expenditures, other
income, finance cost, corparate assets, income tax assets and liabilities. Segment capital expenditure is the
total cost incurred during the year to acquire property and equipment

Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Approved Accounting (Standards that are not yet
effective)

The followngstandards, amendments and interpretationswithrespect to the appraved accounting standards as
applxcable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or
interpretation:

Effective Date

{Annual periods
Standard or Interpretation beginning on or after)
The changes In Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 [Amendments to IFRS 01 January 2021
9,1AS 39,4FRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS %)
Annual improverments make minor amendments to IFRS 3 Financial Instruments, 01 January 2022
1AS 41 Agriculture and the Illustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16 Leases
1AS 16 amendment regardng proceeds before ntended use 01 January 2022
IAS 37 amendment regarding onerous contract 01 January 2022

Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations update a reference in IFRS 3 to the 01 January 2022
Conceptual Framework for Fmancial Reporting without changing the accounting

requirements for business combinations

I1AS Tamendment regarding the classification of Labilities as Current or Non Current 01 January 2023

IFRS 10 & |AS 28 - Consolidated Fmancal Statements & Investment in Assocates
and Jont Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Not yat finalized
Asspclate or Joint Venture - [Amendment)

The Company expects that the adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretationswillhave no
materal effect n the period of initial application,

In additien to the above, the followingnew standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by
the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan:

IASB effective date
{Annual periods
Standard beginning on or after)
IFRS 1+ First-time Adoption of international Financial Reporting Standards 01July 2009

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts 01 January 2023
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4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT Note Rupees Rups=es
Operating fed assets 147 1507212971 1392618772
Capital work in progress (42) 746,272 24025244

1476845076

41  Operating fixed assets
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411  The cost of owned assets include assets amounting to Re, 3195 [20713: Rs. 237.3) milbion with nil beok value.

412  Immovable fxed assets include freehold Land and Bulding situated at E-7, Sehpal, Near DHA Phase-VIIl [Ex-Ax Avenwe),
Lahore Cantt Total area of land 15 1817 kanals

2020 201
4.2  Capital work in progress Note Rupees Rupees
Advance aganst purchase of computers 746,272 -
Transformer - 24,025,244

746,272 24025244

421 The following & tha movemant in capital work-in-progress during the year:

Balance at the beginning of the year 24,025244 22AT\B0S
Additions during the year 18,2501 14044 235
Transfes 10 operating fixed assets (422) {36,529, (12,490,595)

Balance at the end of the year 746272

422 Trarafers tooperating fixed assets relate to generators and transfor mer
43 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocatad as follows:

Cesll of revenue (25} 182,934,914 274731
Selling and distribution expenses (26) 2285,%3 188242

ADMINSIrative EXpanses 2 271598727 17,717 500
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Dispasal of property and equipment

Details of disposed assets which had a net book value of Rs S00.000 or more, are as fallows

Perticelers

Vetveles

Hencia City 1821500
Honda City 2315000
Honde City 1924000
Toyota fixis 18 2420250
Honde Civic 18 2467230
Toyota Corodla 68U 2553000

Accumaiated Vritoen
geprecistion oW vl e
Repees-
84000 WIES 1555000 SUEAN  Comparypulicy  Ahowd Agrat
(&7 247 19677953 1583821 03932  Companypolicy  Syw Secd Akirier
15307 140529 1923996 S1067  Compenypolicy  Susur Abbex
369573 2050577 2315000 254423 Comgenypoicy  Syed Afaal Niam
249203 2B 21766 60362)  Companypolicy  Muhanmad Wahe
Third party
B5265 2471273¢ 2565000 92266 Negooecon Fak Awco Waceshap

20

| e

Partkuars Comx
Veheley

Hongs Chvic 252270
Hende Chic V1 2503000
CorodaGLl 2372000
Toyota fize 16 2273000
Honda Civic 18 2832E00
Toyots Corolle 16 AT 20mnmw
Moncle City 1503500
Monde City 11 Wripoo
Honce BRV BBE
Corcdle St 16 150500
Teyota Corella 136U 2250600
Teyota Corells Altis Se3 840
Honde City Aapice 1553000
Toyota Corolls X1 1550340
Honda Civic 18 1537000
Toyoul CorolaGU 13 1537000
Toyota lise 18 1337000
Honda Crec 10 2353000
Sumaka Calhiy 10w
Honde Crvic 213208
Honcle City Aspee W00
Toyate Corells 19950
Honde City 13 Be22%

Aggregane of temes of property and equipment
with indaidunt book walue betow s 500,000 BASLT0

L | &
227005635

I3RT3IS

Acomideted Written Sele Gain ? [Loss) Mode of Partzulars
deprecaton down walue proceeds dapoasl of boyer
2 prey—————————————
Ennpluxees
18303204 842390 2014998 V72608 Congeny Poley  Zand lanja
[Fe285 1720812 251000 790188 Comgeny Palicy  besvan Hussain
E53467) 181532 1778%85 132583 Comgany Policy  Alid Han!
|7 186183 2275000 ATTAT  Company Palcy  Naurean fewar
e 1930570 1530970 Comgany Polcy  Ahmied Saeed
486253 532207 1200,000 300 Compeny Polcy  Salmen WM
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387585 16275 1567980 40525  Comgony Aoicy  Shoab Al
Inasea BT 432 1537000 TRse2 Company Palcy Wahe Ul
(Te433% 792867 1537205 T446E  Compeny Polcy  Mehammed Adjar
pTIAGY o 1553000 B51Ad  Compery Palcy  Aursngaeb
ao41n urases u2r oy M54 CompenyPolcy  Waseem jaffer
28374 9005 1537000 646264  Compeny Polcy  Farban Umer
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(s 0z Eb5 a8 1175000 VOIS Nepotaben Rwaal Metors
G0474% 57485 180462 446677 Nagotaben Rungal Moty
2537037 433307
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5 INTANGIBLES

Computer software and Ucenses
Software under developmant

Note

(5.9

2020 2008
Rupees Rupees
10,118,856 3108578
1,226,032 75485640

21,345,868 38657 318



5.1 Computer software and licenses
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5.2 The cost of the intangibles include assets amounting to Rs 130 milicn (2012 Rs. 817 million| with nil boak value.

53 Amortization charge for the year has been 2020 2019
allocated as follows: Note Rupees Rupees
Cost of reverue (2s) 17,672,598 2559016
Distribution expenses (26) 255,061 3838 865
Administrative expenses 27 3,061,163 3822164

20,988 822 25911545

2020 2019
8. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS Note i .
Investment In subsidiaries - at amortized cost - unquoted
£-Pracessing Systems |Private| Limited (6.7 270500227 270500227
178,507 (20719: 779,507} fully paid
ordinary shares of Rs 10/ each
TechVista Systems FZ- LLC (62) 377,950 1377550
S0 [2019: 50] fully pad
ordinary shares of AED 1000/~ each

SUS-JV |Private} Limited {63) 94,990 94,990
2,459 (2019: 9,493) fully paid

ordinary shares of Rs. 10/~ each

Systems Ventures Private Limited {6.4) 99,980

5,838 (2019 Nil) fuily paid

ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each

272073147 271973767

61 This represents 44 60% (201: 55.75%| shares in the Company’s subsidiery, E-Processing Systems (Private) Limited, a
company engaged in the business of purchase and sale of airtime and related services in Pakistan. As per the
management assessment, the contral over the entity les with the Company,

6.2 This represents 7100% shares in the Company's subsidiary, TechVista Systems FZ- LLC, a company set up in Dubel
Technology and Media Free Zone Authorityengaged in providing a host of senices including enterprss applcaton
Integration and software development

63 This represents 9499% (2079: 94.99%) shares in Company's subsidary, SUS JV {Private) Limited, a company set up
in Pakistan for tha Balochistan Land Revenue Management information System project The project s related to
digitization of Land racords and development of & web-based managemant information system

6.4 This represents 9958% [2075: Nill share in Campany’s subsidiary, Systems Ventures [Private] Limited, a company set
up in Pakrstan ta invest in new ventures, start ups and mcubate new ideas.




T. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Set aut below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recogned and the mavements during the year:

2020
Rupees
As at 01 Jaruary 145,860,345 -
Agditions 99,007,148 182,325,437

Deprecation expense

As at 31 Decamber 204,395,352 145860,345

FA The depreciation charge far the year on nght-of-use assets has been allocated as follows:

Note 2020 208
Rupees Rupees
Cost of reverue (25) 15,379,034 13,519,405

Selling and distribution expenses (26)

Admnistrative expenses

2.832,980
259,128
40,471,142

8. CONTRALCT ASSETS - unsecured
Unbdled revenue (8.) 481344379 374709876
Retention meney 52,596,431 59,560,947

533,940,810 434270823

81 Unbilled revenue

Export (avy 374294987 19780698
Local W2,062180 252029682
566,357,167 445,910,380

Less Allowance far ECLs / Pravision for doubtful debts (813) (85,012.788)  (75,20050¢4)
(8.14) 481,344,379 374709876

B.11 This includes amount not yet biled to related partles, Visionet Deutschland GMBH and TechVista Systems FZ - LLC
amounting to Rs. 187.61 mullion (2018 N} and Rs 177.72 (2079 Rs 189330| mvilion, respectively. Aging analysis of

these balance is as follows:
2020 2019
Visionet Tech Vista Visicnet Tech Vista
Deutschland Systems Deutschland Systems
GMBH FZALC-UAE GM3H FZALC - UAE
Rupees
- Not mare than three months 135801761 17193262 - 123,300,387
- Mare than three manths but nat
more than sx months 47873522 5,786,798 - -
- Mare than six months but not
more than twelve months 3,932,960 - - -
- Mare than twelve months - - - -
187,608,243 177,120,960 183,300,187
812 The maximum aggregate amount cutstanding by reference to 2020 2018
maonth-end balances was as follows Rupees Rupees
Visionat Dautschland GMBH 275,359,167

Tech Vista Systems FZ-LLC - UAE 332,591,864 538450,000
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Allowance for ECLs | Provision for doubtful debts

As at 01 January 75200504 90,817,128
Expense / (recavery) for the year - net 9,812,284 (1,760.292)
Balances wntten off during the yes

As at 31 December

85,012,788 15,200,504

These represent unbilled debtors ansing due to recognition of revenue upon delivery of performance obligatansas per
contract on the basis of percentage of completion as per IFRS 15 - Reverue from Contracts with Custamers.

Note 2020 20M8
TRADE DEBTS Rupees Rupees
Expart (9.9 2.0B0 448006 1461328976
Lacal __ 5BO763256 473246032
267021262 1934575008
Loss: Allawance for ECLs / Provision for doubtful dobts (83) (231,773,764) [13506696)

2435437498 1799468312

These nclude receivable against sale of services from related parties, Visionet Systemns Incorparation {USA), Visionet
Deutschland GMBH, TechVista Systems FZ - LLC {Dubail, TachVista PtyLimited {Australia) and TechVista Information
Technology [Batar) amounting to Rs. 110088 {2013 Rs 5682.2] million, Rs. 1854 [2019: Nd), Rs. 78250 (2019 Rs
B00.738) millien, Rs. B43 (2019 Rs. 418) millionand Rs 11680 (2079 Rs. 8388| million respectively. Aging analysis

the amounts « as follows

2020
; TechVista
Visionet YechVi Visi o ‘ TechVista
Incorporatian Sy Pty Limited - Technology -
-USA FZ-LLC - UAE GMBH Australia Qat
-Rupeas-
- Within 30 days 491,534,869 29,400,937 18535554 981,040 12,267,152
-31-%0 days 609,446,087 136,200,281 - 490,520 23,001,230
-91-270days - 173,150,257 - 2943120 49,359,049
-271- 365 days - 387,7266M - 1962079 23,106,667
- Above 365 days - 36,024,248 - 2057681 9,070,210
100,980,956 762,502,394 18539554 8434440 116,804,308
201
Visianet TechVista Visinet TechVista Pty "“""‘f.““
Systerms incorporation|  Systems Deutschand Lim&ed - f'x‘ °h'"' ob"' 273
-USA FZALC- UAE GMBH Australia i m}‘"
Hupees-
« Within 30 cays 290213756 386,343 354 . 778674 4308 393
-31-90 days 262029762 ; 1777747
«81. 270 days . 57133374 . 2388960 FaEREL
- 277- 365 days . 55671264 - N425 -
- Abave 365 da - £27,469 . .

BOO 775481 AER007




Nate 2020 2019

82 The maxsmum aggregate amount autstanding by refererce to Rupees Rupees
month-end batarces was as follows
Visionet Systems Incorporaton - USA 1354441340 039,540,709
Visianet Deutschlard GMBH 18539554 -
TechVista Systerra FZ-LLC- VAE 979278660 1004354481
TechVista Py Limited - Austrata 8,434,440 5W\234
TechVista Infarmation Technology - Qatar T3 984932 9375647

93 Allowance for ECLs / Provision for doubtful debts

As at 00 Bnuary 135,106,696 37408044
Addition during the ysar 119,038,124 4 1666,348
Reversal during the year - (41804.9%4)
Expense for the yesr 100,083,434
Bakarces written off during the year (22.372,058) (2,384, 782)

Az ot 31 Decembenr .3, 231773704 135,906,696

237 These rclude allowancs for ECLS aganst recevabies fram related party, TechVista Systens FZ - LLC {Dubald ard
TechVsta nformaton Techrology [Qatar| ameunting to Rs 2665 (2019: Rs. 3267) million and Ry 5420 mison (2019

Ni) respectively.
Naote 2020 2009
0 LOANS, ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEVABLE Rupees Rupees
Advances to taff aganst:
salary narinee 6,254,346
mpenses 3,061489 28273442
14,534,591 34537,768
Advances to supplors - against goods 49,224,901 56,124,366
92 131262154
Loans ta related parties :
Elmination on account of Joint Operation (09 6 941404
o2) W1,478778  TRE95EE6
Other receivable {10.3) 128,500 -
2053667 32860020

0 This represents. loan provided to UUS Joint Venture [Povate) Limaed for meeting warking capital reqarements This
amount is unsecured and carries intere=t at one-year KKBOR on the cutstanding loan balarce at the o of esch month

w2 Thiss includes losrs provided 1o the following related parties Note 2020 209
E-Processing Systems (Prauate) Limited o2 118,758,259 170,626,354
SUS IV (Private) Limited {10.2.2) 23320520 2E2N5e

w2 This camnes marieup at one-menth KIBOR on the outstanding loan balance at the end af cach month

w22 This cames mariceup at cna-year KIBOR on the cetstanding koen balance at the end of each menth

w23 The maximum aggregate amount outstandng by reference to 2020 2018
month-end balances was a3 follows Rupees Rupees
E-Processing Systems (Praste) Limited 212,5%,33% 36008860
SUS IV (Priate) Limited 48291083 50,684,676

260807473 4918 7173466

03 This represants recenctla from related party, Systems Ventures (Prvate) Limited, on account of INCorparation experses
paid by the Company onits behaif.
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Nate 2020 2019

TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS Rupees Fupees
Sewity deposits 1B2575274 W04,471284
Prepayments 5535367 26,1726%
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Fair value through profit or loss

+  Mutual fund units {127 559,845,556

122} 2.085,000,000 780,000,000
2.544,845556 780,000,000

The details of rwestments in mutual funds are as follows:

UBL Al-Ameen Asset kslamic Alocation Fund 51,952,700

Nurrer of units - 409,055 (2013: Nil)

Alfalah GHP slamic Income Fund 51291201

Mearnber af urits - 502 485 (2019 Nl

HBL Asset Isamic Allocation Fund 51444992

Number af units - 460,820 (2019 Nal)

Lakson klamiz Tactizal Fund 52449350

Nuamber of units - 534122 (209 NA)

Meszan Balanced Fung 00590950 .
Number of units © 6,450,950 0% Nill

Maezan Klamk come Fund £0,337.808 -
MNurmder of units - S44453 (2015 Nil)

NGP islanc Sarmays lzafa Fund 200778545 -

Nurmoer of units - 12,352,453 (2008 . ML)

559,845,556

Tha details of investments in TDRS are as follows

Faysnl Bank Limited 400,000,000 -
Hab Matropolitan Bank Umited 156560,000,000 S48 000,000
Habib Bank Limited 25,000,000 25,000,000
Meszan Bank Umited -

22y 2085000000  780,000,00C

ThesR Carmy markup at r32es ranging fram 6% 1o 2 75% (200 12.25% 1o 12 65%) per aovum

2020 2018
TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM THE GOVERNMENT T Rupess fopans
Incoma tax - net ¥6,007,954 W1824160
Sales tas - 097135

©6,007.954 2 188 56




Note 2020 201

4. CASH AND BANK BALANCES Rupess Rupess
Cash n hand 977983 1651049
Balances with banks:

Local currency:
Current accounts 14, 213301563
Saving accounts 4 395,180,848 8625968578
1076000241
FOragn Oumency - SLTent accouns 673245127 17,504 024

1577.759,692 1095555314

4.1 Thess carry markup at the rate of 310% 10 11505 (2079 935 10 1253 per anmm

2020 20M
15. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAMITAL Rupees Rupess
2020 2018
(Nurmber of shares)

Ordmnary shares of Rs 10V each

24533095 23447380  fully pad i cash 245,330,950 234473500
Ordinary shares of Rs. W0¥- each

100,072,913 10007231  fully ped up as bonus shares 1,000,725,%30 1000,729 140

124,506,014 B352029 L246,060,740 1235202930

151 Reconcilistion of ordinary shares

2020 2019
Thumber of shares)
123520293 2213548 Balance at 01 Jarvary 1,235,202,990 122,135,480
. 221354 Bonus shares ssued . n2.213540
108575 85397 Stock aptons exercad 10,857,150 8534970

124.606.04 123520299 Baanceat 31 Uscembar 1.246,060,140 1235202990

Note 2020 201
15. CAPITAL RESERVES Qupees Rupees
Share premium reserva (1s.1) 614,907,470 51249734
Employes compensation reserve M52) 84,747,028 78970025

639654 456 SeLneTrss

16,1 This reserve shall be utiized only for the purpose s specihiad In sectian 832) of the Companies Act, 2017

16,2 The represents balance amount after ewerose of share optiors by the ermployees under the Employee Stock Ootion Scheme approved by
the SECP According 10 the scheme, 100% options become exerosabie after completion of westing pencd from the date of grant Ths
options have a westing paricd of 2 years and an exercise perad of 3 years from the date the opton & vested.



B2 The following table dlustrates the number and weghted average exercise poces of, and mavements in, share options

Aunng the year:
2020 201
Weighted Number of m Numiber of
exercise price Pt exercise price P
Rupees Numbar Rupees MNumber
Outstanding st 01 January 77.46 2,479,946 8073 1374,3%6
Granted during the year
- STOCK OPUioes awarded in Jarwary 7534 1529.034 - -
« stock options awarded n Apnl - . 7334 133191
- stock optiors awarded n July 12223 200,000 . -
Forfeted shire optices 7234 (469,643} 5073 140,965}
Exercoed durrg the year
- steck options awandsd in 206 - - 4593 Inaso)
- Slock optiors awarded in 2017 6258 (316,831 5259 (74347)
- stock optiors awardsd in 208" 2n (768,884) e -

Oeastanding a1 31 Decanhe 2653622
Vested and exercisable ot 31 December 7213 17676 6212 344004

The weghted average share price st the date of the exercise of these options was R's. 9632 (2013: Rs 95.02)

* The weghted average share price &t the date of the exercise of these options was RS, 14384,

622 The weighted average remainng contractual Ufe for the share options outstanding as ot 31 December 2020 i 390 years
[207€: 381 years)

1623  The weighted average fair vslus of options granted during the year was Rx §7.72 2019:Rs 393|

B24 The rarge of sxercise pnces for aptions ousstanding at the end of the year s RS 7213 t0 RE 12223 (2079 Rs 4538 ta Fs
7338

1625 The following table Usts the inputs to the model used for the plan for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2078,
respectuvely

2020 2013

Drvidend yield 2% 2%
Expected volstility F2%- 40% ELEY
R=k-froe interest rate 730% & 780% nes%
Expected life of share aptions (years| 21 22
Weighted average share price Rs. 13247 s 96
Model usad

Black Scholes  Black Scholes

The expected life of the share options s based on hatorcal data and current expectations and S not necessarily
roicative of exercise patterrs that may ocowr. The expected volatiity reflects the assumption that the historical
voatility over a period simiar ta the Uife of the options &5 indicatve of future trends which may nat necessanly be the
actual outoome.
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18.

Note 2020 20W
Rupees Rapces

LONG TERM ADVANCES {17 174

Thesa reprasent advances recewad from St snd will be adjusted a6 per Company's Car policy aganst sale of vehicles,
The far value adjustrent in accordance with the reguirements of IFRS 9 - Financisl Instruments arising in respect of
lorg term Loans is nat corsidered nsgrificant by the management

Note 2020 2008
Rupees Rupees
LONG TERM LOAN
MCE Bark Limited 190641884 .
Add: Unwirding of interest 8,125,960 :
e 16767844 -

Less: Currant ﬁ n {100,754,617) .

This represents loan of RS 210 mibon obtaned under Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salarss 10 Workers
and Employees of Business Concerns (the Scheme} offered by State Bank of Pakistan to mitigate the effect of COVID-¥9
on employmant in Pakistan The fackity has an aggregate sanctioned Lenit of Rs 35 million. it camies mark-up at SBP
rate plus 1% per annum and S secured agairst 8 pari passu charge of ®s 13267 milion over the presert and future
current assets of the Company and 1=t exclusive equtable mortgage and hypothecaton charge of R= 1066 7 mitlion aver
the non ourrent assets of the Company. The Loan is repayable in equat quarterty mstailments caommencing Septermber 26,
2020 and endeg December 26, 2022 The twa trarches of 10an were initially recogrized at amortized oSt using
effective interest rate of 794% end 725% (3month KIBOR) respectvely The dfference between cash received and
present vatue of cash outflows upon nital recagnition has been recagnzed as deferred grant

Note 2020 209
LEASE LIABIUTIES " Rupees “Aupees
Present value af lease rentals 227,393,268 EBATIEE
Less: Current portion shown under current babdities 37,880.7 12920459

188,408,537

Finance cost for Principal
LesseRentals | o rureperiods | outstanding
2020
Rupees
Nox (ater than ane yoor 58,298,375 20,314 644 37,985,701
Later than one year but not later than fwe years 169,649,601 4185952 128,483,649
Later than five years 69,530,724 0604036 60925880
297,478,700 70,085 432 227393288
Finance cost for Prncpal
A Rveata Future periods ouftstarding
201
Not Ister then ane year 46,457 938 7213342 29284536

Later than one year but not Later than fwve years 153,913 5685 24,725 0565 124,88 920
20047923 41938407 735




Sat cut bolow are the cammying ameures of ase Lablitss and the movements durng the yoar

2020 2018
Rupews Rupess
As ot 01 Jarwary 15847356 -
Additons 99,007,148 B2 3254
Accretion of terest 20,048,198 20431835
Payments (50135594}  |44.283750)
As ot 31December 227,383.268 LEATIH
Salient features of the eases are as follows: 2020 201
Discounting rate TIZ%-R2%% L%%
Pancd of loase 60-120 months &0 months
2020 201
20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Rupees Rupess
Credrors 46,025,945 S1.NBA26
Acorued Sabiles 614,762,540 440558136
Provident fund cortribution payable 32276041 21722279
Wrhholding Income tax payable 27454129 1413584
Sales tax payable 2,134,640 -

7122553295 534 B12 425

2 CONTRACT LIABILITIES 88,669,355 W4,154979

21 These represent mobdization advances received from the customers agairst profeszonal / software development
SEIVIees, Ienses, LOerGe SUpport services and other fees

Note 2020 20m

22 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS Rupaes Rupess
MCB Bank Umited @21 550600000 450000000
Hatzb Metropctan Bank Limited 3 00,000,000 200,000,000

1250,000.000 550000000

221 Thes represents export re-finarce [ERF) avaled aganst aggregate sarctioned Uit of Rs 800 {2019 &s 8000 relbion The
rate of mark up 15 SBP rate plus 05% {2018: SBP rate phus 05%) per annum. These borromngs are secured aganst Rs
975 milon cash margn, =t pan passu of Rs 132760 milon ows the current aszets and Ra 108887 milon
hypothecation and equrable mortgage charge over plant and machinery and 203 marla of land a1 Seh|pal nsar DHA
Prame VI (ex-Ar Avenue Ecen City), respectively.

222 Thes represents export re-finance |ERF) avaled aganst aggregate sarctoned amit of Rs. 700 {2018: Rs. 200) milbon. The
rata of mark up i= SEP rate plus % [20% SBP rate plus 1%). Theze borrowings ara seoursd aganst §s. 950 millon pan
passa hypothecation charge over currert assets and Rs 232 48 evdlion equitabile mortgage over 1535 marks of land at
Sehjpal near DMA Phase VI |ex-Air Avenoe Eden Oty),

22 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

231 Contingencies
Income tax
231 Tax Year 2017 - under section 161

The Deputy Commessiorer Inland Revenue jthe *DCIR) s=sued order under section BIA| of the income Tax Ordinance,
2001 (the “Ordinance”] for the tax year 2017 wharaby tax amounting ta A= & 53 million for non-deduction of withhelding
ax was levied The Company prefermed a0 appeal bafore Commissoner inland Revenue (appeats) [the "OIR(A]"] whikhis
decided aganst the Company Being aggrieved. the Company filed an appeal before the Appsliste Trburmal Infand
Revenue (the “ATEH") which = pending adpudication The management expects a favoradie outcome n this regard
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Tax Year 2016 - Clause 94 part |V of Second Schedule

The Compaery Mled an undertaing pursuant clase 94 part IV of Secand Schedule 10 the Ordinance, thereby opting out of
mnimum tax on services under section 153(0() of the Ordinance in respect of Tax Year 2006, The Addtionsl
Commasicner inland Revenue {*Adal. CIR*| deckned to accept the undertaling against which the Camparry preferred an
appeal before OFA) which has been upheld by the CIR(A). The appest effect / reassessmant may result in tax Uabkzy of
A% 3025 millon. Beng aggrieved, the Compeny has fled an appesl before the ATIR, which is pending adjudication. The
managemant expects a favorable autcome in this regard

Tax Year 2004 - under section 122(5A)

The Addl OR issued order under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance for tax yesr 203, on the basis of wrong proration of
expanzes, capital gan otc and creatad demand of Rs 4859 milon The company preferred an appeat against the arder,
before the CIRIA) who decided the case In favar of the company However, the tax depariment has Nled second appesd
before the ATIR, which & pending adpuxdcation The management expects a favarable outcome in this regerd.

Tax Year 2012 - under saction 122(SA)

The Assistant Commssioner Inland Revenue (FACR®| issued an order under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance for tax yesr
2012, on the task of wrang proration of experses, others @tc. and created demand of K< 1848 million The company
preferred an appeal before the OFRA) ag=nst the impugned order which is partisily decided in favor of the Company
Being aggreved, the Company filed an appeal before the lesrmed ATIR, wheoh = pending adjudication The management
expects 3 favorable outcome in thes regard

Sales tax

Tax Period from January 2016 to December 2016

The Company was selected for Sales Tax Audet through computer ballot for the tax period January 2016 to December
20% and on the bask of aucit proceedings, the DCIR passed arder Na. 3 dated 30 Ay 2020 under saction 12| of the
Sales Tax ACL 1990 on various 55ues including suppressian of sales, non<hargeability of sales tax an aduance from

customers, other income, late fiing of sales tax returns etc and created impugned sales tax demand smounting to Rs.
B55 84 million Being aggneved, the Company preferred an appeal bafore the CIR(AL which is pending adjudication,

Comenitments

Guarantees ssued by the financial instautions on behall of the Company amount to Rs. 20190 (2079 Rs 370 39) milion
Tha includes guarantess of Rs. 272 [201%: Rs 77.38) million gven on behalf of Joint Operation

The cutstanding purchase commitments are ril (209 R=. 1 million).

REVENUE FROM CONTRALCTS WITH CUSTOMERS - NET

Dissggregsted Revenue information
Sat out below 15 the d=aggregation of the Company's revenue fram contracts wih customers:

Note 2020
Export | _Local | Total
Type of goods or services Rupses
Ouesorcng services 1373041004 15484529 1548525533
Saftware trading 400822932 452389126 493212,058
Software implemeration 4515336875 1093870509 5609207300
Less: Sales tax 2411)

Total revenue from conracts with customerns

Timing of revenue recognition - net
Goods and serdces transfered &1 a point in time 40822932  4%6345504 457.%68,436
Goods and services transfermed aver Lime 5800377683 168220526 7,056,598.409
Total rovenue from contracts with customans 59292008 1584566030 7513,766.845




208
Goot | Local | TYatal

Type of goods or services — Rupees
Outsewrcrg services 8045924 175,168,753 97976263
Software trading . 473720 4713720

Software mplementation 3ITEEW 255 BEL 094645 4029910904
Q%5 30T X £4 \ 76 - 1324704

Total revenue from contracts with oustomers 1368160077 5340 560,742

Timing of revenue recognition - net
Goods and services transferred a2 2 point In time -
Goods and services tranaforred over time 3980408 665 91321230 48935249835

4550383847 455038847

Total revenue from contratte with customers 3900 a08 665 L3688 160077 5. 348560.742

240 This represents sales tax chargeable under Frovincil ana Federal Sales tax laws on revers as defined under relevant
lowes.

2412 The disagpregated revenue information based on the geographical locaton has been presentad in note 32 1o thess

unconsclidated financisl statements.
Nate 2020 )
Rupees Rupess
242 Contract balances 24279 69,232,960 129%.978

2421 These reprasent the amount of revenus recognzed from amounts included in contract labkeks at the beginning aof the
e

243 Traesaction prices of remaining performance abligations
The transaction prices alfocated to the remaining performance cbligations (Lnsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31

Decembar 5 as follows:
Note 2020 2010
Rupees Rupess
Within one year 244931576 251837 58S
Mare than cre ye - 430,747,008

244931578 692584 983

The Compaery makes sales against cradit termd In case of credit sales, payment is gererally doe withen 30 days from the

date of biling to the customer,
Note 2020 20M
25 COSY OF REVENUE Rupees Rupees

Salaries, Aormances and amentics 1259 3624971038 2435456558
Purchase of software 1%,643,420 437,1%,550
Technial conguitancy a7.9M40 §5428.750
Prinzing and staticeery 1205 643 1158627
Computer supplies 2077320 31925954
Rent, rates and taxes 6,973,665 6548439
Electricty, gas and wate 46,485,491 49952 464
Travehing and conveyarce 98828578 172365,730
Rupar and mairtenanc 1n4An745 1726780
Postage. telbephons avd telegrams 71239278 51364726
Vehicle running and mantenance 23,675,765 20548733
Erertainment 26,477,190 27,814,262
Foe and subscripnians 48,262,588 15838737
Insarance 5,996,469 6,350,804
Depreciation (43) 182,934,974 127479M
Amartization 53) ET25%8 25690,7T%
Deprecistion of right-of-use asset 7.9 15,379,034 13,919,406

4,775.786027 357288527

251 This rcludes employees retirement benefit experse amcunting to Rs 15839 201G R 104.73] million.
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Note 2020 2019

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES pees Rupees

Salanies, allowances and amanties (Fi% ] arEI 78,6845
Printeg and stationery 370,579 437593
Computer supplies 100,34 85,832
Rertt, rates and taxes 139,473 154,619
Elactricity, gas and watar 107,445 684,845
Traveling and comveysrce 1868378 837307
Repair and mainterance 950,833 229210
Postage, telephone and telegrams 754,222 1023230
Vehicke running and maintenance 1355965 1384,000
Entertainment 489,967 1308,030
Isurance 524,075 69,613
Feoand subscriptons 2,896,029 502,996
Shows, seminars and advertsing 2,991433 1954589
Degrecation (43) 2,285,763 16882142
Amoetization 53) 255,061 398665
Doapracation of right-of-use asset {7.1) 2,832,960 240,343

118,794,080

This includes eemplayees rebrement benefit expense amounting to Ra 337 (201 A= 286) million.

99,693,155

Note 2020 200

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Rupees Rupees

Salarks, dlonances and amentes 71 294,004,822 277,704,266
Printing and statorery 4,844 %0 3368725
Cornputer supplies 7.497.725 ¥W38a 68
Aent, rates and taxes 6,834,792 6,606,052
Electricny, gos and water 7941458 7,067,562
Traveling and convayance 8,%7.370 ™ a57.202
Repair and martenance 30,730,068 20,770,426
Postage, tedephone and tetegrams 4525877 1.765,166
Vehicle rureing and maintenance 7,246,096 7642097
Legal and prafessionad 2181872 T4%2.838
Auditors’ remuneration 27.2) 455303 S5.028,107
Entertanment 3740825 4389554
Donations 2,203,600 3825108
Fee and subscriptions 7459241 manziz
Insurance 35394,708 1899820
Hirirg cost 432830 66456
Newspapers, b0oks and periodicals BB BoE
Deprediation (4.3) 27,588,727 17,777,500
Amortzation {53) 3,061,163 3822154
Others 415703 867407
Depreciation of right-of-use ass=t (71 22,259,129 20135537

4993848345

448471108

This Fcludes empliayees retrameant bensfit expense amounting ta Re 527 (2019 Rs 1071 milion

Note 2020 20m
Auditors' remuneration Rupees Rupees
Statutary sudi fee 1907,747 173435
Half yearly roview and ather certfications 1478506 1503805
Sales 1ax sdwsory 942,500 1665987
Ous-of -poc ket 223 885 120,000
455303

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Allowancae for ECLs J provision for doubthd debts

- Contract assets 813 SN2204 |1 760,252)

« Track detits 9.3) TR039. 24 00083434
Corttract sssets and bad debts writt=n off - 24 F525%
Fravson aganst doubtful refundables - 24508582
Tax recenables wrtten off %5.089.010 .
Advarces weitten of f - 1540954

134,740.4% 139025203
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Note 2020 2018

OTHER INCOME P
Income from Nsancal assets.
Profit on deposit atoourts 25,113,148 18,464,427
Profit on term deposit recopts 130,158,502 £7.843 863
Dividend incorne 2502253 -
Unraslized gain on nvestments classified
a5 fair value through profit or (oss 7,343,304 -
Exchange gan B1841360 223172288
Interest on an to subsdiaries 21501786 25,053472
268,457,951 324534030
Income from non-financial assets:
Gan on dispossl of property and equipmet (4.4) 3312,7%5 6,743906
Others 854,568 136806
%
FINANCE COSTS
Mar kup on guarantee commssion 1257218 1135974
Markup on borrawings 25701337 V405600
Bank charges 2,827,442 2991008
Loise nrerest 20,048,798 20431835
49,914,195 3964477
TAXATION
Income tac
- DRl yes &z 51886,727 32250920
- prr year 7,376 7%
3,474, 7
Defermed tax . i

73,474,103 8540 657

Thes represents tax chargeable under Normal Tax Regime on focal sale of softwarn and serwces. The income of the
Company from export of software s exempt under clause 133 Part 1 af Second Schedule 1o the income Tax Ordnance,
2001

2020 209

Reconcillation of tax charge for the year; Rupees Aupees

Frofit before taxation Bmg -
Tax an proft 657525423 -
Tax effect of exempt rcome (569,840,311 -
Tax effect of prior year acpstment N527.37% -
Tax effect of adjustment of carried forwart business Losses {10,650,702) -
Tax atfect of busness 65 of Joint Operation 17,023,597 -

Others |4.429,995) -
73,155,388 .

Reconc Lation Detwesn accountng profit and Tax expenss for the pror year 15 meaningless in view of the minmun tax
urder section 153 of Incorne Tax Ordinance, 2001

2020 2079
Deferred tax " Rupees fLpeos
Tasable temporary ditfererces
Depreciation an property snd equipment (22.361341) 210326%)
Employee compensation resene . (5,647,463)
Rgn-ol-use asset 10431057]
,748, 137, M0
Ceductible termporary differences
Lease liabilites n’ﬁ 209930
Provision for doubeful detes 13,874,283 4506,%7
Provesion for contract assets 5152094 .
EMployas COmMPansation resane 1941267 -
Mirsmum ta * 23505652
34,748,529 AL

The Companry has recogneed defarred tax asset on its doductible temporary afferances and tax losses to the axtent of
avslable taxable temporay diferences Owing 1O uncertainty relating Lo future taxable profits, against whch the
Coenpany can utiize its tax losses and tax credits, the Company has not recognaed any deferred tax asset for minimum
tax of Re 3593 million {2019: Re 2966 milbon] and unabearbed deprecation lecs of Re 3648 mithon (2015 6B WM
rllion) Expiey of minkvesm tax and excess of corporate aITernatve tax carmed forwarnd is as follows.




Expiry Tax Yeur

Nature

2023
2024
2025

Business loss - 206
Business loss - 2077

Mirsmum tae - 2077
Midmum tax - 20018
Mirimum Lax - 2018
Minkrwm tax - 2020

2020 _20%
Rupees Rupses
- 40719944
- nznoe
- 80935 955
5307401 15,307,400
0,903,102 080372

3,452,859 3452835

32. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Geographical segments
For maragemant purposes, the Systems Limited is organzed nito bumnass units based an therr geographcal arees and has four
reportable operating segments as follows:

« North America
- Eurape

- Middle East

~ Pakistan

72.464,830 WE 756,127

No other operating segments have been aggregatad to form the above reportable operating segments.

Management manitors the operating results of its operating segments separately for the purpese of performance assessment
Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss and is maasured conssstently with operatng profit or loss inthe
unconzalidated fnancial statements.
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33, TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related partes of the Company comprse subsidianes, associated companes, companses in which directors are
intorested, staff retiroment funds and directors and key management perscnnel (Note 34}, The Company in the normal
course of business cannes out transactions with vanous related parties Amounts due from and to related parties are shown
undar respectave nates to the financial statements. Other significant transactions with related parties are a5 follows:

Urchertacng Relaser Natore of teraacton 2020 1M
Papess T R
Tox Pssa Systens S 7 LLE - WA Sutactny Saks S7\9n5e TIRNAT
Dur of pocket eapenses OAFILIS 2N IHKER
EFvoressing Systeme IPvrated Livined Sutediny Lo - wm adwanoad £ kxeriad) BLesr094) I 552509
rtnreat reooe WOACELS AL
SUS 20 Privetad Linvited. Sutachay Loan - vt adwenced ¢ batiled) (950,990 wrER
ristest Teare TAW2SS 108208
Viworet 5 T s sz Sa 4270475128 2UI A2
Dun af pocket saperme ITAWO70 TLITARCR
Vs onat Daunscniand GNE tesecane Seies S0 -
TochAsera Py Limind - fustrala e Saks Sanass 5020382
61 maur ook Linned copacne S SAMSES BE51ET4
Prchess of yeeancs pokine 220903 P S ]
Duavce Farridy Tl Limtsd fansowne Purctwne 3t rasrence prxwm S290280 19924
Qaff reticavent A Czetriasicn 7,022,380 ™mancn
Yoo Pyt i bt e T sctngy - Gater Casatue Saks S56486 B2

331 Daetails of the Comparny's subsidianes and associated comperes ncorporated outside Pakstan are as follows:

[ Tar of Conpary } Detals - |
Courery of ervporation | Regiersc Aderews | Reviof Aysschesn | Wercertagecfshershotirg |
Tochvisra Systeres FTULC URE Tochivens Sysers LLL Sbasary s
Office 603, 6th Fleer,
Daxharge Tawer, Suninem
By Duby. LAE
Toaonvraza Systeres LLC LRE Tochirsta Syswes LLC Sub-Sutsisary -

[ Warse of Compary i
I pered Addre
Techiduns Pty Ueskad Asyabe G Seat 3', 30 Cowper Street, Seb-Subnidery -
Parmameniy NGW 250
Visone Sysems inc usa Visionat Sysems nc AszocRie
Ceclar trozk Corporate
Cemer, 4 Codartrook Drae,
bidg © Cranbury MO OBST2-
Hel
Visones Deutschiend GMBH Germany Masimiden sreet 1380639 Assockee
Murchm, Lermany
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34 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements for the year for remuneration including certam benefits to the Chief
Exacutive Officer, Directors and Executaves of the Company are as follows -

Number of persons 1 1 b & 5% 339
|Rupees)

Managerial remuneration 36,960,000 33600000 .

Retrsmant berefits 2464000 2240000 - 97,024,229 590320719

Bons - - - 49680471 328043

39,424,000

35040000 354000

V70001637

1049.436,798

34.1 In adamon to the above remuneration, the Chief Executive Officer and certan executives are also provided with company

maintaned cars, free medical and mobile phone facilities in accardance with ther entitlement.

34.2 Fees represent the amounts paid to Non Executive Directors for attendng meetngs of the Board and its sub-comimettees

34.3 During the yrer, the Chief Executive Officer and Other Executives were granted 570,034 (2073; 525,412) end 1155,000 (2079:

408,500| share options respactively, which have a vesting period of two years. Further, the impact of banefits available to the
Chief Exacutive Officar and other executives recognized by the Company on account of share-based payment plans aggregated
Lo Re 2537 2012 Re. 26 44) million and Rs. 2176 (2019: 29 46) million, respectively.

34.4 During the current year, certan axecutives of the Company exerosed stock optian under employee stock option scheme

3s,

351

352

according to which 108575 {2073: 85,397] shares were ssued to them

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Earnings par share are caloulated by diang the ret profit for the year by welghted average number of shares ausstanding
during the year as follows

2020 20
Basic earnings per share Rupees Rupees
Frofit foe the year 2.193.974,542 1364131709
{Numbes of shares)
Weghted avarage number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year 124.261404 123473974
Basic earnings per share [Rupees) 1766 05
2020 201
Diluted earnings per share Rupees Rupess
Profit for the year __2193.914942 1364131708
(Numbes of shares)
Weghted average number af ordinary shares (basx] 124,261,404 23473974
Effect of share optiors 2498226 1055607
Weghtad average numbaer of ordinary shares - ciluted 126,759530 12: 1
Diluted 2amings per share (Rupees| 17.31 1095



Note 2020 208

36, CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS Rupees Rupees
Prafit before taxation 2.267,329,045 1392672376
Adjustments to recancile profit before tax to net cash flows:

Dapreciation on praperty and equipmant (43) 212.878,804 W08 753
Dapreciation on right-of -usa assat (7 4047147 36,455 085
Amortization of intangibles {sl 20988822 2951548
Exchange gan on translation of expart dabts (55,134,623) (157 556,142}
Prafit on depesit accounts (29) (25.115,345) (18464427)
Prafit on term deposit receipts (29) (130,159.502) 157843863}
Unrealized gan on investments classified
s far value through profit or loss (29) (7,343,304) -
Share based payment expense 45941456 55.906,955
Gain on dispesal of property and equipment (29) (3.312,735) (16.743.505)
Allowance for ECLS / provision for coubtful debts:
- COntract assets (28) 9812,284 (M760,292)
- trade dabts (28) 19,039,124 WO0835434
Tax recetvables wiritten off (28) 5889010
Bad debts - written off (28) - 2465251
interest on koan to subsidary (29) {21501,785) |zsns.-'u7z)
Finance costs '
Working capital changes
(rcrease) / decrease In current assets
Cortract Assets [ (506985604)]
Trade debis 84,720,341
Loans, advances and other raceivabie 3563332 141450855
Trade deposits and shart term prepayments {55,995,711) [9.471.255)
Increase / (decrease) in current Liabilities
Trace and other payables
Cortract Uabd gies

37,

154,746,555

Cash generated from operations 16§6l-7 4'6?

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial Instruments comprise Ceposits, contract assets, mterest acorued, trade debts, advances to employess against
salaries, cash and bank balances and short term investmants, trada and ather payables, lease Liabilities, long term loan, short
term barrawing and mark up acorued on shart term borrowings

The Company has exposure to the tollowng rsks from its usa of finanoal instruments:

- Market risk
- Creolt rsk
~ Liquidity risk

The Board of Directors has the overall responrsibility for the establishment and aversight of the Company’s risk management
framework Tha Board s alse respansible for developing and monitonng the Company's risk management poliies

This note represents information about the Company’s exposure 10 each of the above risks, it's objectives, palices ard
processes for measuring and managing risk. and It's maragament of capital.

The Company's risk management policies are establshed 10 idertify and aralyze the risks faced by the Company, 10 set
aporopriste rsk Uimits and controls. and to monitor risks and adherence to lmits. sk management polices and systems are
reviewed reguarly to react to changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities




371 Market risk
(a) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risi that the fair value or future cash Mows of a financial instrument will Ructuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commerdel transactions or receivables and payables that
exist due to transactians in foreign currencies

Moenetary itams, including financial assets and financal Labilities, denominated in currency other than functional currency of
the Company are perindically restated to Pak rupes aquivalant and the assonated gan ar loss & taken to the profit anc loss
ACToUNt,

The following analysts demonstrates the sensitaty to a reasonably possile change in exchange rates, with all other
vanables held constam, of the Company's profit before tax

Changes Effecton dmiem"
" te before tax before tax
2020 208
Rupees Rupees
Receivables - USD + 7.039.373 37638494
A {7,039,373) {3.763,694)
Receivables - AUD +1 68,4086 -
1 (68,406) -
Recetvables- AED 1 16,866,738 20,146584
-1 (15,866,738) (20,148584)
Bank balance - USD 1 4,213,054 16.734
-1 (4,213,054) 15,734)
Reportng date rate:
uso K598 B4T
AUD 233 085
AED 435 a3
(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or futire cash flows of a financal Mstrument will Aluctuate because of
changes in market interest retes. The Company mitigates its risk agairmst the exposure by focusing on shart-term irvestment

and maintaining adequate bank balances

At the statement of Fnanoel position, the nterest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financel irstruments wes:

2020 2013
Fixed rate instruments Rupees Rupees
Financial assets
Short term irwestments 2,085,000,000 7E0000,000
Bank balarces - deposit accounts 395,180,848 862698678

2480380848

Financial liabilities

Long term loan 198,767 844

Lease labhives 227393268 1584735%
Short term barrowings 1,250,000,000 550,000,000

4,156.341,960

2451172194




Fair value sensitivity anslyss for fixed rate instruments

As 3t 37 December 2020, had there been Increase / decrease in fixed wterest rates by 100 basis paints, with &l other
varsbles held constant, profit before tax for the yaar would have been higher / lower by Bs. 791 million (2079 Rs 834
million}

Cash Now sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
The Company is nat expased to futiure cash flow risk
{c) Other price risk

Other price nisk s the risk of changes in the fair valuz of investment in matual funds as & result of changes In the levels of net
asset value of units held by the Company. As at 31 Dacember 2020, hao there been increasa / decrease in net assat value by
1%, with all ather variables held corstant tha prafit before tax for the year would have been highar / lower by R< 5.09 million
(2012 Nil)

372 Creditrisk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date f counter-parties failed completely
to perfarm as contracted The Company does not have significant exposise 1o any indwidust third party. To reduce expasure
10 credit risk the Company has developed & Tormal approval. process whereby credit Linits are applied to its customers. The
management also continuously monitors the oredit exposure towards the customers and makes provision against those
balances considered doubtful of recovery Ouestanding customer recevables are regularty monitored

The credia risk on ligud funds 5 Limited because the counter parties are danks and mutual funds with reasanably high credit
ratings. The Company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of aredht 15k as its exposure (s spread over 3
large numbser of counter parties and subscribers in case of trade debts

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maxrmum expasure to credit sk at
the reporting date was as follows:

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
Contract Assats 533940870 434270823
Trade debts 2,438,437 498 17994668312
Trade deposits 166,702,436 140556 445
Advances to empioyees against salanes n47322 65254346
Loans to related party 141,478,779 195,897 866
nterest accrued 38,450,000 2431352
Short term irvestment 2644845556 780,000,000
Bank balances 103555534

4455547059

The aging of trade debts at the reporting date is:

0-120 days 177794518 1321359384
R1- 365 days 819,766,090 S51611073
Abave ane year 68,807,452 61564551

267027262

/73,764

2.438,437,488

Az at year end, 75% of trade debts {201 76%) were ropresented by five customers amounting to Rs. 200357 2018 R=.

1396.08} miltion. The management believes that the Company & not exposed 10 oustomer concentration rek as these
customers are related parties of the Company.

The Company has appled the IFRS's simplified approsch and has calculated ECLs based on Lfetime expected credit (osses,
Tha Company has estadlished a provision matrix that is based on the Compary’s historical credt loss experience, adjusted
for forward-locking factors specific to the debtors ard the ecanomic snvircrenent.

The credit quality of financial assets that are nesther past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit
ratings or to hstorical information about counterparty default rate The 1able below shows the bank balances and
wvestments held with some major counterparties a& the raporting date




2020 2019
Shortterm | Long term | Agency —

Banks

Hab Metropolitan Bank At bt PACRA 863,770,613 275740389
Bark telams Pak Al A PACRA 7694,420 TE9401
United Bank Limited Al AN XR-VS 24,677,388 903,185,630
Faysal Bank Al AA PACRA 21549,769 53875330
Stardard Chartered Bank Al A PACRA 42,394,856 17953750
Finca Microfinance Bank Al A PACRA - 362203
Meezan Bank AW AAs XR-VS 2998384 7752821
Bark Alfalah Umited A Ads PACRA 22,018,353 17341735
Habib Bank Linited A A XR-VS 4,598,296 15559729
MCE Bank Limited Al Ads PACRA 587738620 584,438,017

Wutus 3
Al-Ameen Asset lamic

St Not Availatle Nat Available Not Ausilable 51852710
Alfalah GHP Islamic

Satrony Not Avadable 2AR PACRA 51291201
HBL Islamec Assat 2 .

llocation Fund Not Avsiable MNat Available Not Ausilable 51444992
‘L_.‘:?" iamic Tactical ¢ avaitable Nat Available Not Ausilable £2.449.350
Meezsn Balarced Fund  Not Avadable Nat Available NotAvaliable 100590950
m”“ ISamicincome o4 aveRable Asif] XRVS $0,337,008

:“:f’:m“ SHTA  Not Avedable Mat Available NotAvsiloble 201778545

1093.904.265

559,645,556 3

373 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk s the nsk that the Comparry will not ba able to meet its Anancal obligations as they fall due. The Company’s
approach to managng Ligudity & to ensure as far a5 possible to always have sufficient liquicty to meet its liabilties when

due The following are the contractual maturities of finandal Liabiities:

The following are the contractust maturities of financial labilities as at 31 December 2020

Carrying Contractual cash Less than One 1o More Mwl
amount flows one year five years years
-Rupess
Long term loan 198,767 844 198,767,844 100,754,617 98,013,227 -
Lease Liabilities 227,393,268 227,393,268 37,983,731 128,483,649 60,925,888
Trade and other payabler 720,518,655 720,518,655 720,518,655 . .
Short termn borrowings 1.250,000,000 1250,000,000 1,250,000,000 - -
Mark-up accrued on short
1erm DOrTongs 9804346 9,804,246 9,004,346 . .

2406484713 2,406 484 113 2119065349 226406876

60,925 888

The following are the centractust maturities of financial Liabilties as at 31December 207

Lease Liabilities 158473516 158.4735% 29282556 129188920
Trade and other payable: 534312425 534612425 534872425 -
Short term borrowings 650,000,000 ES0000000  £50,000000 .
Mark-up accrued on short

term borrowngs 4,873,966 4873969 4873959 -

1348 159910 1348155970 1218970980




374 Fair values of financisl assets and Liabilites

Fair value of available-for-saie financial assets 15 denved from quoted market prices in active markets, if avalable

The carrying values of other Mnancal assets and financial Labilities reflected in finarcial statements spproximate their far
values. Fair value & determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date

375 Financial instruments by categories

2020
Financial Financial

assots at fair assets at Total

value through amortized

profit or loss cost

Rupess Rupees

Assets as per statement of financial pasition
Long term deposits - 36,127,%2 36,127,162
Contract assets - 533,940,870 533940870
Teade debts . 2438437498 2,438,437, 458
Lo, advances and other receivable . 205,366,771 2053867
Security deposits - 132575274 132,575,274
Interest accrued - 38,450,000 38,450,000
Short term Fwvestments 559,845,556 2085000000 2644845556
Cash ard bank balances - 1577759692 1577759692

559,845,556

7,047 657,207

7.607.502,763

2018
Firancial Fimancial

assats at fair assatsat Total

value through amortized

profitor loss cost

Rupess Rupees
Long term depasits - 51939757 51839797
Cantract amsets - 434270823 434270823
Trade dobes - 179846832 17994868312
Loans, advances and ather receivable - 32880020 328,%0,020
Seaurity depasits - 044712849 W4.47284
Imerest accrued - 2451952 2491952
Short term investrmants - 7680000000 780,000,000
Cash and bank halances - 1095555314 108555534
4 596,357 502 4556357 502
2020 200
m Franoal
linbilities at liabilities at
amortized
cost amortized cost

Liabilities as per statement of financial position Rupees Rupees
Long term lcan 148,767 844 -
Lease Uabilties 227393268 1584735
Mark-up accrued an short term berrowngs 8804346 4873969
Short term borrowngs 1250,000000 650,000,000
Unclaimed dividend 7817635 8345525
Trade and ather payables 722553295 534812425

1930,075276

1188031918




37e

377

Fair value hierarchy
The carrying value of all financisl assets ard labilites reflected in the finarcisl statements appraximate their fair values. The

table below analyses financial sstruments carried at far value by valuaton method The diffecent level have been defined as
follows

Level 1; guated {unacpusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or llabilties.

Level 2 other technigues for which all mputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fasr value are chservable either,
directly or indrectly,

Level 3 techniques which use mputs that hawve a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable
mariket data

| Lovel 1 T ez | Lew3 | Tatal
: -

As at 31 December 2020

Fair value through profit and loss
« Mutual Fund units 559,845,556 . - 556,845,556

A5 at 31 December 2019
Fair value through prafit and loss
- Mutual Fund ursts - - - -

Capital risk management

The Compeny's policy s to safeguard the Company’s abAity to remain as & going concern and ensure a strong
capital base in order to maintain investors', creditors’ and market's confidence and to sustan future development
of the business. The Board of Directors manitors the returns on captal. which the Company defines as net
operating incame divided by tatal shareholders’ equity. The Campany’s abjectives when managing:

a) to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide retumns for
sharehalders and banefits for other stakehalders; and
b) toprovide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products.

In order to mantan or adust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends pad to
shargholders, return capital to shareholders, or issue new shares

Consmstent with the industry norms, tha Company monitors its capital on the bass of geanng ratio The ratic is
calculated as net dabt divided by total capatal plus net dedt. Net debt & calculated as total borrowings as shawn in
the statement of financial position tess cash and cash equivalent. Total capral is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in
the statement of financial position

The debt-to-equity ratio as of 31 December s as follows:

2020 2019
Rupees Rugpees

Long term loan - Note 18 198,767,844 B
Lease Liabiities - Note 13 227,393,268 B84735%
Trade and other payables - Note 20 722,653,295 534812425
Short term borrowng - Note 22 1,250,000,000 650,000,000
Mark up accrued an borrowings 9,804,346 4873569

2,408,618,753 1346159910
Less Cash and cash aquivalents (1,577,759,692) (1095555314}
Net dabt 830,859,061 252,804,596
Total capital 7,253,686,051 5,216,466,331

Capital and net debt B80B4.545 12 5469070827

Capital gearng rato 10% S%




38 PROVIDENT FUND TRUST

38.1 The Company has mantained an employee provident fund trist and imestments out of provident fund have been
made in accerdance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act 2017, and the rules formulated for
this purpase The salient information of the fund is as follows:

2020 2019
Note Rupees Rupees
Un-audited Audied
Size of the fund (net assets) 690,232,668 464,023,268
Cost of nvestment made (actual investments made) (38.2) 126,955,075 124601173
Parcentage of mvestment made (cost of investments) 1BA% 269%
Far value of inrvestments 504,062,481 445877691

38.2 Break-up of investments of provident fund
Break-up of nvestments in terms of amount and percentage of the size of the provident fund are as follows

2020 2018
% of % of
. investment nvestment
Description Investments b ale of Investments OIS
the fund the fund
Rupees Rupees
Mutual funds 122,000,000 17.7% 121601173 26.2%
Defense saving centificates - 0.0% 3,000,000 06%
Equity 4,955,075 0.7% - 00%
126,955,075 . 24601173
39  NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2020 2019
Total number of employees at the end of the year are as follows.
Regular 202 1647
Contractual 1259 1527
3,361 3174

Average number of empioyees during the year are as follows:

Regular 1837 1448
Contractual 1308 1361
3145 PAE )

40, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

401 The Board of Directors n their meeting held on 3 March 2021 have proposed a final cash dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2020 of Rs. 3.5 [2019; Rs. 225) per share and 103 bonus ssue for approval of the members at
the Annual General Meeting to be held on 31 March 2021 These financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 do not include the effect of these appropnations.

41 DATEOF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These unconsoldated financial statements were authorized for ssue on 3 March 2021 by the Board of Directors
of the Comparyy.

42. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures hawe been re-arranged, wherevar necessary, for better and fair presentation. However, no
significant re-arrangement / reclassifications have baen made in these unconsolidated financial statemaents.

43 GENERAL
Figures have been raunded off to the nearest of rupees, unless otherwise stated

- Fite bl
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of Systems Limited

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Systems Limited and its subsidiaries (the
Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss |, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting polices and
other explanatory information

In our opinon, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020 and its consclidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of Pakistan / The Institute of Cost and
Management Accountants of Pakistan [the Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide 2 basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consoldated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opirson thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the key audit matters:

Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
1 Revenue recognition

The Group's revenue s derived from a number of | Our audit procedures, amongst others, included:
revenue streams, as referred to in Note 24 to the | @ Obtaining an understanding and evaluating the
accompanying consoldated financial statements, appropriateness of the Group’s revenue
including outsourcing services and software sale in recognition polkies including those relating to
the form of short term and long term projects, assessment of performance obligatiors and
sometimes leading to revenue being recognized over complance of those polices with applicable
multiple accounting periods, These often include sale accounting standards,

of software bundled with related customization /
development and support services leading to multiple
performance obligations in individual transactions.

® Selecting a sample of revenue transactions
recognized during the year and recalculating
the revenue recognized along with evaluation
Further, as referred to in Note 33 to the of the management basis used in determining
accompanying corsclidated financial statements, a the performance obligations in accordance
significant portion of the Group's revenue transactions




How the matter was addressed in our audit

Key Audit Matters

is with related partees

Revenue s recognized based on performance
obligations as mentioned in Note 315 to the
accompanyng  consolidated  financial  statements,
which requires significant management judgement
and estimates in relation to assessment of distinct
performance obligations along with respective
standalone selling prices and budgeting the cost to be
incurred.

Due to complexity of accounting for multiple revenue
streams, significant  judgement and estimation
involved in the revenue recognition process and the
significance of related party transactions to the
Group’s revenue, we have identified revenue
recognition as a key audit matter,

with accounting policy;

Performing substantive procedures on related
party revenue transactions including review of
contractual terms, underlying invoces, and
analytical procedures,

Performing substantive analytical procedures
including monthly trend analysis of revenue by
comparing the trends with our understanding
of the busimss and external economic
enwiranment;

Comparing on a sample basis, speafc revenue
transactions recorded before and after the
reporting date with underlying documentation
to assess whether revenue has been
recognized In the appropriate accounting
penid, and

Assessing the adequacy of disclosures made in
respect of accounting policy, rewenue
recognized, and related party revenue
transactions entered nto during the year,

2 Preparation of consolidated financial statements

The Group's comsobdated fnancial statements
comprise of transactions and balances of the parent
company and its subsidiaries and sub-subsidaries in
foreign countries. Consolidating these financial
statements involves translation of foreign entities'
financial statements, elimination of intercompany
transactions and balances, and consolidation of the
amourks and disclosures of each entity's financial
statements.

Significant auditor attention is requred in review of
the conselidation schedules as the foreign exchange
differerxes and intercompany transactions are
material to the consolidated financial statements as a
whote, hencea these are considerad a Key Audit Matter.

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included:
® Reviewng the consolidation schedules o

relation to translation of foreign currency
transactiors and balances at appropriate
foreign exchange rates and the computation
of resultant exchange differences.

Cross-matching the intercompany
transactions and balances with the respective
financial statements of the entitks for
elimenation of the same.

Reviewing the arithmetic accuracy of the
corsolidation schedules

Reviewing the completeness of disclosures n
the consolidated financial statements by
companng with the relevant disclosures in
each entity’s individual financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Anmal Repert, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.




Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility s to read the other
information and, in doing se, consider whether the other information is materially incorsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a materal
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact We have nothing to regort in ths

regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and
Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as management determines & necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reparting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financal statements as a
whole are free from material msstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report
that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance s a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs as applicable n Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement
when It exssts. Messtatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consoldated financal statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
mamntain professonal skepticism throughout the audt We also:

® |dentify and assess the risks of material mmsstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
witwether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud s higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentaticns, or the override of
internal control

® (btain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumnstances, but not for the purpose of expressng an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

® Evaluate the appropristeness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related dsclosures made by management,




® (Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 2 material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in cur auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financal statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to madify cur opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to contine &s a
Boing concern.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events ina manner that achieves fair presentation

® Obtain sufficient appropriate audit ewdence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opa¥on on the consolidated financial statements We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficencies n internal control that we
identify during our audit

We also provide the Board of Directors with a staterment that we have compled with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters m our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a3 matter
should not be communicated n our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public nterest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Sajjad Hussain Gill

EyF—tee

Chartered Accountants
Lahore
0 March 2021



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31DECEMBER 2020

ASSETS

Non-current assuts

Property and equipmant
Intangibles

Long term deposits

Advance against purchase of land
Right-of-use assat

Current assets
Contract assets
Trade debts

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and short term prepayments

Interest accrued

Other recoivables

Short term investments

Tax refunds due from the government
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves
fusthorzed share capital

200,000,000 (2079 200,000.000) ordnary shares of Rs 10/- each

lssuad, subscribed and paid up capital
Capital reseyves
Reverwe resarye - unappropriated profit

Non-controlling mterest

Non-current Liabilities
Long term advances
Long Term loan

Lease liabilities
Provision fer gratuity
Deferred grant

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Unclaimed dividend
Contract Uabilities

Short term borrowings
Mark-up accrued on short term borrowings
Cuwrrent portion of lease liabilities
Current portion of long term advances
Current porton of long term loan
Current portion of deferred grant

TOTAL EQUITY AND UABILITIES

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
The annexed notes, from T1o 43, form an ntegral part of these cansolidated Mnancal statements
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1,475,927.250

2020 208
Rupees Rupees
1518,666,515 1432463695
204,249,277 186,746,196

40,133,162 54,945,797

- 28,750,000
204,396,352 145860,345
1967.445,306 1848766,033
642,780,081 57744498
2,372,176, 741 1749074142
95,913,324 145,238332
438,473,348 368,768673
36,450,000 249952
118,222,637 180821432
2/644,845,556 780,000,000
171975691 209458326
2.985,104,566 159,152,353
3 508 481944 8 450 468

1,475,927.250

{CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER)

1246060340 1,235.202,990
S56,6MB% 640362515
5 S 3,674,024,548
7828624257 5549590,053
146,389075 (20,655,613)
7976013326 5.528,934,440
53857626 28652726
98013227 .
189408537 129,1868.521
47599384 27.360,907
8,336,896 -
397.21867 165,202,554
1186,129,984 1M832212
7617635 8,345,525
297,554,223 164,423,043
14458,000,000] | 572,000,000
9,604,362 4873958
37,983,731 29284595
10,754,706 13.220.%3
100,754,617 -
3,095,996 -
3,102,695,25¢ 1664,079,507

73782150

dnd i
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31DECEMBER 2020

2020 201
Note Rupees Rupees

Revenue from contracts with customers 24 9,876,827,710 7535648065
Cost of revenve 25 (6,619,640,203}) (5.956,301606)
Gross profit 3,257,187,507 2369345463
Selling and distribution experces 26 (201,024,729)] | 176002387]
Adminmstrative expensas 27 (722,310,556) | |{698.066,935)
Other operating expenses 28 {220,135,525) {163,532016|

(1743,470,810) (1033601336
Operating profit 213,716,697 1329745065
QOther income 25 235,201,038 318491575
Finance costs 30 (66,659,676) (47022121
Profit before taxation 2,282,258,059 160121451
Taxation 3 (117.960,376) [33,281698]
Profit for the year 2,164,297 683
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the perent 2209645930 1587316864
Non-controlling interest (45,348,247) (19,384 043

2,164,297.683 1567232827
Earnings per share
Basic earmings per share 35 17.78 1286
Diluted earnings per share 35 T 275

The annexad notes, from 1to 43, form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2020 201

Rupees Rupees
Profit for the year 2,164,297,683 1567332821
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or -
loss in subseguent periods
Other compeehensive income to ba reclassified to profit or loss
In subsequent periods.
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operation WW4923 22434746
Total comprehensive income for the year 2174 402606 1590367557
Attributable to;
Equity holders of the parent 2,219,750,853 1560975160
Nan-contralling interest {45348,247) (19,384.043)

2174402606 1590367567

The annexed notes, from Tte 43, farm an integrat part of these consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31DECEMBER 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31DECEMBER 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operatiors
Finance costs paid

Gratuity paid
Taxes paid

2,344 630,402

2020 200
Rupees Rupees
(36) 2,466,896526 1895,128,152
(41681088)  (45837157)
(6,323,733) (6297.670
(74,261306)  [73.466595)
[122,266,124) (125601423)

1,769526,729

Cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment

Decrease / [increase) in advance against payment of land
Developrment expenditures

Sale proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Short tarm Investments - net

Profit received on short term investments

Revenue reserve of subsidary

Increase in long term deposits

Cash used in investing activities

(323,406,939)
28,750,000
(46,632.375)
16,180,536
(1,864,845,556)
101544,758
19.368,928
14,812,635
{2,052,228,013)

(657,855,842}
93,810,000
(50,28,616)
48005073
(485,000,000}
57391884

(31975,244)

(1025843745}

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from exercise of share options
Proceeds from issuance of shares

Dividend paid

Long Term Loan

Short term borrowing

Payment of principal partion of lease labslities
Increasa in long term advances

Cash flows from financing activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalants

Net foreign exchange difference
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the yaar

75,284,389 5069153
410,002,641 -
(278,648,714) (218,057,391
210,202,736 -
777,000,000 271576,085
(50,135,594) [23,851.915)
22,739,443 13,647,089
1,166,444,901 (N6%5,378)
458,847,290 732,066,006
10,104,923 22434746
1516,152.353 761651601

1516,152,353

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

2,985,104,566

The annexed notes, from 1to 43, form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31DECEMBER 2020
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CORFORATE INFORMATION

Holding Company

Systems Limitad {"the Company’) Is a public limited Company Incorporates in Pakistan under the Companies Act,
2077 and s listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange  The Company is principallyengaged in the business of software
development, trading of softwareand business process outsourcing services. The registered office of the Company
is situated at €-1, Sehjpal Road, Near DHA Phase-VIll (Ex-Air Avanual, Lahore Cantt

Subsidiary Companies

TechVista Systems #Z - LLE, 3 Lmated liabdity Company incorporated in Dubal Technology and Media Free Zore
Authority,is a 100% owred subsidiary of Systems Limited, Pakistan The Company is engaged in the business of
developing software and providng ancilary services

TechVista Systems LLC is a Limted Liability Company registered = the Emirate of Dubas under Federal Law Na 2
of 2075, i W0% controlled by TechVista Systems FZ-LLL The Company is licensed as a software house

TechVista Marpower LLC (TechVista MP LLL) |, a Sole Establishrment, duly licensed by Dubed Economic
Department, under License No. 800123, is 100% controlied by TechVista Systems FZ-LLC

SUS IV Private Limtted, a private limited company regstered under the Companies Act, 2017 & & 95% owned
subisidiary of Systems Limited. The Company < set up for the Balochistan Land Revenue Management Infarmation
Systems project The peroject s related to diginzation of land recerds and development of a web-based management
Information system

E-Pracessing Systems (Private) Limited, a prvate limited Company registered under the Companies Act, 2017
incorporated on 06 February 2013, 5 a 44 60% (201 55%] owned subsidiary of Systems Limited  The Company 1s
prncpally engaged n the business of purchase and sale of airtime and reated services During the year, the
subsidiary has ssued 80491 shares at a preamum of Rs. 5,084 par share to the Internaticnal Finance Corporaton
which has resulted into dilution of intarest of the Halding Company. Howaver, the management has assessed that
tha Holding Company maintains the control of the entity The gain on dilution of nterest has been recognized in the
staterment of chenges in equity.

Systoms Venture (Private) Limited a private lmited Company registered under the Caompanies Act, 2017
incorperated on 11 November 2079, = a 99.28% (2013 i) owned subsidiary of Systerns Limited. The Company 1=
aimed to imaest n new ventures, start-ups and incubate new idess

TechVista Systems Pty Ltd, s a fullyowned subsidlary of Techwista Systems FZ LLC and was ncorporatad in
December 2014 n Australia with the paid up share capital of AUD 1 This subsidiary has been wentfied by the
management of the Holding Company during the year 35 a result of review of the related party relatiorships. The
mansgement consklers that the subsadiary i5 an insignificant component of the group and its net assets are also
immaterial, therefare it has been incorporated prospectively in these consolidated financial statements

Geographical location and addresses of major business units of the Group are as under

¢ Geographical
Business Units Address
o e £-1, Sehjpal Near DHA Pnase-Vill (Ex-Ar Avenua),
Head Office - Systems Limited Lahare Lahore Cantt
: ) TechVista Systems FZ LLC, Unit 105, Building 11,
&g" Office - TechVista Systems FZ Dubal Dubai internet City, Dubai Creative Clusters Authority,
Dubal, United Arab Emirates.

: TechVista Systemns LLC, Office 1905, Regal Tower
Dubas Office - TechVista Systems LLC Dubai Business Bay, Dubai, UAE
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Business Units mﬂ:"‘ Address

TechVista Systems MP LLLC, Offce 603, 6th Floar,

< W e (Pvi) Ltd Litcse E-1, Sehjpal, Near Dghl;h:g-;l{l (Ex-Alr Averue),
TechVista Pty Limited Australa G Sest 3', 30 Cowper Street, Parramatta NSW 2150

Geographical Location and address of the E-processing Systems [private] Limited and SUS (private) Limited is
same as of the Holding Company.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accountng and reporting
standards as applicable i Fakstan. The accounting and reporting standards comprise of:

- International Financial Raporting Standard (FRS Standards) issugd by the Intarnational Accounting Standard
Baoard [|ASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 {the Act) ; and

- Provisions and directives issuad under the Act.

Where prowisions of and directives issued under the Act, differ fromthe IFRS Standards, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Act . have been followed.

Basis of preparation
These consolidated Mnancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
Principles of corsolidation

The corsoldated financal statements include the financial statements of Systems Uimited ard 1ts subsidiary
companies. here-in-after referred to as “the Group™.

Subsidiaries

A Company is a subsidiary, if an entity (the Holding Company| directly or indwectly controls, beneficially owns or
holds more than fiftypercent of its voting securities or otherwise has power to elect and appoint more than fifty
percent of its directors.

Subsidiaries are consclidated from the date an which the Holdng Company obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date when such control coases.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reportng period as the Halding Company,
using corsstent accounting palcies.

All inter-Company balances, trarsactions and unrealized gains and losses resulting from inter-Company
transactions and dividends are eliminated in full

The assets, liabilities, income and experses of subsidary companes are consolidated on 3 line by line basis and
carrying value of investments held by the Holdng Company & eliminated aganst the subsidiary companies’
shareholders' equity in the consolidated financial statemants,

Non-controlling interest

Non-contrellinginterest is that part of net results of operations and of net sssets of the subsidiaries which are not
awned by the Group either directly or indirectly. Non-cantraliing interest s presented as a separate item in the
consolidated Mnancial statements. The Group applies a policy of treating transactians with nan-controllnginterests
as ransactions withparties external to the Group. Dispasals to non-controllinginterestresultin gains and losses for
the Group and are recorded in the consolideted statement of changes in equity.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the corsolidated finanoal statements are measured using the currency af the primary economic
environment in which the Group operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees,
which is the Group's functicnal and presentation Qurrency.
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Usa of estimates and judgments

The Group's significant accounting policies are stated m Note 3. Not all of these significant polices require the
management to make difficult, subjective or complex judgmants or estimates The followingis intended to provide
an uncerstanding of the policies the management considers critical because of their complexty. judgment of
estimation nvolved in their application and thair impact on these consolidated financial statements. Estimates and
judgments are continually evaluated and are based on hstorical experence, including expectation of futureevents
thatare beleved to be reasonable under the circumstances These judgments involve assumptions or estimates in
respect of futureevents and the actual results may differ fromthese estimates The areas mvolving higher degree of
judgments or complexity or areas where assumptiors and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements arg as follows:

Prowision for taxation (Note 3.3)

The Group takes into account tha current incorme tax Law and the cecsions taken by appellate autharities. Instances
whera the Group's view differs from the view taken by the income tax departmant at the assessment stage and
whera the Group cansiders that its views an items af material nature are in accordance with law, the amounts are
shown as contingent linbilities

Useful life and residual values of property and equipment (Note 3.4)

The Group reviews the useful lves of propertyand eguipment on a regular basis. Any change in estimetes in future
years might affect the carrying amounts of respective items of progertyand equipment witha corresponding effect
on the depreciation charge and impairment.

Expected credit losses (Note 3.5

The Group uses a provisian matro: Lo calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of varicus customer segments that have similar loss patterns (ie, by
geography, product type, and customer type).

The provisian matrix &= initially basod on the Group's histarical observed default rates. The Group calibrates the
matrix to adjust the historcal crodit loss experence with forward-coking infformation which ncludes forocast
economic conditions. At evary repartingdata, the historical cbserved default rates are updated and changes n the
forward-loaking estimates are analyzed

The assessment of the correlation between historcal observed delault rates, forecast ecanamic conditions and
ECLs is & signficant estimate The amount of ECLs s sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast
econamec conditions. The Group's historical credit toss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of custamer's actual default in the future.

Revenue recognition (Note 3.12)
Mentification of distinct performance obligations

For contracts with multiple compenents to be delvereg, the Group applles judgement to cetermine performance
obtigations which are distinct; or not distinct, whech are aggregated withother performance obligatiorsuntita bundie
is identified that Is distinct.

Estimating stand-alone selling prices of performance obligations

The Group determines stand-alone selling prices of all performance obligationsin a bundied contract, which include
sale of license, implementation. suppart, warrantyand training. The totaltransaction price is allocated to all distinct
performance obligations based on estimated cost of completion, plus targat margn on each of the performance
obligators.

Stage of complation

The Group determines stage of completion on the basis of cost incurred to date as a percentage of totalestimated
cost to deliver the performance obligations.

Determining the Lease term of contracts with renewal options (Note 3.17)

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together withany periods covered
by an option w0 extend the lease IF it is reasonably cerain to be exercised, or any pericds covered by an option to
terminate the lease, IF it is reasonably certain not to be exercised

The Group has the opton, under some of its (eases to lease the assets for an additional term. The Group applies
judgement in evaluating whether it 5 reasonably certain 1o exercise the option torenew (. it consiiers all retevant
factors that creste an economic incentive for it to exerose the renewal After the commencement date, the Group
raassesses the lease term if there is 3 significant event or change in orcumstances that is within its control and
affects its ability to exercise (or not to exercse) the aption to renew (e g, a change in business strategy}
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Provisions (Note 2.11)

A pravision & recognzed . the consolidated statement of financial position when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflowof economic benefits willbe
required ta settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amaunt of abligation The amaunt
recognized &% @ provision reflects the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obbgation at
the end of the reporting period.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies which have been adopted in the preparation of censoldated MNnandial statements
of the Group are corsstent with previcus year except as described in Note 31 below:

New, amended standards and interprotations which became effective

The Group has adopted the following accounting standerds, amendments and interpretations of FRSs which
became effective for the current year and had material impact on the accountng polices and financal statements

I1AS 1and IAS B Presentation of Financal Statements & Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors: Definition of Material, te clanty the definition of material and its alignment with the definition used in the
Conceptusl Framewark (amendments)

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Definciion of business [amerdments)

IFRS Q |AS 39 & FRS 7 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform jamandments)

Amendments to the Conceptual Framewark for Fnancial Reporting
IFRS 16 - Cavid-13- Related Rent Concessions famendments)

Interests in joint operations

A jointoperation is a [ontarrangement wherely the parties thathave joint controd of the arrangement have rightsto
the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. Joint control & the cantractuatly agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when dedsions about the relevant activities requre
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

When the Group undertakes its actvties under jointoperations, the Group as & pintaperator recognizes in relation
Lo A1S interest in a jont eperation:

Its assets, Including its share of any assets held pintly,

Its Liabilities, nicluding its shere of any liabdities incurred jontly.

1ts revenue from the sale of its share of the output ansing from the joint operation;
Its share of the reverue from the sale of the output by the joint aperation: and

Its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly

The Group accounts for the assets, babiles, revenues and expenses relating to its interestin a joint aperation In
accordance with the IFRSs applicable to the particular assets, Uabilities, revenues and expenses.

When Group transacts witha jeint operation in which a Group is a joint operator, the Group & considered o be
conducting the transaction with the other parties to the joint aperation, and gains and losses resultag from the
transactions are recognized in the Group's financial statements anly to the extent of other parties’ interests in the
JOINE Operation.

When Group transacts witha joint cperation in which Group is a jomtoparator, the Group does not recognize its
share of the gains and losses until it resells those assets to a thed party

The Group has interest in joint cparation UUS Jaint Venture [Praatel Umited, & Group set up specfically for
executing multi-year contract “Package 044 ~ Airport Infarmation Management System (AIMS]®, & turnkey project
for New Klamabad International Arpeet by Pakistan Civil Aviation Authority.

Taxation
Current

Provision for current tax s based on the taxable income for the year cetermined in accordance withthe prevailing
Law for taxatian of income. The charge for current tax is caloudated using prevail ng tax rates or tax rates expected to
be applied to the profit for the year, if enacted The charge for current tax also includes adpustmaents, where
considered necessary, to provision for taxation made in previous years arsng fromassessments framed during the
year for such years.
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Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising from
differences between the carrying amount of assets and Liabilitiesin the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bawes used in the computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax Labilties are generally recognzed for all
taxable termporary differences end deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available agairst which the deductible temparary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can

Deferred tax s calculated at the rates thatare expected to apply to the year when the differences reverse based on
tax rates that have been enacted or substantivelyenacted by the repartingdate Deferred tax s charged or credited
n the Statement of profitor loss, except in the case of dems credited or charged to other compreheraae mcome in
wihech case it s included in other comprehersve incame.

Property and equipment
Operating fixed assets

Operating fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified imparment loss
Freohald land is stated at histaric cost. Cost of operating fixed azsets consists of purchase cost, barrowing cost
pertaining to construction paried and directlyattributablacast of bringing the assat to working condition. Subsaguent
costs are included in the assets” carrying amaunt or recognized as seperate asset, as approgriate, only when it =
probable that futureecoromic benefits associated withthe item will flaw to the Group end the cost of the itemn can
be maasiured rellably. Allather repair and maintenance costs are charged to consolidated Statement of profitor loss
during the period in which they are incurred

Depraciation on propertyand aguipment is chargad to incoma by applying straight line mathod on pro-rata basis so
&% to write off the historical cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives at the rates given in Nate 4
Depreciation chargs commences from the month in which the asset & available for use and continues until the

manth of dsposal

The assets residual values and useful lves are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted & impact on
depreciation is significant

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are

expected from its use or deposal Profitor loss on dispasal of aperating foed a<sets represented by the dfference
betweaen the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset 15 included in income

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work in progress rapresents expenditure on propertyand equipment which are in the course of carstruction
and nstallaton Transfers are mace to relevant propertyand equipment category as and when assets are available
foruse.

Capital work-n-progress is stated at cost less dentfied imparment loss, if any.

Intangitles

intangible assets acquired from the market are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any mpairment
losses.

Expenditure on research for the research phase of an internal project] = recognined as en expense n the peried in
wich it incurred;
Development costs incurred on spaafic projects are capitalized when all the following conditions are satisfied.

« Completion of the intangibile asset = technically feasiile <o that it will be available for use or sale.

- The Group intands to compiete the mtangible asset and use or sell it

= The Group has the ability to use ar sell the intangible asset.

- Intangible asset wil generate probable future aconomic berefits,

~  The availabilityof adequate techrecal, financal and other rescurces to complete the development and to use or
sell the intangibile azzeot

- The Group's ability to measure reliably the experditure attributable to the intangile asset during s
development.

The cost of an mternally gererated intangble asset comprices all drectly attnbutablecosts necessary to create,
produce and prepare the asset to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management,
Development costs not meeting the oriteria for caprtalization are expensed as incurred
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Alterintial recognitian, nternally generated intangible sssels are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
impairment losses, F any. These are arortized using straight Une method at the rate given in nate S Full moenth
amartization on additions = charged in the manth of acquisition and no amortization & charged in month of
disposal

The Group assess?s at each reportingdate whetharthere is any indication thatintangible assets may be impaired
If such indication exists, the carrying amaunts of such assets are reviewed to assess whathar they are recordad in
axcess of their recoverable amount, Where carrying amaunts exceed the respactive recoverable amaunt, assets are
written down ta their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is recognized in consolidated
Statement of profitar loss. The recaverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. Where an imparment loss is recognized, the amartization charge is adjusted in the future periods to allacate
the a==zet's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life

Impair ment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than inventores and deferred tax asset, are reviewed at each
reparting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exsts, then the
asset's recoverable amount i estimated The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater
of its value in use and its far value [ess costs to sell In assessing value in use, the estimated futurecash flowsare
discounted to thewr present value using & pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time
value of meney and the risks specific to the asset. Far the purpose of impairment testing assats that cannot be
tested ndivicually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generstes cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or group of assets (the “cash
generating unit, or CGU”)

The Group’s corporate assets da not generate separate cash inflows If there & an mdication thata corporate esset
may be impeired, then the recoveratle amount is determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset belongs An
impairment lass is recognzed il the carrying amaunt of an asset or its CGU  exceeds LS estimated recoverable
amaunt. Impairment losses are recognized In consolidated Statement of profit or loss,

Impairment loss recognized in prior periods is assessed 2t each reparting date for any indications that the loss has
decreesed or na longer exists. An imparment loss is reversed if there has been a change n the estimates used to
detesrmine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount dops nat excesd the carryng amount that wauld have been determined. net of depreciation or amartization,
if no imparment loss had been recognized

Staff benefits

The Group has the following plans for its employees:
Provident fund

The Holging Company operates a funded recognaed pravident fund contributionplan which covers all its permanent
employeas. Equal contributions are mace on menthly basis bath by the Holding Group and the amplayess at 10% of
basic pay,

Employees” share option scheme

The Holding Company operates an equity settled share based Employees Stock Option Scheme  The
compensation committee of the Board of Drectors of the Cormnpany evaluates the performance and other criteria of
employees and approves the grant of aptiors. These options vest withemployees over a specified period subject to
fulfitlmentof certain conditions. Upon vestng employees are elgible to apply and secure aliotmentof Company's
shares at a price determined on the date of grant of aptions.

At the grant date of share options to the employees, the Holding Company initially recognizes employee
compensation expanse with correspondng credit to aquity as employee compersation reserve at the far value of
option at the grant date. The fair value of options determined at the grant date is recognized as an emplayee
compensation expensa on a straightling basis over the vesting period, Fair valus of options is arrved at using Black
Scholes pricing model

When share options are exercised, the proceeds received, et of any transacton costs, are cradited to share capital
[raminal value) and share peamum

Gratuity

Provsion ts made for TechVista [the “Subsidiary’) employees’ end of serwice benefits in accordance withthe UAE
Federal labor Laws.
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Foreign currency transactions

Assers and Labilites in foreign currencies are translated mte Pak Rupees at the rate of exchange prevailng at the
reportng date. Trarsactions during the year are corwverted into Rupees at the exchange rate prevailing at the date
of such transaction All exchange differences are charged to corsolicated Statement of profit or loss.

On consoldation. the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Pak Rupees at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their Staterment of profit or loss are translated at average rates
prevading curing the year, The exchange differences arsing on transiation for consolidation are recognized in
cansolidated ather comprehensive income. On dispasal of a forsignoperation. the componant of corsolicated othar
camprehensie income relating ta that particular farsign operation is recagnized in consolidated Statemant of prafit
ar loss

Trade debts

Trade debts fromlocal customers are stated at amortized cost less expected cradit losses while foreign debtors are
stated at translated amaunt by applying exchange rate applicable on the reporting date

Expected credit losses

Dpected credit losses are calculated as & probabilty weighted estimate of credit losses Credit losses are
measured a5 the present value of all cash shortfalls(e the difference between cash flaws due to the Group in
accordance wah the contract and cash flows that the Group expects 1o receive). (Refer 1o note 3744 for detailed
policy for Imparment of financal assets).

Advances, depasits and other receivables
These are recognized at norminal ameunt which is fair value, If considerations ta be recewved in future.
Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payable are camed at cost which Is the fair value of the consiceration 10 be pald in
future for goods and services.

Provisions and contingencies

Provsions are recograzed m the consolidated statement of financial positon when the Group has a legal ar
constructive abligation as a result of past events and it 15 probable that outflowof resources embadying economic
benefits will be required to settle the abligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be macde However,
provisions are reviewed at each reportng date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate Where outflow of
resources emtodying econamic benefits is not probable, a contingent Liabilityis disclosed, uniess the possibilityof
outflow is remote.

Revenue recognition
Professional services

Reverue from professional / software services includes fixed price contracts and time and material contracts,
Revenue rom services performed under fixed peice contracts is recogrized in accordence with the percentage of
completion methed Revenue from services performed under time and material contracts is recognized as services
are pravided.

License and license support sesvices

Revenue from licerse contracts withoutmajor customaation |s recognized when the license agreement is signed,
delwvery of software has ocourred, fee = fixed or determnable and collectabilitys probable. Revenue from license
contracts with magor modification. customizaton and development is recognized on percentage of complation
method. Revenue from support services is recognzed on time proportion basis

Outsourcing services

Reverwe from business process outsourcing services = recognized on completion of processing Revenue fram
other cutsauraing services is recognized as sendces are provided.

Sale of third party software

Reverue s recognized at the pont in time when obligations under the tenms of the contract with the customer are
satisfied; generally this occurs when control of the softwarehas transferredand there is no unfulfitiedobligation that
could affect the customer's acceptance of the software usually on delvery of the software
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Sala and purchase of air time and related services

Revenue s measured at fair value of the consideration recenved or receivable and represents amaunt received and
receivable fram the sale of air time and related services n normal course of business, net of discounts, if any.
Revenue from sale of ar time IS recognized when ar time is transferred Lo customers.

recewable from the sale of ar time and related serwces n normal course of business, net of discounts, o any
Revanug from sale of ar time is recognized when ar time is transferred to customars

Contract Assets

A contract asset is initially recagnized for revenue earmned bacause the receipt of consideration & conditional on
successful completion of the milestones as per contract Upan completion of the milestone and acceptarce by the
customer, the amount recognized as contract assets is reclassified to trade debts.

Contract Liabilities

A contract Uabdityis recognized f 3 payment is recenved or a payment is due [whichever is earlier) froma customer
before the refated goods or services are transferred Contract Labiltes are recognized as revenue as and whan
performance obligations are delivered under the contract,

Other income

Profitan deposit account and gain on shortterm investments and atharincome & recognized using effectiveinterest
rate method,

Urraalized gains / (losses) arsing on revaluation of securities classified as * fair value through profitor loss” are
included in consolideted statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Gavernment grants

Gavernment graents are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be recerved and all
attached conditions willbe complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it s recognized &< ncome on
a systematic basis over the pericds that the related costs, for which it & ntended to compensate, are expensed.

When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the
related asset

When the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grantare recorded at nominal amounts
and released to consolicated statement of profit or loss aver the expacted useful life of the asset, based on the
pattern of consumption of the benefits of the underlying asset by equal anrual instalments

Financial instruments - Initial recognition and subsequent measuramant

Initial Recognition

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost which 15 the fair value of the cansidaration given ar
receved. These are subsequently measured at fair value, amortized cost of cost as the case may be,

Classification
Classification of financial assets
The Group classifies its financisl instruments in the followng categories:

- at fair value through profit o loss (*FVTPLY|,
- at fair value through ather comprehensive ncome (CFYTOCE), er
-at amortized cost

The Greup determines the classfication of financial assets at inttial recognition. The classification of iretruments
{other than equity instruments| = driven by the Group's business model for managing the Fnancial assets and their
contractual cash flaw characteristics

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequantly measured at amortized cost

« the financal asset is held withina business model whose objective is to hold financal assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, and

= the contractual terme of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash fows thatare solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
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Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently maasured at FYTOC!

- the Ainancial asset is held withina business model whase abjective s achieved by bath collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

« the contractual terms of the financial asset gae nse on specified dates to cash flows thatare solely paymants
of principal and interest on tha princpal amount outstanding,
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash Mows that are solely payments
of principal and Interest on the principal amount cutstanding
By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL

Classification of financial Liabilities

The Group classifies its financial Uabilites in the following categories:

- at fak value through profit and Loss (*FYTPLY), or
- atamartized cost.

Fmancal Labilities are measured at amortized cost. unless they are required to be measured at FVTPL jsuch as
nstruments held for trading or derivatives) or the Group has opted to measure them at FVTPL

Subsequent measurement
i} Financial assets at FVTOCI

Elactad investments in equity instrumentsat FYTOO are initlallyracognized at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at far value, with gains or losses ansing from changes in fair value
recognized in other comprehensive income ¢ (loss)

il Financlal assets and labllities at amortized cost

Financial assets and Labdities at amortzed cost are mitialtyrecognized at fairvalue, and subsequently carmed
at amortized cost, and in the case of finandial assets, less any iImparment

i} Financial assets and Liabilities at FVTPL

Financial assets and labilities carried at FVTPL are intially recarded at fair value and transaction costs are
expersad in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Realized and unrealized gairs
and losses armng from changes in the far value of the financial assets and liabiities held at FVTPL are
included in the statement of profit or loss and ather comprehensive ncame in the period in which they ense.

Where management has opted to recognze a financial Labilityat FVTPL, any changes assocated wahthe Group's
own creds risk willbe recognized in other comprehensive income/|loss). Currently, there are no financial labilities
designated at FVTPL

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Loss |ECL] on financial assets measured at amortized
cost at an amount equal to tife time ECLs except for the following. which are measured at 12 month ECLS:

- bank balances for whom credit risk (the nsk of default occurring over the expected Ufe of the financal
instrument has not increased since the inception)

- other short term oans and receivables that have not demoanstrated any increase in credit risk Since nception.

Loss allowance for trade recowables are always measured at an amaunt equal to life teme ECLs. Life time ECLs are
the ECLs that result from sll possible defaults events over the expected life of & financial instrument. 12 month
ECLs are portion of ECLS that result from default events that are passible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECLs are a probabedityweighted estimate of credit losses. Credit osses are measured as the present value of all
cash shortfalls|le. the dference between cash flowsdue to the Groud in accordance with the contract and cash
flows that the Group expects to recene)

The grass carrymg amount of a financial asset i writton off when the Group has no reasonable expectation of
recavuring a fimancial sssat in its entirety or & portian thareof.
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0 Financial assets

The Group derecognises financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the financal assets
expre or when it trarsfers the financial assets and substantially all the associated risks and rewards of awnershp
to another entiy. On derecogretion of a finandial asset measured at amortized cost, the difference batween the
asset’s carryng value and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognized in profit or lass. n
addition, an derecogrstion of an investmant in a debt nstrument classified as FYTOCL the cumulative gan or loss
prevously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve s reclassified to profit or loss. In contrast, on
derecognition of an investment in aguity instrument which the Group has elected on intial recognitian to measure
at FYTOCL the cumulatve gain or Loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve.

i) Financial liabilities

The Group derecognees financial labhites only when s obligations under the financal Labilities are
dscharged, cancelled or expired The dfference between the carrying ameunt of the financial Lisbiley
derecognized and the consaderation paid and payable. including any nen-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Offsetting of financial assets and Uabllities

A fnancal asset and a financal Labilitys offsetand the net amount & raported in the statement of fimancial postion
if the Group has tegal enfarceable rightto set off the recognaed amount and mtands eithar to settlo on a net basis
or to realze the assets and settle the liability simultaneously

Finance costs
Finance cost is charged 1o consolidated statement of profit or Loss in the year in which itis incurred.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated in the corsolidatad statementof fnancial position at cost For the purpose of
the corsolidated cash flowstatement, cash and cash equivalents are comprised of cash In hand, cheques/demand
drafts in hand and deposits in the bank,

Leases

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognizes right-of-useassets at the commencement date of the lnase (e the date the undertying asset
in available for use) Right-cf-use assets are messured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and ¥mpairment
losses, and adpusted far any remeasurement of lease lisbilities The cost of right-of-useassets includes the amount
of lease Uabilibes recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made ot or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received Unless the Group = reasonably certain to obtan
ownership of the leased assat at the end of the lease term, the recogrized right-of-useassets are depreclated on a
straght-Unebasis over the shorterof s estimated useful Ufe and the lease term. Rght-of-use assets are subject to
Impairment.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes lease liabdites measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term The lease payments include fixed payments |including in-
substance fixed payments| less any lease ncentives receivable, variable lease payments thatdepend on an index
or a rate, and amounts expacted to be paid under residual value guarantees.
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In calculating tha presant value of lesse payments, tha Group uses the incremental barrowing rate at the lease
commencemant date if the mterest rate implicit in the lease & not readity determinable After the commencement
date, the amount of leasa liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the Irase
payments made n additon, the carrying amount of lsese liabilities is remeasured i there s 2 modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to
purchase the underlying asset.

Dividends and appropeiation reserves

Dividends and other appropristion to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which
these are approved Howaver, if they are approved after the reporting pericd but before the financial statements are
authorized for issue, they are disclosed in the notes o the financial statements

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share [EPS|. Basic EPS 5 calculated by dviding the profitafter
tax attributable to ordinary sharchalders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding durng the peried. Diluted EPS s calculated by dividing the profitattributableto ordinary equity holders
of the parent |after adjustment) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus
the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential
ordinary shares nto ordinary shares.

Segment reporting

Segment reporting 5 basad on the operating [business] segments of the Group. An operating segment is a
companent of the Group thatengages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and Incur expenses,

including revenues and experses thatrelate to trarsactons withany of the Group’s other components. An operating
segmant’s operating results are revewed regularly by the Chef Executive Officer {tha CEQ) to assess segment's
performance, and for which discrete financial mformationis avadable. Segment results thatara reported to the CE0

include #tems directly attributableto a segment & well a5 thosa that can be allocated on a reasonable bass,

Unaliocated iterms comprise mainly ather aoparating expenditures, other incoma, finance cost. corporate assets,
income tax assets and liabdities Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to amuire
property and equipment

Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Published Approved Accounting
Standards that are not yet effective

The followingstandards, amendments and IMerpretatons with respect to the approved accounting standards s
applcable n Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentoned below against the respective standard or
interpretation

Effective Date

Standard or Interpretation (Annual pericds
beginning on or after)

The changes in Interest Rate Benchmark Reform = Phase 2 (Amendments to
IFRS 9, [AS 39, FRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16) 01 January 2021
Annual  Improvermnents make minor amendments to IFRS 2 Financial
Instruments, 1AS 41 Agriculture and the Hlustrative Examples accompenying 01 January 2022
IFRS 16 Leases
1AS 16 amendment regarding proceads befors intended use 01 Jarwsary 2022
I1AS 37 amendment regarding arerows contract 01 January 2022
Amendments to FRS 3 Business Combinations update a reference in IFRS 3
to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting without changing the 01 January 2022
accounting requirements far business combinations y
IAS Tamendment regarding the classification of Liabdities a= Current or Non Current 01January 2023

IFRS 0 & IAS 28 - Consolidated Financial Statements E Investment in
Associates and Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of As<ets between an Not yet finalized
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture - (Amendment|



In addition to the above, the fallowingnew standards hawe bean issued by IAS8 which are yet to ba notified by the
SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan

IASB effective date
Standard (Annual periods
beginning on or after)
IFRS 1- First-time Acoption of Intarnational Financial Reparting Standards 01 July 200%
IFRS17 - Insurance Contracts 01 January 2023
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4.  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT Note Rupees Rupees
Opearating fixed assets {479 1517,920,243 408,438,451
Capital work in progress (42) 746,272 24025244
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411 The cost of owned assets include assets amounting to Rs. 3195 (2019 Rs. 237 3} million with vl book value.

412 mmovable fixed assets include freehold Land and Building situated at E-1 Sehjpat, Near DHA Phase-Vill (Ex-Air Avere),
Lahore Cantt Tatal area of Land is 1877 kanals.




020 2018
42  Capital Work In Progress Note mz,‘:., Rupees

Buiding on freehold land >
Transformer 746,272 24025244
746,272 24025244

427 The following s the movement in capaal work-n-progress ouring the year

Balance at the beginning of the year 24025244 22471805
Additions during the year 13.251015 14044235
Transfer to operating fixed assets 1422) (26529,987) (12,490,536|

Balance at the end of the year 746,272 24025244

422 Transfers to operating fixed assets relate to genarators and transformer.

43  Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of reverwe 25) 183,243,480 R7,7R309
Distribution expenses (26) 2383210 1955004
Administrative experses (27) 36,709,628 26,231,858

22233538 B5895 1N

4.4 Disposal of property and equipment
Details of disposed assets which had a net book value of Rs 500,000 or more, are as follows:

Partiodlars * e G [ fLosd
oM valug proceeas

frpleyees
Nordde Gy L0 084,500 SET.00 2039 WH7.358  Croup Policy femrrwd Ozt
Morvia Ciry 23m000 247 1967,7%3 251000 $43267  GroupPolicy  Syed S Akier
Hords Ciey 1824000 50T “nse9 1770.965 IGRO0  Group Policy Semer Abtes
Toyots Alts 18 2420250 WANTE 2050577 2279000 228427 Croup Policy et Atz Nzen
Monda Ciic 10 207220 245202 2n020 1830970 QU0 Group Policy Mubarrmad Wi
Toyute Carolia G 2550000 ns.zen TATZT e 3an poanesl  Croup Pulicy Pac Mo Werkshop

Agarwgate ol s of propecty end equpment
wth ek vidaal book waboe below Ry 500,000 283577 21608397 3.790.m0 5797087 LCT0NV
2020 M T4 T TEY T 14007000 M0W0N L3715

Ermployews
Horde Civic P2 Ne 1580 10 42000 248 12508 CroupPolicy  Zahad njia
Merxta Civie VT 2501000 Ja2 e V2050 25M80 TS0 Croup Pulicy mvan Masesin
Corolla 04 2372000 st 1mnssay 1S (0548 Croups Pulicy Foud Ve |
Toyute Allis 18 2278000 sanan LY 2279000 GIEN CGroapPulicy Nesrven Ao
Mernda Civic 18 2002 500 wiE 1930970 1209720 < GrewpPuicy  Naroad Saes
Toyote Corotia 16 AT 201050 148525 Sa2808 1000000 1IN GroapPulicy  Sedmen Wik
ternsa Cey 1903 500 L] 1TA S0 656,385 B2 GeopPulicy Wank Marhar
Mervta Ciny 13 873020 a033 1435967 1729,350 203381 Crowp Pulicy  Zohad e
torie BEAY 181785 Az3ERs 1320 1733000 240208 GroupPulicy  amvan leved Ba
Corolla Altis 15 150 s 147857 0,500 AWNE GropPulicy  Bade Bakdd
Toyots Corclis 136U 225500 WABED 215040 2074820 H1320  GrowpPolicy  Feesal Khas
Toyuts Corctia Alta 15631840 2280 142560 135438 08T Crowp Pulicy i Habals
Heruta City Asistw 1553000 ES8003 ;300 1280435 W4T GropPulicy  Farsal Noer
Toyote Corctia XU 1550340 387585 VB2 7S 1567,080 5225 GroupPdicy  Sheeb Al
Herxde Civic 18 1537020 s SNAR 1537000 THSE2  Crowps Pulicy Wapw Uksh
Teyoal Comdls GLIT3 1537.000 744333 792567 1537305 746633 GroupPolicy  Mubarmmed Ajax
Toyote Altis 18 \537.000 B7S654 (7313 1553,000 P64 CGroupPolicy  Aurangmb
Horda Civic 18 2353000 E0AT 1372583 427,947 54564  CrowpPulicy  Wasesrn Joffer
Supuki Cutlus 182,10 246374 ;0% 1537000 €45264  GroupPulicy  Farhas Umar

Third party
Hernda Civic 233728 1573266 764,002 1950008 TES308  Negotinion Mgl Nutos
Honda City Aspie 873020 £95.993 ARE00E 1899998 J23393  Megotimion Faegel Mot
Toyuts Corctia 1791950 oS3 S5 paE 775000 T08IS2  Negotirtion  Rugel Notos
Honda Ciry 13 562226 304,741 VSTAES 180462 435577 Mepctition  Auegel Notos
Agregate of Dors of property and e pent
with inevidual beai velue bedow Rs 500000 5384223 13563408 2820725 726379 4333072

s0.207.912 2R B45545 N2EL%Y ADDIS 073 17439%




5 INTANGIBLES

2020 20m
Note Rupees Rupees
Computer software and Lcenses (5.9 148586633 51,020,223
Software under development 55660644 1507897

204,249277 188,746,156

51 Computer software and licenses

2020
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52 Thecost of the mtangdles include assets amounting to Rs. 130 million (2019: Rs. 817 milbon) with nil book value.

53 Amortization charge for the year has bean 2020 2019
allocated as follows: Note Rupees Rupees
Cost of revanua (25) 24917618 31584129
Distribution expenses (26) 255,061 396,665
Administrative expenses 27) 3956675 4550563

29,129,294 26,533,357

L3 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Set out below are the carrying amoeunts of right-of-use assets recognized and the mavements during the year:

2020 2018
Note Rupees Rupees
Az at 1 January 145,860 345 .
Agditiors 99,007,148 182,325,431
Depreciation experce 6.9 (40,471,341}  (35.465085)

Balance as at 31 December 204,396,352 145 B0, 345




81 The depreciation charge for the yeer on right-of-use assets has been allocated as follows:

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
Cost of revenue (25) 15,376,034 13,513,406
Distribution expenses (28) 2,832,980 2,410,143
Administrative sxpenses (27) 22259128 20135537

40,471,142 16, 465,086

7. CONTRACT ASSETS

Unbilled raverue (VA 580183650 517883251
Retention maney 5259641 59560947

642,780,081 57744498

71 Unbilled revenue

Expart 468,969,680 141177956
Local 290,464,898 451842321
679454578 595020877

Less: Allowance for ECLs {89,270,928) (77,137 25|

59083650  517.88325)

2020 209
Visionet Visionet

Deutschland Deutschland

GMBH GMEBEH
- Nat more than three months 135,801,761 ms3z %z
- More than three months but not mare than six manths 47873522 57887498
- More than six months but naot more than twelve months 3932960 BO06,961
- More than twelve menths - 46343

The maximum Sg|regate amount outstancng by reference 1o <015

month-end balances was as follows Runoos

Visionet Deutschland GMBH 275.359,167 N
711 Balance as at 01 Jarwary 77,137,626 $0817,128
{Recovery) / Expense for the year - net 9812284 (11033,045|
Balances written off during the year - (3.856,332}
Foreign sxchange movemant 2321018 1208876

Balance as at 31 December 89270928




712  Thesa represent unbiled debtors arising due to recognition of ravanua upan delivery of perfarmance cbligatons as
par cantract on the basis of parcentage of completion as per IFRS 15 « Revenue from contracts with customars

8. TRADE DEBTS 2020 201
Rupees Rupees
Considered good - unsecured:
Export 8.1 1975840352 1378233113
Local 677,703,491 _ 539050836
2657543843 1917.263,949
Less: Allowance for ECLs / Provision far doubtful debes (8.2) {284827,102) |'%82093807)

8.1 Aging analysis of the amounts due from related parties & as follows:

2020 201
Visionet Visionet Visonet y ¢
Systems Deutschland Systems Deutschlandg
Incorporation GMBH Incarparation GMEM
-USA -USA
Rupees
« Not more then one month 500,276,276 18539554 322803932 -
- Mare than coe month but not more
than thrae manths 609,446,087 . 3854773 =
-« Mare than thrae manths but not mare
than nine months . - BB76800 2

109,722,363 18539554 703235505

811  The madmum aggregate amounst cutstandng by reference to 2020 209
monthsend balances was a¢ follows Note Rupees Rupees
Visonet Systems ncorporation - USA 1354,441348 1730043500
Visonet Deutschland GMBH 18,539,554 -
TechVista Information Technology - Qater 13,964,932 83795647

2020 20M
Rupees Rupees

82 Allowance for ECLs / Prowision of doubtful debts

Balance as at 01 Jenuery 168,209807 S1263,930
Addition during the year 199,362,254 2N466,773
Reversal during the year . (86,831507)
Expense far the year 199,362,254 124 655,266
Balances written off during the yoar (22,372.056) 2.384,782)
Foreign excharge mavernent 60,372,9¢ (5,324,607)

Balance a1 at 31 December < 284827302 BE205 807

822 These include allowance for ECLS against recevables from related party, TechVista information Technology (Gatar)
amounting to Rs. 97 17 milion [20%9: 4887 millon)
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a LOANS AND ADVANCES - cansidered good

Advances tostaft
against salary
ARANEL SXPENSES

Advances to supplers - aganst gnods

Loans to related parties
Elimination on account of Joint Dperation

{9.1)

‘_soo.‘m_"loss 195 941404
(300,431,068) | [namaml

2020 2018
Rupees Rupees

525,183 6,768869
3,061,469 28273442
14,550,652 35,042,331
81322672 110,197,061
95,913,324  145,239392

95.913,324 145,239392

91 This represents loan provided to UUS Joint Venture (Private} Lenited for meetng working cpital requrements. Ths
amount is unsecured and carres interest at one-year KIBOR on the outstanding loan batance at the end of each

month.

10 TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS

Security deposits
Prepayments
n OTHER RECEIVABLES

Receivables from related partes
Others

Nota

ny

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

347,689,182 159824045
90,784,166 138,944 627
438,473,348 368766673

M5151,066  WOE21432
3,071571 -

138,222 637 V0621432

M1 These include balances due from the following related parties:
TechVista Infarmation Technology Qatar - related party

Visicnat Deutschland GMBH
Visionet Systems Incorporation - USA

06,415,131 BoE1432
983,495 .
7.742.440 -

115,151,066 WOE 432

1 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Fair value through profit and loss
= Mutuet fund unis

Amortized cost
- Term dapost recelpts (TORs)

121 The details of ivestment in mutual funds are as follows
UBL Al-Amean Asset Islamic Allocation Fund

Number of units : 409,055 (2012 Nil)
Alfalah GHP Istamic Income Fund
Number of units: 502,485 (2015 Nil
H2L Asset islamic Allocation Fund
Number of units ; 460820 (2012 N#)
Laksan Mlamic Tactcal Fund

Number of units : 534,122 {2079: Nil)
Meezan Balanced Fund

Number of units : 5450 850 (2019 Nit}
Meezan Islamac Income Fund

Number of units : 944 653 (2019 Nit)
NBP tslamic Sarmaya lzafa Fund
Number of units : 12,352,453 (2019 Nd)

2

(12.2)

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

559,845,556

2,085,000,000 750,000,000
2644845556 780,000000

51952.7% -

51444992 -
52,449,350
100,590,950 -
50,337 e08 .

201,778,545



122  The details of investments in TORs are as follows:

Faysal Bank Limated 400,000,000 -

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited 1660,000,000 555,000,000
Habib Bank Limited 25,000,000 25,000,000
Meezan Bank Limited - 200,000,000

227 2,085,000,000 780,000,000

1221 These carry markup at rates ranging from 6% to 1275% (20%9: 1225% o

1265%) per annum.
3. TAXREFUNDS DUE FROM THE GOVERNMENT - nat 2020 20m
Nots Rupees Rupeas
Income Tax 171975691 198,466,970
Sales Tax 2 0971356

171975,69) 209,458,326

“ CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cashin hard 917,203 1651049
Balances with banks:
Local currency
Currant accounts 1211562880 | 388209463
Saving accounts (M. NE(¥4.2) 766,496,179 | 1108287817
1978,058059 1,43965¢97,230
Foreign currency - current accounts 1006,127,524 17,904,024

29685104566 15%152353

141 Thesecarry markup at the rete of 3.0% ta 1150% (2012 9% to T125%| per annum

42 These include margin amount of Rs. 35463 207 Rs 23969] midlon held under lien by the banks agairst
guarantees issued by them on behalf of the Group,

15, ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL
2020 <0

Number of shares)

Ordinary shares of Rs. W0/~
24,533,095 23,447 380 each fully paid in cash 245330950 234473800

Ordinary shargs of Rs. W/- each

100,072,918 ¥0.07281 fully paid up &= bonus shares 1000,729,180 1000,729.%80
124,606,014 123520,299 1,248,060,140 1235202990
153 Reconciliation of ordinary shares
2020 20
(Number of shares)

123520299 N2213548  Balance at 1 January 1235202990 1122735480
- N.221354 lssuance of bonus shares - 12213540
1085715 85397 Stock options exsrcised 10,857,150 853870

124,606,014 13520299  Balance at 31 December 1248,060,140 1235202930

16, CAPITAL RESERVES

Share premeim resarve %) 614,907,403 512349734
Employee compensation reserve %.2] 84,747,028 76.970,025
Gain on dilution of interest (125) 197,608,708

Trarelation reserve on foreign operations 59347679 45242756

955,611,816 640,352515




LA

This reserve shall be utilized oaly for the purpose as specfied in section 842) af the Companies Act 2077,

This represents balance amount after exercise of share optians by the employess under the Employes Stock Opton
Scheme approved by the SECP According to the scheme, 100% options become exercisable after completion of
westng pariod from the date of grant. The cptions have a vesting perod of 2 years and an exercise peried of 3 years
from the date the cptian is vested,

The followingtable Rlustratesthe number and welghted average exercise poces of, and mavements in, share options
during the year

2020 2018
Weighted Weighted
e Number of average Number of
exercise options EXEICise options
price prie
Rupees Number Rupees Nuenber
Outstanding at 07 Jaruary 77146 24799486 8073 1374366
Granted during the year
- stock options awarded in January 7534 1529,034 . .
- stock options ewarded in April = - 7334 1331912
- stock opticns awarded in July 12223 200,000 x -
Forfeited share optons 7234 (469,643) 8073 (140,565)
EXErCIsed during the year
- stock options awarded n 2016* - - 4598 (1L.050)
- stock options awarded in 2017+ 6258 (316,831 6258 74,347)
- stock options awarded in 2016 7213 (768,884) - -

Qutstanding at 31 Decembar

Vested and exerosable at 31 December 7213 17,676 6212 344004

* The wesghted average shara price at the date of the exercise of these options wes Rs 9532 (20 Rs $6.02)
** The weighted average share price at the date of the exercise of these options was Rs 14384

The weighted average remaning contractual tife for the share options outstanding as at 31 December 2020 & 380
years [2019. 367 yaars)|

The weighted average far value of options granted during the year wes Rs 67 72 (2079: Rs 393}

The range of exercise prices for cptions outstanding at the end of the year s RE72 13 1o RS12223 {2079: Rs 4598
1o Rs 73.38)

The following table Lists the inputs to the model used for the plan for the years ended 31 Decamber 2020 and 2018,
respectively :

2020 2018
Dividend yield 2% 2%
Expected valavlity 32% - 40% 36%
Risk-froe mterest rate T730% & 7.80% 11.85%
Expected life of share options |years) 21 22
Weghted average share price Rs. 13247 Rs. 86
Model used Black Scholes  Biack Scholes

The expected Life of the share cotiors Is based on historical data and current expectations and s not necessarily
indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatilty reflects the assumption that the hstoricat
wolatilityower a paricd similar to the life of the options & indicative of future trends, whech may not necassarily be the
actusl outcome.



LONG TERM ADVANCES 7y 53,857,626 28652,726

Thesa reprasant advances recaived from staffand willbe adjustad as per Group's car policy against sale of yehicles,
The fair value adjustment in accordence withthe reguirements of IFRS 9 'Financial Irstruments’ arising in respect of
long term Loans is carsidared Insignificant by the managemeant.

LONG TERM LOAN 2020 209
Note Rupees Rupees
MCB Bari Liméted 190641884 -
Add: Unminding of interest 8125960 -
(1. 198,767,844 2
Less. Current portion (100,754,617) -

98,013227

el

This represents loen of Rs, 210 million abtained under Refinence Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries to
Workers and Emplayees of Business Cancerns (the Scheme)] offered by State Bank of Pakistan ta mitigate the effect
of COVID-19 on employment in Pakistan The facllityhas an aggregate sanctioned Umitaf Rs. 315 million It carries
mark-up at SBP rate plus 1% per annum and is secured against a parl passu charge of Rs 13267 million over the
present and futurecurrent assets of the Group and st exclusive aquitable mortgage and hypothecationcharge of Rs.

10667 milion over the non current assets of the Group. The loan is repeyable in equal quarterly installments
commencing September 26, 2020 and ending December 26, 2022. The twa trenches of loan were inftiallyrecognazed
at amortzed cost using effective interest rate af 7.94% and 7.25% (3-month KIBOR| respectively. The dfference
between cash recewved and present value of cash autflowsupon initial recognition has been recognized as deferred
grant

2020 208

1}

LEASE LIABILITIES Rpsas Ripess
Present value of lease rentals 227,393,268 1BEATISNE
Less: Current portion shown under current Liabilities (37,983,737  (29.284555)

189409537 129188921

Finance cost

Principal
Lease Rentals f:l‘ hma?sn outstanding
2020
Rupees-
Not Later than ane year 58,298,375 20314644 3796373
Later than one year but not later than five years 9,649,601 41165952 128483848
Later than fiwe years 69,530,724 8,604,036 60,925,880

297,478,700 70,085432 227393266

Finance cost for Princpal
LoeseRuntals 0 e periods outstandng

20M
Ru
Not later than one year 46437338 17,213,242 25284596
Later than ane year but not later than five years 53913885 24725065
20041923 41338407 BAATISE

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease Uabilties and the mavements during the yaar:




As at ] January 158,473,516 .
Adcwions 99,007,148 18232543

20.

Accretion of interest 20,048,198 20431835
Payments (50,135594) |44.2B3,750)
As at 31 Decernber 227,393,268 B8 A73516
Sabent features of the leases are as follows: 2020 2019
Discounting factor 732%-1216% 1216%
Paricd of lsase 60-120 months 60 months
2020 20m

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES ol Rupees
Creditors 496582818 45433800
Bills discounted 2063910 .
Accrued Uabllitles 621170242 681282705
Provident fund contribution payable 32276041 21722278
Withhelding income tax payable 30,774 556 1866910
Sales tax payables 2134640 .
Other Payables 1127,7717 819518

1166,129,904 171932212

Contract Licbilities 297554223 154423043

These represent mobdeation advances recelved from the customers against professional / software development
services, licenses, license support services and other fees

2020 20m
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS Note Rupees
MCE Bank Limitad (22.1) 550,000,000 450000000
Habi Metropolitan Bank Limited (22.2) 700,000,000 200000000
Running Mance facility - Mational Bank of Pakistan (22.3) 39000000 22000000
Running finance faciity - Meezan Sank Umited (22.4) %0,000,000 -

223

224

1449000000 572000000

This represents export re-finance {ERF| availed against aggregate sanctioned limétof Rs. B00 (201 Rs BOO) million
The rate of mark up & SBP rate plus 05% (2012 SBP rate plus 05%) per annum. These barrowngs are secured
against Rs. 975 milboncash margin, Tst pari passu of Rs. 132766 milionover the current assets and Rs. 1066567
milion hypothecation and equitable mortgage charge over propertyand equpment and 203 maria of land at Sehjpal
near DHA Phase VIIl fex-Ar Avenue Eden City), respectively,

This represents export re-finance {ERF| availed against aggregate sanctioned limitof Rs. 700 (2073 Rs. 200] million
The rate of mark up 15 SBP rate plus 6 (2079 SBP rate plus ™) These borrowingsare secured against Rs. 950
million pari passu hypathecaton charge over current assets and Rs 23248 million equitable mortgage over 1535
marla of land at Sehjpal near DHA Phase VI (ex-Air Avenue Eden City).

This represents rumning tnance (RF) facilty availled from National Bank of Pakistan {NBP| agarst aggregate
sanctiored limtof Re 40 million, This carries mark up i@ 3+nonth KIBOR plus 25% These borrowngsare secured
against axclusive first charge of RS134 millian over currant assets (including receivables) and fised assets of the
Group, cross-corporate guarantee of the Group.

This regresents mubaraha fackityavasled from Meezan Bank Limited [MBL] aganst aggregate sanctoned Lmitof Rs
200 million This carrios mark up i@ respective Temonth KIBOR. These borrowingsare secured against 110% cash
collateral in shape of lien over foreign currency account of Group
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CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Cantingencies

Income tax
Tax Year 2017 - urder section 161

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue [the "DOR®) =sued order under section B1AI  of the Income Tax
Ordnance, 2007 {the *Ordinance™) for the tax year 2077 whereby tax amounting to R, 553 millian for nor-deduction
of withholdingtax was 'evied. the Group preferred an appeal before Comnussioner Inland Revenue (Appasls) [the
"CIR(A)] which is decded aganst the Group Being aggrieved, the Group filed an appaal before the Appellate
Tribunal Inland Revenue (the "ATIR"). which is perding adjudicaton. The management expects a favorable outcome
in this regard

Tax Year 2076 - Clause 94 part IV of Second Schedule

the Group filed an undertaking pursuant clause 94 part |V of Second Schedule to the Ordnance, therebyopting cut of
minimum tax on services under section 153(1){b) of the Oroinance In respect of Tax Year 2016 The Additonal
Commissioner Inkand Revenue ("Addl CIR") declined 1o accept the undertaking aganst whichthe Group preferredan
appeal befare CIR(Al, which has been upheld by the CIR{A) The appeal effact / reassessment may result in tax
liabdityof Rs. 3025 million. Being aggreved, the Group has fled en appeal before the ATIR, which is perding
adpudication The management expects a fevorable outcome in this regacd.

Tax Year 2014 - under section 122(54)

The Addl CIR issued order under section 122{5A) of the Ordnance for tax year 204, on the basis of wrong proration
of experses, capitel gan etc and created demand of R 4B53 million. the Group preferred an appeal against the
order, before the CIR{A) who decided the case in favor of the Group. However, the tax department has fled second
appeal befare the ATIR, which is pending adjudication The management expects a favorable cutcome in this regard.

Tax Yaar 2012 - under section 122(SA)

The Assistant Commissioner nland Revenue (“ACIR") issuad an order under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance for tax
year 2012, on the basis of wrang proration of experses, others etc. and created demand of Rs. 1846 milion the
Group preferred an appeal before the (RIA) against the impugned order which s partiallydecided in favor of the
Group, Being aggrieved, the Group filed an sppeal before the learned ATIR, which is perding adjudication The
management expects a favorable outcome in this regard.

Sales tax
Tax Period from January 2016 to December 2076

The Group was selected for Sales Tax Audit through computer ballot for the tax period January 2016 to December
2076 and on the bess of audit proceedings, the DCIR passed arder No. 3 dated 30 July 2020 under secticn 1%2) of
the Sales Tax Act, 1390 on varous ssues Including suppression of sales, nan-chergeability of sales tax on advarce
from customers, other income, late Mingof sales tax retums etc and created Impugned sales tax demand amounting
to Rs. 65584 millon Being aggrieved the Group preferrad an appeal before the CR[A)  which is perding
adudication

Commitments

Guarantees issued by the financial institutiareon behatf of the Group amount to Rs 25150 2073 Rs 42039
million This includes guaranees of Rs. 272 (2019: R< 77 38| milion given an behall of Jeint Operation.

The outstanding purchase commitments are nil (2073; Rz 1 million|,




24 REVENUE FROM CONTRALTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Types of goods or services

Outzourcing services 1373,041,004 175484529 1546525533

Software tracng 40,822,832 452,389,126 493,212,058

Saftware implementation 6,489,977,353 1124,720374 7,614,697,727

Sale of air-time and related services - 357570526 357570526
Lecs Sales tax - (137,178,134)  (137,178,134)

Total revence from contracts with customers 7.503,841,289 1572906.421 9876827.710

Timing of revenue recognition - net
Goods and services transferred at a pont in time 7739%,030 773,915,030

Geods and services trarsferred over time 7.903,841,289 1199,070,391 9,%02,91,660
Total revenus from contracts with customery 7.803. 841,289 1,972,985,4217 9876827.710

R — mw.—mm

Types of goods or services
Qutsourcing services 20459240 7569753 879762163
Software tradng . 471372 4713720
Software implermentation 506530254 937048339 6002350433
Sale of air-time and related services 376,066,732 37,066,732

Less: Sales tax (101428994] (1324764351 (233905429
Total revenus from contracts with customers 5768465570 1767182499 7535546069
Timing of revenua recognition - net
Goods and services transferred at 8 point n tme - TNwrs’e TMrse
Goods and services transferred over tme 5768465570 956074920 6764540420

Total revenue from contracts with customers 5768 465570 1,767,78249% 7.535548069

241  Ths represants sales tax chargeable under Provircial and Federal Sales tax Laws on revenue as cefined under
relevant laws.

2411 The disaggregated reverwe informationbased on the geographical location has been presented in Nate 32 to these
consolidated financial statements

2020 2018
Note Rupess Rupaes

Contract balances 53,828,061 S3828 061

2421 These represent the amount of revenue recagnized fram amounts included n contract Labilitles at the beginning of
the year.

243  Transaction prices of remaining performance obligations

The transaction prices allocated ta the remaining perfarmance cbligatians (ursatzfied or partiellyunsatisfiod) as at 31

Decernber are as follows
2020 2019
Note Rupees Rupees
Within ane year 234,262,085 29891169
Mare than one year 702,786,254 491735477

937,040,339 790647,646

The Group makes =sles sgainst credit terms In case of credit sales, payment = generally due within30 days fromthe
date of bxiling 1o the customer.



2020 2019

Note Rupees Rupees
25 COST OF REVENUE

(25 5251513969 23.859,160870
Commission paid 202,588,842 208929953
E-link cannectivity charges 7,005617 7,632,166
Printing and stationery 173258 1239613
Computer supplies 20,886,069 32271250
Rent, rates and taxes 8,389.4M 65,8468.439
Electricity, gas and water 47,409,042 50,564,690
Traveling and conveyance 100,639,087 176,629,357
Repair and maintenance 12405269 15741434
Postage, telephone and telegrams 72107402 62,863,507
Viehicle running and maintenance 25,303,832 21,990,257
Entertainment 26,756,350 28451139
Fee and subscriptions 59,044,261 16,385,313
Insurance 5201344 7.065,035
Depreciation (4.3) 183243480 127,712,309
Amortization (5.3) 24917 618 31584129
Depreciation of right-of-use 6 15,379,034 13,919,406
Other 47.344 22,092,382

8865652 4,691,081,609
Purchase of software for tradiny S540,774551 475,215,777
251  Thisincludes employees retirement benefit expense amounting to Re. 158.39 (2019 R 104.79) miltion.

26. DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and amenities (26.1) 122004346 105210374
Collection charges §7,993%389 51,690,085
Printing and stationery 370579 378,483
Computer supplies 10034 185832
Rent, rates and taxes 139473 154,619
Electricity, gas and water 1107,445 694,845
Traveling and conveyance 3868378 8,373,077
Repair and maintenance 950,833 22920
Postage, telephane and telegrams 754,222 1023230
Vehicle running and maintenance 1,355,995 1384,000
Entertainment 489,967 1.308,090
Insurance 524075 69,613
Fae and subscriptions 2,896,029 502,936
Shows, seminars and advertising 2991433 1.9750M
Depreciation (43) 2383210 1,955,004
Amortization 15.3) 255,061 398,665
Tender documents - 59,70
Depraciation of right-of-use (6.9 2,832,980 2,410,143
Miscellaneous

201024728 178,002,387

261  Thisincludes employees retirement benefit expense amounting to Rs. 337 (2079: Rs. 2.86) million.

2020 2019
27. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Note Rupees
Salaries, allowances and amenities 27.1) 427741501 461283670
Printing and stationery 4,910,958 13,803,773
Computer supplies 17,702,919 18,650,466
Rent, rates and taxes 13,002,908 1,234,900
Electricity, gas and water 15670825 10,167,488
Travaling and conveyance 17,862,6M 30,063,730
Repair and maintenance 30,813,270 21721174
Postage, telephone and telegrams 23650878 16,174,228
Vehicle running and maintenance 7,248,096 7,642,091
Legal and professional 57331448 18,419,280
Auditors' remuneration 272 7,048,819 132262
Entertainment 3,863,323 4,780,856
Donations 2,203,600 3825305
Fee, subscriptions and training 19,952,059 11,565,900
Insurance 4447430 298,153
Hiring cost 432,830 884,516
Newspapers, books and periodicals 137,713 5,918
Depreciation (4.3) 36,705628 26,231,858
Amortization (5.3) 3,956,615 4,550,563
Depreciation of right-of-use (CR)] 22,259,128 20,135,537
Others 5,574,627

722310556 698,066,995




271 Thisincludes employees retirement benefit expense amounting to Rs. 42.83 (2019: Rs. 37.52) million.

' 2020 2018
272 Auditors' remuneration Note Rupess Rupees

Annual audit fee:

- Holding Company 1907747 1734375

- Subsidiary Companies 244578 2,294,055
Half ywarly review & ather certifications 1478906 1503,805
Sales tax advisary 942,500 1,669,587
Out-of-pocket 273885 120,000

7048819 7.322.%2

26 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Allowance for ECLs / prowvision for doubtful debts

- Contract assats 9812284 (9.823170)
- Trade debts 199,362,254 119,330,659
Unbilled revenue and bad debts written off 50877 2797494
Tax receivables written off 5889010 24508582
Advances written off - 1540,964

220135525 163532016
29, OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets:
Profit on depasit accounts 9,176,716 18,781,267
Profit on term deposit receipts 130,159502 58,426,028
Dividend income 2502253 -
Unrealized gain on investments classified

as fair value through profit or loss 7.343,304 .
Exchange gain 81841960 223,172,268

231,023,735 300379563

Income from non-financial assets:
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 3312735 || 16.743,906
Others 864568 1,368,706

4177303 18n2.012
235,201,038 318,491,575

2020 2019
30. FINANCE COSTS Note Rupeus
Markup on guarantee commission 2383653 1301502
Markup on short term borrowing 39661983 16,483,100
Bank charges 4565842 8,805,684
Lease Interest 2004888 20431835

66659676 4702211

at TAXATION

Income tax;

- CaTent year [@11&(312) 90648215  35,991951

- prior year 27312081 (3.710,253)
TTUI,960,376 33281608

Deferred tax 2. -

117960376 33281698




32 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Geographical segments

For management purpases, the Group is organized into business units based on their geographical areas and has
four repartable operating segrments as lollows

- North America

- Middle East

- Pakistan

No other operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments.

Managament monitars the oparating resuits of its oparating segments separately for the purpase of performance assessment.
St.-a"e performance is evalusted based on operating profit or loss and & messwred consistently with operating profit ar loss
oonsoudated fnancial statements.

Transfer prices between oparating segments are on arm’s length basis In a manner simitar to transactions with third parties.
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33 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties and associated undertakingscomprise subsidiary, associated companies, compenies in which directors
are Interested, staff retirement funds and directorsand key management personnel (Note 33). The Group In the normal
course of business carries out transactionswithvarious related parties, Amounts due fromand to related parties are shown
under respective notes to the consolidated financial statements, Other significant transactions with related parties are as
follows:

2020 2019

Undertaking Relation  Nature of transaction Naota Rupees Rupees
Visionet Systems Incorporation A iate Sales (311) 4270475128 3400580878
-UsA Reimbursement of expenses 65,702,534 78,774,869
TechVista Information Anscchata Sales (33.2) 95,176,466 26,228,121
Technology Gatar Reimbursement of expenses - 47,118,091
IG! Insurance Limited Asmociate Sales 5414588 15551674
Purchase of insurance policies 35,220,309 25,964 645
Dawood Family Takaful Limited Assoclate Purchase of insurance policles 5293286 3,980,759
Visionet Deutschland GMBH Associate Sales (323) 664,579,940 -
Staff retirement funds Contribution 177.022,960 18,363,070

33,1 Visionet Systems Incorporation- USA (VSI) is associated company of the Group on the basis of common directorshipand
Incorporated In United States of America (USA). The registered address of VS| Is Cedarbrook Corporate Center, 4
Cadarbrook Drive, Bldg B Cranbury, NJ 085123641

33,2 TechVista Information Technology Qatar is associated company of the Group on the basis of common directorshipand
incorporated in Qatar. The registered address is Palm Towers, floor 41 Westbay, Doha, Qatar,

33.3 Visionet Duetschland GMBH s assoclated company of the Group on the basis of commen directorshipand incorporated in
Qatar. The registered address is Maximilian Street 13, B0539, Munchen, Germany.

34, REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in the accounts for the year for remuneration including certain benefits to the Chief
Executive Officer, Directors and Executives of the Group are as follows

Non Executive
Chiel Executive Officer Di Other Executives
2020 2018 2020 2019 2020 2019
[Nos)
Number of persons 1 1 1 6 525 259
[Rupeas)

Managerial remuneration 36,960,000 33,600,000 - - 1613,369,420 1059452693
Retirement benefits 2464000 2,240,000 - - 97,181,202 59,096,019
Bonus 27,946,387 2972406 - - 50,131,001 31,280,931
Fees - - 2,850,000 1354000 - .

67370387 65564306 2850000 1354000 1760681623 1149829643

34,1 In addition to the above remuneration, the Chief Executive Officer and certain executives are also provided with company
maintained cars, free medical and mobile phone facilities in accordance with their entitlement.

34.2 Fees represent the amounts paid to Non Executive Directors for attending meetings of the Board and its sub-committees,

34,3 During the year, the Chief Executive Officer and Other Executives were granted 570,034(2019: 525.412) and 1,159,000
{2019: 406,500) share options respectively, which have a vesting period of two years. Further, the impact of benefits
available to the Chief Executive Officer and other executives recognized by the Company on account of share-based
payment plans aggregated to Rs. 2537 (2019: Rs. 26.44) mitlion and Rs. 21.76 (2079: 29.46) mitlion, respectively.

A

34.4 During the current yaar, certain exacutives of the Company exercsed stock option under employes stock option scheme
according to which 1085,715 {2019: 85,387) shares were issued to them.




35 EARNINGS PER SHARE- BASIC AND DILUTED

Earnings per shere are calzulated by dividing the net profitfor the year sttnibutatieta ordinary shareholders of the Group by
weighted average number of shares outstandng dunng the year as follaws:

S : c 2020 209
35.1 Baasic cornings por share Rupees Rupess
Profit far the year 2.209,645930 158736564
(Number of shares)
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding dunng the yea 124,261404 123473974
Basic samings per share (Rupees) 1774 1285
K 2020 209
352 Diluted earnings per share Rupees Rupess
Profit far the year 2,209,645,930 1587.316,854
(Number of shares)
Weighted-average rumber of ordinery shares {besic) 124,261404 123473974
Effect of share options 2498226 1055607
Weighted average number of cedinary shares - diluted 126,759,630 124,529,581
Diuted varnings per share (Rupees} 1743 1275
2020 2019
ASH A PERATIO
36 CASHGENERATED FROM OPERATIONS Note " R
Profit before taxatian 2.282.258,059 160124518
Adjustment for:
Depreciation on property and equipment (4.3) 222.3363W 155899171
Depreciation on right-of-use asset 404741 36,465,065
Amartzation of intangibles 5.3) 28,129,294 36533357
Allowance for ECLs / provision for doubitful debts - contract sasets (28) 9,812,284 19.823.170]
Allowancs for ECLS / pravision far doubitful debts - trade debts (28) 199,362,254 119330559
Bad debts - writen off (28} 507977 27,974,581
Tax racewables written aff 5889010 .
Gan on dispesal of share in subsidiary - .
Provision for gratuity 26,562,211 26808037
Finance costs (30) 66,659,676 47022721
Exchange gain on translation of export debts (29) {81.841,960) (223.72,268)
Gan on short torm rvestments (29) {130,156,502) |S8,42€,028]
Unreallsed gain on investments classified as fair value (7,343,304) -
through profit or Loss
Share based payment expense 45,941,046 5590995
Reversal of Warker's Welfare Fund - .
Gan on dispesal of property and equipment 7 (%5.743,908)
2,770,835,869 179899256

Warking capital changes

{Increase] / Decrease in current assets
Contract assets - net

Trade debts

Loans ang agdvances

Trade deposits and short term prepayments
Other receivables

52,911,036
(741,162,893)

Increase in trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

183528152



37, FNANCIAL RIS MANAGEMENT

Financial instrumentscomprse deposits, unbilled revenue, interest accrued, trade debts, advarces to employees against
salaries, loans, other roceivables, cash and bank balances and short term investments, trade and ather payadles and mark up
accrued on short term borrawings.

The Group has expesure to the following rsks from its wuse of financisl instruments:

- Market risk

- Credit risk

« Liquidity risk
The Board of Directorshas the overallresponsibilityfor the establishmentand oversightofl Group's rsk management framewor.
The Beard is aleo responsible for deveiaping and monitoring the Group's rsk management policies

This note represemsinformatonabout the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, it'sobjectves, policies and processes for
measuring and managing risk, and it's management of capital

The Group's risk management polices are establizhedto identifyand analyze the reks faced by the Group, to set appropoaterisk
limetsand controls,and ta monitarrisks and adherence ta limits Risk management policies and systemsare reviewad regularty
to react to changes in market conditions and the Group's activities

377 Market risk

fa) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or futurecash flowsof a firancal instrumentwill fluctuatebacause of changes in
foreignexchange rates Currency nsk arises manly from flturecommercal transactionsor recelvables and payables thatesist
due to trarsactions in fareign currencies

Manetarywems, including finanoal assets snd financsl Uabilities, denominated in ourrancy other than functionalcurrency of the
Group are perodically restated to Pak rupee equivalent and the associated gain or Loss s taken to the statement of profit or loss,

The followingsnalysis demanstratesthe sersitivityto a reasonably passdle change In exchange rates, withall other variables
held constant. of the Group's profit before tax

Effecton Effect on

Qe oo prori
before tax before tax

2020 2019

Rupees Rupoes
Recewebles - USD +1 7039373 18581
-1 (7,039,373) 16,587
Recewvables - AED +1 13,016,877 16,632,636
-1 (13,0%,877) 6,632638)
Bank balance - USD +1 4213054 5,734
A (4,213,054) [115,724)
Bank balance - AED 4 23,139,976 9,380,420
1 (23,139,976) 15.180.420)

Reporting dete rate:

usb 1598 BaT

AED 435 421




(b)  Other price risk

Other price rsk s the risk of changes in the fair value of investment in mutusl funds as & result of changes in the levels of net
asset value af units held by the Company. As at 31 Decemnber 2020, had there been ncrease / decrease n et asset value by
¥, withall ather varables held constant.the profit befare tax far tha year would have baen heghar / lower by Rs. 508 millon
207 Nil}

The Group = not exposed to other price risk as its ivestments are fixed with respact 10 peice and maturity
{c] Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the far value or future cash Mows of a Nnancial rstrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates

The Groun has no significant long-term nterest-bearing as=ets. The Group's interestrate risk arses fromshort term borrowngs
Berrowings abtainad at vanable rates oxpose the Group to cazh flow intarest rate rek

At the reporting date. the interest rate peofile of the Group's Interest-bearing finandal nstruments was

Fixed Rote instruments 2020 2018

Finarcial assety Rupees Rupees

Shart term investments 2544845555 780,000,000

Bank balances - depesit accounts 766,496,179 106,287 8177
3471341735 866,267 477

Long term losn 198,767,844 -

Lease Labilities 227393268 -

Shart term borrowings 1250,000,000 £50,000000

L676,181 112
Floating Rate instruments
Fmancial lablimes

Shart term bosrowings 199,000,000 22000000

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

As at 31 December 2020, had there been rcrease / decrease n fixed interest rates by 100 bass points, wthall ather varables
hedd canstant, prafit befare tax for the year woukd have been higher / lower by R 77 35 million [2018: R<12 38 mitlion)

Cash Now sensitivity analysis for varisble rate instruments

A= at 31 December 2020, had there been increase / decresse in XIBOR by 100 bass points, with all aother variables held
canstant, profit before tax for the year would have been higher / lawer by Rs, 192 millico (2012 Rs.0 22 million}

372 Creditrisk

Crecit rsk represents the accounting loss that would be recognaed at the teporting date & counter-parties failed completely to
perform as cantracted The Group does not have significant expasure to any indmdual third party To reduce exposure to oredit
risk the Group hss developed 3 formald approval process whereby credit Imds are appled 10 1S oustomers. The management
also continuowsly monitoes the credit exposune towerds the customess and makes provsion agarst thase balances corsidersd
doubtful of recovery. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly morstored.

The cred risk on liguid funds is limited because the counter parties are barks and mutust funds with resscoably high credit
ratngs The Group believes that it is not expased to major concantration of crede rsk as its exposure s spread owver a large
number af countar parties and subsonbers in case of trade dabts

The carrying amount of financel assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maamum expasure to credit risk ot the
reporting date was as follows:




Contract assets 642780081 577444198

Tracde debts 23721874 1749074142
Trade deposits 387822344 224769843
Advances ta employees against salaries 11525183 6,766.089
Other receivables 8,222,637 180821432
Interest accrued 38,450,000 2A91952
Short term investment 2,085,000,000 780,000,000
Bank balances 2,984 106583 154501304

8,640,707 555 5035871760

The aging of trade debits at the reporting date =
0120 days 23732833997 1012,093872
121- 365 days 107,033,549 B97.740057
X 177,2%,297
2,657,543.843

Allowance for ECLs (284,827,102}
2.372.716,747

As at yoor end, 275 of trade debts [2073: 29%) was represented by two customeramountingto Rs. 73031 [20M3; Rs. 4929)
million The mamagemant bebieves thatthe Group s not expased to customercancantrationrsk as this customaris relatedparty
of the Group.

Based an past experiance and polcy of the Group, the management believes that an impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of trade recevables past due by ane year except if those recewables are recovered subsequent to year end and if
managemeant has sufficient grourds 10 believe that the amounts will be recovered.

The crodit quatity of financial azsets that are neither past due nar impaired can be asseszed by reference to external crednt
ratingsor to historicalinformationabout counterpartydefaultrate The table betow shows the bank batances and investments
held with some major counterparties at the reporting date:

Ravng 2020 2019
Short term Loag term Agency e RUpees

Banks

Habiy Metropalitan Bank Al Abs PACRA 2528702856 831599449
Bank lslami Pak Al At PACRA 75694420 7594107
Uned Bank Limitad A AAA XR-VIS 39,952,998 n7069179
Faysal Bank Al AN PACRA 425,165,055 6387530
Standard Chartored Bank Al AAA PACRA 42,394 856 17653790
Finca Mcrofinance Bank Al A PACRA - 362,203
Megzan Bank At Al JCR-VIS 337.435,430 216331640
Bank Alfalah Limited AN ans PACRA 35,705,525 WINT3S
Habit Bank Lamited Ak AAA XRNIS 43,745,646 46,750,128
MCE Bank Limeted Ak AAA PACRA 508,681,423 584439577
NRSP Microfinance Bark Al A PACRA 5552 495,684
Natianal Bank of Pakistan A AAA FACRA ns.418 183
MC2 Bank Dubai N/A N/A N/A 291285285 B3363663
Mobilink Microfinance Bank Al A PACRA 8649 2,686,408
Habib Bark AG Zurich N/A N/A N/A 646,068,677 2333707%
Habin Bank Lmited - UAE NAA N/A NIA 75200869 -
Teleror Microfirance Bank Al A+ PACRA 7.016,804 1595454

5,065,188 583 2294501304




Rating 2020 201

Short term Long term Agency —————- Rupees

Mutual funds

Al-Ameen Assat lamic : :

ARocatior. Fusd Nat Availsble  Not Aveilable  Not Available 51952,710 =
praiah GHP slamic Icome. not Avallable AA-If) PACRA 51291201 -
L e Allocatian ot Avsilable  Not Available  Not Available 51444,992

Laksonislamic Tactcal Fund  NotAvallable  NotAvallable  Not Avallable 52,449,350 -
Meezan Balanced Fund Nat Available Not Available Not Availabls 100,590,950 -
Meezan Islamic Income Furd  Not Available Afl JCRVIS 50,337,808 <
2‘32"""‘“5'“"" lafa  porAvalable  NotAvsilable  Not Available 201,778,545 2

373 Liquidity risk

Laquidityrisk is the risk thattha Group willnat be able to meet its financial obligatiansas thayfalldue. The Group's approachto
manraging bguiditys to ensure as far as passibleto alwayshave suffickentiquidityto meet its liabditeswhen due. The following
are the contractual maturibes of Ainancial Labilites:

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilties as at 31 Decomber 2020

Carrying Contractisal Lossthan  ong to five years  More than five years

amount cash Nows one year
Rupees
Long term %oan 198,767,644 188,767 844 - #8,013.227 -
Lease Liabilties 227393268 227393268 - 128,483,649 -
Shart term borrowings 1449,000,000 1,449,000,000 - - 60,925888
Mark-up accrued on short
term borrowings 9,604,362 9,804,352 9,804,362 - 9,804,362
Trade and other payables 1186,129,984 1186129584  1,186,129,984 - -
3,071,095458 3071095458 1135934345 226,496,87 70,730,250
The fallowing are the contractual maturities af financial Uabilzies as st 31 December 2019:
e ey t":sy;"';“ One to five years  More than five years
Rupees
Long term loan - - - - -
Lease Liabdmes 158473516 15847351 25,284 5% 129,186,920 -
Trade and cther payables 7832212 . 170833177 . -
Shart term borrowings 672,000000 - 672,000,000 - .
Mark-up accrued on shart
term borrowings 4373569 - 4,873969 -

1607279697 1584735 1477081742 129,188,920 -

37.4 Fair values of financial assets and Liabilities

Fair value of avadable-for-sale financial assets IS derved from quoted market prices in active markets, if available.

The carryingsalues of otherfinancialassets and financialliabiltiegeectedin Mancialstatementsapproximatet hesrfairvalues.
Fair value is determined on the basis of chjective eadence at each reporting date.




375 Financiad Instruments by categories

2020
Financial Financial
assets at fair assats at Total
value through amortized
profitor loss cost
Assets as per statement of financial position Rupees—
Long term deposits - 40,133,162 40,133,162
Unbillad revenue - 842,780,081 642,780,081
Trade debts - 2372.716,741 2372716741
Loans and advances - 95913324 95,913,324
Securty deposits - 3475669782 347,689,182
Interest accrued - 38,450,000 38,450,000
Other roceivables - 18222637 Nn8222637
Short term investments 559845556 2.045000,000 2644 845556
Cash and bank balances 945,104 566
9.285.855249
2018
Financat Fnancial
assets at far value  assetsat Total
through prafitar  amartized
lass cost
Assets as per statement of financlal pasition Rupees
Long term deposits - MB,.222637 18222637
Unbillad revenue - - -
Trade debts - - -
Loans and advances . - .
Security deposits . 347,689,182 347 663,182
Interest accruoed - 2,000,000,000 2,000,000000
Other recevables - - -
Short term investments - 1,246 060,340 1246,060.140
Cash and bank balances . 5626952255 5626552295
8.338.5924.254 9,338,924 254
2020 2019
Financial
liabilities at Financial Labilites
amortized at amartized cost
cost
tm:pummdmm position Rupees Rupees
ong term loan 198,767,844 =
Lease Liabilities 227,393,268 B8473516
Mark-up accrued on shart term borrowings 9,804,362 4,873,868
Shert term borrowings 1.445,000,000 672,000,000
Trade and other payables 1186,129.984 7N932.212

3,071,095,458 1607,279597

376 Fair vatue herarchy

The carrying value of all financial assets and Ladilties reflected In the financlal statements approxmate their fair
values The table below analyses financial instruments carred at fair value by valuation method The different Level
have been defined as follows:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or labilities

Lavet 2: ather tachnigues for which all inputs which have a significant effect an the recorded fair value are abservable
erther. drectly or mdirectly.

Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recarded fair valug that are not based an
observable market data




Lewal 1 Lowel 2 Lowel 3 Total

As at 31 December 2020

Fair value through profit and loss
- Mutual Fund ures 559845558 - - 5598455586

As at 31 December 2019
Feir value through profit and loss
- Mutual Fund ursts - - - .

37.7 Capital risk management

El
EL-A

The Group's policyls ta safeguard the Group's ablityta remain as a ?olng concern and ersure a strongcapital base n order to
maintaininvestees’, creditors'and market’sconfidence and to sustainfuturedevelopmentof the business, The Board of Directors
menitors the returrs on capital, which the group defines as net operating income divided by tatalshareholders' equty. The
Group's objectives when managing &

a) tosafeguardthe group'sabdayto continuess a goingconcarm, so thatit can continue to provide returnsfor sharehoidersandg
benefits for other stakeholders, and

b) to provide an adequate return to sharehoiders by prcing products.,

In arder to mantan or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the smaunt of dividends paid to sharebolders, return
capital to shareholders, or issue new shares

Carsistent withthe industrynorms, the Group manitorsits capitalan the basis of gearingratio. The ratiois calculatedas net debt
drided by totalcaprtal Net debt is caloulatedas totalborrowngsss shownin the balance sheet less cash and cash equaalent
Total capital Is calcudated as “equity’ a5 shown in the balanoe shaat plus net cebt (35 defned above].

The debd - to- equity ratio as 1o 37 Dacember IS as follows

Long term loan - Nate 18 190,767,844 =
Lease Lebilites - Note 19 227,393,268 1584735%
Trade and ather payables - Note 20 1186,129.984 mser
Short term borrowing - Note 22 1.449,000,000 672000000
Mark up accrued on borrowings 9,804,362 4873969
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (2985,04,566)  {1516,152,353)
MNetdebt 85,990,892 91127,344
Total capital 7.976,013,326 5528934440
Capital and nat dabt 8,062,004.218 56200617684
Capital gearng ratia 107% 162%
PROVIDENT FUND TRUST

The Group has mainansd an emplayee provident fund trust and investments out of provident fund have been made n
accardarce withtha provsionsof section 218 of the Companies Act 2017, and the rules formulatadior this purpase. The salient
information of the furd is as follows.

2020 2013
Note Rupees Rupees
Un-audited Audited
Size of the fund [ret assets) 690,232.868 459671558
Comt of investment made (actual investments made) (38.2) 126,955,075 124,801,173
Percentage of investment made (cost of investments] 18.4% 27T 1%

Far value of rvestments 504,062,481 446877691



382 Break-up of investments of provident fund
Break-up of investments in terms of amourt ard percentage of the size of the provident fund are as follows:

2020 208
% of investment oo I
Description Investmems as size of Investiments ¢
the fund AE 200
the fund
Rupees Rupees
Mutusl Furds 122,000,000 % 21601173 265%
Defonse saving certificates . 0.0% 3,000,000 07%
Term Deposit Recsipts 4955075 0.7% . 0.0%
126,955.075 27123
39 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2020 2018
Total number of employees at the end of the year were 3s foliows:
Regular 2,289 1633
Contractual 1259 1827
Average number of employess during the yaar were as follows
Regular 1877 1608
Contractual 1308 a9

40. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

401 The Board of Dwectors in thar meeting hetd on 3 March 2021 have proposad a hinal cash dsicend for the year ended
31 December 2020 of Rs. 35 [20M: Rs 22%5) per share and 10% bonus issuance for approval of the members at
the Annuel General Meetng 1o be held on 31 March 2021 These finencial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 do not include the effect of these appropriations.

4], DATEOF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These cansoldatad financial statements wera authorized for Esue on 3 March 2021 by the Board of Diractors of the
Compeny.

42 CORRESPONDING AGURES

Comresponding figures have been re-arranged, wherever necessary, for better and fair presentation However, no
wgnificart re-arrangement / reclassificatiors have been made in these consclidated financal statements.

43  GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off Lo the nearest of rupees, unless otherwise stated.

2 A b

’_'
[CHAIRMAN| [CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER) [CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER)







FORM OF PROXY
44" Annual General Meeting

e
sonjdsughter of

amember of Systems Umited and holcer of shares as
per Registerea Falio No. do hereby appaint Mr./Ms
sanvdaughter of ar failing him/her
Mr./Ms
son/daughter af
wha s also member af the Company vide Registered Follo No

as my/our Proxy ta sttend, speak and vote for me/fus and an mylour behall at the Annuel Gereral Meeting of the
Company to be hadd an 31 March 2021 a1 1050am theough vides link.

In witness whereol on thig dayof 2021

MName
Address

Affix Revenue
Stamp

CNK

Name
Address

CNE

Member's Sgnature

NOTES:

1 Amember entitlod to attend and vate at this meeting may appont ancther mamber as his/her oroxy to
atrend and vete his/her behal!. Proxies inarder 1o be effective must be receivad at the Registered Office
of the Comparty not t2ss tan 48 hours before the meeting,

2 Thainstrumant appointing a proxy should ba signed by the member or by his attorney duly authorized
inwriting If amember & accrparatian, its comman seal showld be affised to the nstrument.
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